
McAlester City Council
NOTICE OF MEETING

Regular Meeting Agenda
Tuesday, May 11,2010 - 6:00 pm

McAlester City Hall- Council Chambers
28 E. Washington

McAlester, Oklahoma 74501

Kevin E. Priddle Mayor
Chris B. Fiedler Ward One
Steve Harrison Ward Two
John Browne Vice-Mayor, Ward Three
Robert Karr Ward Four
Buddy Garvin Ward Five
Louis Smitherman Ward Six
Peter J. Stasiak City Manager
William J. Ervin City Attorney
Cora M. Middleton City Clerk

This agenda has been posted at the McAlester City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on
the City website: www.cityofmcalester.com within the required time frame.

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the
audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond to a page or to conduct a phone
conversation.

The McAlester City Hall is wheelchair accessible. Sign interpretation or other special assistance for disabled
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Clerk's Office at 918.423.9300, Extension
4956.

CALL TO ORDER
Announce the presence of a Quorum.

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

• Pastor Brandon Parker, New Life 4 Today Ministries

ROLLCALL

CITIZENS COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Residents may address Council regarding an item that is not listed on the Agenda. Residents must provide their
name and address. Council requests that comments be limited to jive (5) minutes.

http://www.cityofmcalester.com


May 11,2010 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 2 of6

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A. Approval of the Minutes from the April 22, 2010, Special Meeting of the McAlester City
Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

B. Approval of Claims for April 28, 2010 through May 11, 2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief
Financial Officer)

C. Authorize the Pittsburg County Chapter of the NAACP to use Michael J. Hunter Park on
Saturday, June 20, 2009, between the hours of9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., for the Juneteenth
Celebration. (Maureen Harrison, Pittsburg County Chapter of the NAACP)

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING
All persons interested in any ordinance listed under Scheduled Business shall have an opportunity to be heard in accordance
with Article 2, Section 2.12(b) of the City Charter.

• An ordinance of the City Council of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, amending the
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62, Article V, Division 4; flood hazard overlay district and
flood damage prevention. Adopting a flood damage prevention plan, statement of
purpose and establishing methods and procedures relating thereto, and declaring an
emergency.

• An Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning of said property and
declaring an emergency. (i.e., Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 94, Townsite
Addition No.5, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma)

• An Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning of said property and
declaring an emergency. (i.e., A tract of land in Lots 16, 17 and 18, in Townsite Addition
No.2, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma.)

SCHEDULED BUSINESS

1. Consider and accept presentation of the Audited Financial Statements and Independent
Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2009. (Rheba Henderson of Hulme
Rahhal Henderson Inc.)

Executive Summary
Consider and act upon accepting the annual audit for FY 08-09 for the City of McAlester.



May 11,2010 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 3 of6

2. Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign an Engagement Letter with
Crawford and Associates, P.C., for the period from July 1,2010 through June 30, 2011.
(Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

Executive Summary
This agenda item involves an Engagement Letter covering the accounting services that Crawford and Associates, P.c., might
provide during the period from July 1,2010 through June 30, 2011.

3. TABLED - Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract upon City
Attorney review with Allied Waste Services of Alderson for the City of McAlester's
solid waste collection, removal and disposal. (Peter J Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
Motion to accept the Allied Waste Services (AWS) of Alderson proposal subject to review by the City Attorney.

4. Consider, and act upon, an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1843 which established
the "Flood Hazard Overlay District and Flood Damage Prevention"; providing for a
severability clause; and declaring an emergency. (John C. Modzelewski, PE)

Executive Summary
A motion to approve the amended ordinance.

5. Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign a Remote Deposit Services
Agreement with First National Bank and Trust Co. of McAlester, Inc., dated April 22,
2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

Executive Summary
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Remote Deposit Services Agreement with First National Bank and Trust
Co. of McAlester, Inc., pending approval of the contract by the City Attorney.

6. Discuss, consider, and act upon, authorizing approval for the three attached budget
transfers for the FY 09-10. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

Executive Summary
Motion to approve the three attached budget transfers prepared and approved by staff.

7. Consider, and act upon, a motion to approve the City of McAlester newly elected council
members to attend a state required institute for municipal officials consisting of eight (8)
hours training. (Peter J Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
This is required by state law for newly elected municipal official to receive this training.

8. TABLED - Discuss, consider, and act upon, taking action to resolve the present audit
findings regarding the investments of the Cemetery Care Perpetual Trust. (Gayla Duke,
Chief Financial Officer)

Executive Summary
Motion to take action and vote upon a method that wil\ satisfy the audit findings regarding the investments of the
Trustee for the Cemetery Care Perpetual Trust.



May 11,2010 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 4 of6

9. Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance authorizing the City of McAlester to proceed with
the annexation of additional lands adjacent to the City. (Dahlgren Annexation) (Peter J.
Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
A motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning C-5 (Highway Commercial and Commercial
Recreation District) and declaring an emergency.

10. Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance authorizing the City of McAlester to proceed with
the annexation of additional lands adjacent to the City. (Stipe Annexation) (Peter J.
Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
A motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning R-3 (Multi Family Residential) and declaring an
emergency.

11. Presentation of Proposed Annual Operating Budget for FY 2010/2011 and Budget
Message. (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager)

Executive Summary
Presentation on Proposed Annual Operating Budget for FY 2010/2011 and Budget Message. The recommendation
is to set a Special Meeting and Work Session date to review the 2010111 Preliminary Budget.

NEW BUSINESS
Any matter not known or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time of posting the Agenda in
accordance with Sec. 311.9, Title 25, Oklahoma State Statutes.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY CITY COUNCIL

RECESS COUNCIL MEETING

CONVENE AS McALESTER AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Majority of a Quorum requiredfor approval

• Approval of the Minutes from the April 27, 2010, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending May 11,
2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)



May 11,2010 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page50f6

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 1, regarding the presentation of the
Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 2009. (Rheba Henderson of Hulme Rahhal Henderson Inc.)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 2, authorizing the Mayor to sign an
Engagement Letter with Crawford and Associates, P.c., for the period from July 1,2010
through June 30, 2011. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

ADJOURN MAU.

CONVENE AS McALESTER PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY
Majority of a Quorum required for approval

• Approval of the Minutes from the April 27, 2010, Regular Meeting of the McAlester
Public Works Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending May 11,
2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 1, regarding the presentation of the
Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report for Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 2009. (Rheba Henderson of Hulme Rahhal Henderson Inc.)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 2, authorizing the Mayor to sign an
Engagement Letter with Crawford and Associates, P.C., for the period from July 1,2010
through June 30, 2011. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, authorizing the Mayor to sign a
contract upon City Attorney review with Allied Waste Services of Alderson for the City
of McAlester's solid waste collection, removal and disposal. (Peter J. Stasiak, City
Manager)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, an ordinance amending Ordinance
No. 1843 which established the "Flood Hazard Overlay District and Flood Damage
Prevention"; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency. (John C.
Modzelewski, PE)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 5, authorizing the Mayor to sign a
Remote Deposit Services Agreement with First National Bank and Trust Co. of
McAlester, Inc., dated April 22, 2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 6, authorizing approval for the three
attached budget transfers for the FY 09-10. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer)



May 11,2010 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 6 of6

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 9, an Ordinance authorizing the City
of McAlester to proceed with the annexation of additional lands adjacent to the City.
(Dahlgren Annexation) (Peter J Stasiak, City Manager)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 10, an Ordinance authorizing the City
of McAlester to proceed with the annexation of additional lands adjacent to the City.
(Stipe Annexation) (Peter J Stasiak, City Manager)

ADJOURN MPW A.

RECONVENE COUNCIL MEETING

ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION

I certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on this __ day of __ 2010 at __ a.m./ p.m. as required by
law in accordance with Section 303 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that the appropriate news media was contacted.
As a courtesy, this agenda is also posted on the City of McAlester website: www.cityofmcalester.com.

Cora M. Middleton, City Clerk

http://www.cityofmcalester.com.


Council Chambers
Municipal Building
April 22, 2010

The McAlester City Council met in Special session on Thursday, April 22, 2010, at 6:00 P.M.
after proper notice and agenda was posted, April 20, 2010, at 4:59 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Priddle called the meeting to order.

ROLLCALL
Council Roll Call was as follows:

Present: Chris Fiedler, Steve Harrison, John Browne, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin & Mayor
Priddle
Louis Smitherman
Kevin E. Priddle, Mayor

Absent:
Presiding:

Staff Present: Pete Stasiak, Acting City Manager; John Modzelewski, City Engineer/Public
Works Director; Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer; Jim Lyles, Police Chief;
and William J. Ervin, City Attorney; Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Mayor Priddle stated that there was one (l) item on the agenda tonight which was an Executive
Session. He then asked for a motion to go into Executive Session. Councilman Garvin moved to
recess the Special Meeting for an Executive Session to discuss the employment, hiring,
appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining, or resignation of any individual salaried public
officer or employee: City Manager, in accordance with Title 25, Section 307.B.1. The motion
was seconded by Councilman Harrison. There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as
follows:

AYE: Councilman Fiedler, Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Priddle
NAY: None

Mayor Priddle declared the motion carried and the Special Meeting was recessed at 6:02 P.M.

Executive Session

• Title 25, Section 307 (B) (1) - Discuss the employment, hiring, appointment, promotion,
demotion, disciplining, or resignation of any individual salaried public officer or
employee: City Manager.

Councilman Smitherman arrived at 6:05 P.M.



Reconvene into Open Session

• Consider, and act upon, the employment, hiring, appointment, promotion, demotion,
disciplining, or resignation of any individual salaried public officer or employee: City
Manager.

The Special Meeting was reconvened at 7:23 P.M. Mayor Priddle reported that the Council had
recessed the Special Meeting for an Executive Session to discuss the employment, hiring,
appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining, or resignation of any individual salaried public
officer or employee: City Manager, in accordance with Title 25, Section 307.B.1. Only that
matter was discussed, no action was taken, and the Council returned to open session at 7:23
P.M., and this constituted the Minutes of the Executive Session. Mayor Priddle then asked if
there was any motion regarding the discussion of the Executive Session.

Vice-Mayor Browne moved to hire Pete Stasiak as City Manager conditional to the completion
of the employment contract. The motion was seconded by Councilman Fiedler. There was no
discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman, Fiedler & Mayor Priddle
NAY: None

Mayor Priddle declared the motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Council, Councilman Smitherman moved for
adjournment. The motion was seconded by Councilman Fiedler. There was no discussion, and
the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Councilman Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman, Fiedler, Harrison & Mayor Priddle
NAY: None

Mayor Priddle declared the motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 7:25 P.M.

Kevin E. Priddle, Mayor
ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, City Clerk

2



CLAIMS FROM APRIL 28, 2010
THRU

May 11,2010



5/04/2010 1:46 PM
PACKET: 05139 :::LAIMSFOR 5/11/10
VENDOR SET: O·
FuND GENERAL fUND

VENDOR ITSM #

01-A00026 AT & T lONG DISTANCE
1-201004221300

01-A00033 AT&,
1-201004281307

01-A00170 ADA ~APER CO.
1-306032-1

01-A00267 A1RGAS
1-106313484
1-106343649
1-106975327

01-A00362 ALLEGIANCE COMMUNICATIO
I-4118/10

Ol-A007S~ A:WOCDS
1-3475829

01-A00753 AT:::OINTERNATIONAL
1-:0272492

1-861632

01-800150 3EA~~S GOO~YEAR T:RES
I-MC-I71476
I-MC-I72 097
1-MC-I72305
I-MC-I72929
I-MC-17 292 9

01-B00180 BEMAC SUPPLY
I-SI515793.001
I-SI515929.001
1-SI517406.001
1-S1518582.001
I-SI519312.001

01-B00486 BRADELY RAY Ih~~~
1-201005031339

01-B00490 3RIGGS PRINTING
1-56292
1-56297

81-300497 BRfu\~O~ SECK
1-201005031336

REGULAR DEP~~TME~T PAYMENT REGISTER PAGE:

GIL ACCOJN~ Kk~E DESCRI?~IO;"'T CHECK#

01 -5215313 ~ELEPHONE UTI 800133164 - LONG DISTANCE BILL 050298 :77.34

0: -52153:5 TELEPHONE UTI 91842318025301 - TRUNK CALLS 050306

01 -3343203 050312 78.REPAIRS & MAL CLE.~NING SCPPLISS

01 -5432202 050313
050313
050313

27.37OPERATING SUP OXYGS~
OPERATING SUP OXYGE~
OPERATING SUP MONTELY/YRLY LEASES

0: -54322C2 80.04

01 -5542202 43.20

01 -5865204 050314 205.90SMALL TOOLS

01 -551,8283 050316 14.77

01 -586~283 050317 588.00REPAIRS & MAL ~OWE~S fOR SEOP

01 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAl INTAKE Y~~TPOLJ POR P-2 050320 281,.00

-5862283 REPAIRS & VAl TIRSS ~'OK BH-2 050321 512.<;0
rv- -5362203 REPAIRS & MAl T:l:?ES FO? S-1 050321 S04.00uC

u_ -5862203 REPAIRS & MAl TIRSS FO? (;-8 050321 501,.00
01 -5862203 RSPAIRS & MAL TIRES ,OR G-3 -,RON", 050321 374.70
01 -5862203 REPAIRS & MAI T=:RES fOR G-3-REAR 050321 712.1.2

-55<;231.6 REPAIRS & YJU 1v:ISC ?SPAIR & MAINT ITEMS 050322 8.10
01 -551,2316 REPAIRS & MAI M:SC R,,?AIR & YAINc ITEHS 050322 6.76
01 -55~2316 REPAI?S & MAL Iv:ISC RE?AI? & MAINT ITEHS 050322 54.~O

-551,8203 REPAIRS & VAL S::"ECT?=C.n.~, ?~'JGS, WIRING 050322 321.06
-551,2316 REPAIRS MAL :1ISC ?EPA:? & MAINT ITEMS 050322 6.53

01 -551,4308 CONTRACT LABO UH?I?E ,SSS - 7 GAMES 050327 :'40.00

01 -5211202 OPERATI~G SJP 1 CAS" WI~GOW EhVSLOPES
OPERATING SUP 3CSI~SSS :::AR~S

050328
050328

183.00
69.50

rv- -SS4t;308 CONTRACT LABO 'jXPIRS ,'SES - 4 Gfu"SS 050329 80.00



5/04/2010 1:46 P~
PACKET: 05139 CLA:MS FOR 5/11/10
VENDOR SEl:
FUND GENSRA~ F'JKCl

VENDOR :TEM #KAME

01-C00046 C D W GOVSRNMENT, INC
I-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
:-SLK685 :
I-SLK6851
:-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLQ7218
:-SLQ7218

01-COOIOO CLSET
1-20:004221297

01-C00320 CE~~E~?C=G~ ENERGY ARKL
1-201004221302
:-201004281308
1-201004281308

01-C00669 CONlIKSNTAI RESEARCH CO
I-331916-CRC-1

0:-C00840 CRAWcO~D & ASSOC=ATES
1-201005031340

1-751581

01-D00540 DOLESE BROIHERS
1-37200

01-E00219 EKGIISH Jfu~ITORIAL
:-18339

01-S00266 SRVI~ & SRVIN A~TORNEYS
I-MAY 2010

01-FOO:40 FIRE SERVICE TRAINING
1-18070

01-F00170 FIRSl NAIIONAL BAKK
1-5/11110-#133

1-5/111l0-#135

01-F00222 FLOODSERV INC

1-4239300

01-G00010 G & C RENTAL CENTER, IN

REGULAR DS?ARTMEKT PAYMENT REGISTER

G/~ ACCCC~~ ~AME

C1 -52~1202
0: -52122C2
0: -52:3202
01 -52~32C2

01 -52~3202
C~ -5862202
01 -5265202
n~ -58652C2V"

0: -521:202
01 -5213202

01 -z ice

OPERATING SUP 1499820-Q7553XD 2 PA
OPSRATING SUP 313166-C7~:5X TONER
OPERATING SUP :608184-Cr.:SC5X TONER
OPERATING SUP 156636-;;?60 BLK
O?ERATING SU? :i.4E3749-E?6CXL CO~OR
OPERATING SUP 1436690-92/93 IKK
OPERATING SUP 148475I-90eXI BLK
OPERATING S0P 1484750-90:XI COLOR
OPERATING SUR 1608184-CES505X 'lONE
OPERATING SUP 533900-Q26:2A TONSR

CLEET ?AYABLE CLEST cESS - Y~RCH 2010

PAGS:

CHSCK#

050330 287.:1
050330 88.26
05033C 632.40
050330 62.06
050330 39.76
050330 67.88
050330 62.06
050330 56.24
050330 lS8.lC
050330 75.65

05C299 :C,935.53

-:,2:5-3-=-4 GAS UTILITY 13:3~275 - 802 E HARRISON 050300 :36. 12
0: -52:'5314 GAS UTILL~'Y 23~58:9 - 3-=-5 E K?-EBS 050307 15.79
01 -52::"5314 GAS UTILITY 6855:878 - MULLIKS PARK 05C307 2I. CO

01 -56532:3

uC -52:5302

0: -5653215

01 -5547203

0: -5542203

0: -543:33:

CL -52155:'0

01 -52::"5510

01 -543:2C3

SAfETY SUPPLI FIRST AIJ KITS,

CONSULTANTS

050332 .29.7:5

CONSUllI~G FSES - 09 FINANCIAL 050333 597.50

AWARDS PROGRA PLAQUE FOR COURT CLERK

REPAIRS & ~I LOAJ OF GRPYSL

REPAIRS & MAl cANITOR:AL S0??IISS

CONSULTANTS ATTORNEY FEES

EMPLOYEE T~V PROXOl=OKA~ SXAMS

LEASE PAYMENT LEASE #:33
LEASE PAYMENT ~EASE # 135

REPAIRS & MAl CAR?ET CLE~,"NG & WATER

050337 50.95

050338 66.72

050341 108.69

050342 2,S80.CO

C50345 2,550.0C

050347 5,185.00
050349 478.95

050350 6:5.0C



5/04/2010

PACKET:
VEI'DOR SET:

1:46 ?M

FUNe C?I'ERAL ?e~D

VENDOR ITEM #
=========-==========================================================================================-===-==========~======-=========

NJlJ1?

O:-GOOOIO C C RENiAL CENTER, IN
;:-3212
1-3595
:-3622

01-C00140 GARR?TT :ORC~~ ~CCLENDO
1-201005031337

01-G00490 GRISSOM I~P~EMENT INC
1-:30102
1-137164

01-1001:C IM??ESS Or~=CE SUPPLY
1-030451
:-030471
1-030517

01-100120 II'CODE
;:-163875
1-164154

01-100140 1NDIfu, NA~10N WHOLESALE
1-5125993
1-5125993
1-5125993
1-5127534

01-100220 INTERNAT'L. ASSOCIATION
1-201004281310

01-100223 INT?RNAT'L CODE COUNCIL
1-1203023
1-2010REEW

1-99819

1-201005031338

01-J00338 JOB CONSIRCCTION CO INC
1-026687
1-026688
1-026689
1-026690
1-026691
1-026774
1-026775
1-026776

REGCLAR DEPART~ENT PAYMENT REGISTER

GIL AccoeNT N~V.E

continued
8: -5547203
01 -55::;7283
rv- ~S547283

01 -5862203
01 -5862203

01 -5652202

,,1_ -:,32";..202

01 -5~3l202

01 -5225349
01 -5213336

0: -58E~2C3
,,~ -5862283

_ -5862203

01 -5652330

01 -5652202
01 -5652330

0: -5862203

01 -5544308

01 -5865218
01 -5865218
(\" -58652:'-8

01 -58652:8
01 -5865218
01 -5865218
01 -5865218
01 -5865218

DESCRIPTION

REPAIRS & MAl TRACHOE RENTA~
REPAIRS & MAl TRACEO~ RE~TAL
REPAIRS & MAl TRACHOE REN~AL

CONTRAC~ l~BO ~MPIRE ?~ES - 6 GAMES

REPAIRS & ~AI 3EA~:~G, 3JS~I~G, SEAL
REPAIRS & MAl V-3ELT ,OR EXPO MOWER

OPERATING SUP OF,ICE S0??~IES
OPERATING S~? MISe S~??LIES
OPERATING SUP OF,ICE S0?~~lES

INCODE SOFTWA NETWORK S~?POR~ ~EE
FEES ONLIXE 3ILL PAY & MAINT

REPAIRS & MAl ?APER TOWELS
RE?AIRS & MAl BATHROOM T1SSUE
REPAIRS & MAl PAPER ~OWF.LS & TISSCE-FRE
OPERATING S~P OPESP.TIXG S~P?~IES

DUES & seBSCR ME~3ERS~IP u0ES

OPERATING sep 3UI~JING P?R~ITS
JUES & S~BSCR MEM3ERSHI?

REPAIRS & Pu~= PJ CARS ,RONT ENJ ALIGNME

CONTRACT LABO eM?IRE ~EES - 4 G~V.ES

STREET REPAIR AS?EALT ,OR ST PATCH
ST'REET RE?AIR AS2f'.i;LTFOR ST PATCH
STREET REPAIR ASPHA~T tOR ST PATCH
STREET REPAI~ ASP~ALI ~OR ~l ?A:CH
STREET RE?AIR AS?EALT ,OR ST PATCH
S7REET REPAIR ASPEALT tOR ST PATCH
STREET REPAIR ASPHA~T FOR Se ?ATCH
STREET REPAIR AS?HJI.LI ~OR ST ?ATCH

?AGE:

CHECK#

05035:
050351
05035:

050352

05C35~
050354

050358
050358
050358

050309
050359

050360
050360
050360
050360

05036=C

050362

050362

050364

050365

050366
050366
050366
050366
050366
050366
050366
050366

1';60.00

2"=8.08

336.84

~.20.00

~,L;63.58

157.37
35.::C4

9.99

2GC.CC
208.00

::",C05.0C
454.50

3.43
308.78

~85.60
1CJ.00

255.95

80.00

225.77
474.05

.36
515.85
264.28

29: .7:
829.76
325.47



5/04/201C 1:~6 PX
PACKET: "'-39C~=MS FOR 5/~,-1/10
VENDOR SET:
tUNC SSKEAAL FUND

VENDOR NAME ITEM #

01-~00338 :OB CO~STRUCT:ON CO INC
:-026777
T-0267'78
:-026779

1-026/80
I-026819
:-026820
1-02682"
1-026822
1-026823

01-L00078 L~~3E~~~SCrtA~ICA~ INC
I-I00217

:-100297

Oi-L00324 LIBSRTY ABSTRACT
I-5823-10
1-5824-10

C~-L00422 ~,OW:::'S CRt:DI'='SERVICES
:-02567

1-09774

0~-:100C69 y..r.~KK EXMONS ?EOTOGRAPHY
:-201005031327

01-M00095 MOY TIRS
I-:OO

OI-M00460 X:TCEAEL C D:STRIBUTINS
1<882220

=-91696028
1-96186048
1-96194955
1-96196032

Ol-M00593 MOST ~S?SKJA3LE FOUNTAI
I-:KvI8226

01-MC0020 XC CLAINS LUMBSR CO.
C-1129426
:-001128945
1-001129732
1-1128917
=-J.I29424
:-1129511

RESUL~R CS?ARTMEKT PAYMENT REGISTER

conti:1ued
01 -5865218
01 -58652i8

-5865218
("\1 - 5 8

01 -5865218
01 -58652"8
01 -58652:8

01 -5865218
01 -58652:8

0: -5548223

0: -5652202

01 -5652202

-5548203

O~ -58622C3

c; -55·'-;4202

01

-5'-;32202

V-c -55482C3

I\~ -58654C2

01 -5865218
v_ -5865218
u~ -5865402
C1 -586::402

-5865402

STRE!':TRSPAI? F5?CiAL'= ,0" ST ?ACC'J
STREET REPA:" AS?CiALT ,OR S~ ?ATCE
STREET RE?AIR AS?::F.:T :'OR S', ?ATCH

ST?EET RSPAIR .A.SPt-1F..=-.~ E"O? S':' PATCE
STREET RE?AIR AS?HA;.~ "OR ST ?ATCCi
STREET REPA:R ASPCiAL~ "OR S, ?ATCE
STREET REPAIR AS?HALT ,OR ST ?ATCH
STREET REPA:R ASPCiAL~ S~ FATCE

REPAIRS & M],: RE?A:R O~ L=a "~IR COND
RE?AIRS & VAL REPAIR O~ L:S A:R COND
REPA:RS & MP.= R[FA=~ J~ =-.:3AIR CO~D

OPERA~ING SUP 30e' ?P.J=CS ~S?ORTS
OPERATING S0P 3CC' R!\2=~S ~EPO?TS

O?E~TING SUP 2 ?~S~ ~CW2~S
REPAIRS & MAI YAI~~ 'ATER:ALS

M~SCEL~NEOCS FOYS? ?~C~C'S-COUNCILMEN

REPAIRS & ~AI AC O~ cKI~ C0 ?OLICE CAR

OPERATING SUP :CP CREP~ POR COKCESSION

CLOTHING ALLO P~LSE OX:ME~ER
REPAIR & VAI~ MF.TTRESS - P~SU~CE COT
REPAIR & MAIK PlJLSS OX:~:E:~ER
OPERA':'ING SC? MEJICA::'"S~?P=-'IES

REPAIRS & MF.l PAR~S ,OR FOJ~TA:KS

CAPI?AD PROJE ?~~=NG ~~1TSR~ALS
STREST RE?AIR PORX=~S YA,ER:ALS

CAPI7A~ ?ROJE fRJ~~=KG Y~TERIA~S
CA?ITAL ?ROJ" ;;'"u'\.'CI~SYA:'ER:F"LS
CAPITAL ?ROcE FR]l~I~G YA~S,,:ALS

PASE:

CCi!':CK#

050366
050366
050366
050366
050366
050366

050367
050367

050367

050371
0503';1
050371

050372

C~0372

050373
050374

050378

050380

050382

050382
050382
050382

050383

050386
050386

050386
050386

050386
050386

: 6.28
3:9.67
295.40

998.7J

926.73
397.82
177 .63
34S.04

3'-;1.47

i , ::.8 4 . 'I]

254.42
255.00

~75.CO
:75.

:27.18

385.95

.00

.95
213.
34~.9"
53C.55

35.98-
:6.89
~6.78

209.21
55.97

:62.09



5/041

PACKET:
": 4 6 P~

05:39 CLAl~S FOR 5/11/10

VENDOR SET: 01
FUND GE:-JERA:OFUND

VENDOR ITEM #
========================~=========~=====================================~=====-==~====-==-==-=======-===============-===============

01-MC0020 MC C~INS ~CMBER CO.
1-1129682

Ol-MCOC9S ~CA~LS~~R FENCE
1-001529
1-27678

1-318865
1-318866
1-318867
1-318903

01-MC0130 MC AIESTER IRON & METAL
:'-7190

01-NOO:53 NATIONA~ SAFETY COUNCIL
1-5572485

0:-N003:2 NORT~ 69 ACTO SALVAGE
1-0:002546
:-01002577

01-0eC07e OSIE~ MOWE~ SEOP
:-00112978
1-00113630

01-000075 0' REI~;""V.0.010PARTS
1-0230-228149
1-0230-228960
1-0230-234526

01-0002:9 OK~n. BUREAe OF NARCOTIC
:'-201004221299

01-000245 OKLA CORRECTIONS INDUS.
1-23165

0:-000427 OKLA eNIFORM BOILDING C
1-201005041343

CI-COCS3C O~~-OK M~~IC=PAL LSAGUE
1-035866

01-000595 OSBI
1-201004221298
1-201004221298

01-P00133 PATRO~ TECHNOLOGY

RLGU~~ DE?A?:ME~: ?AY~ENT REGISTER

CHECK#

continued
0: -S86SL;02 050386

0: -5543203 REPAIRS & MAl 2 WAlK IEROCG~ GATES
REPAIRS & MAl RE?AlR ~E~CE

050387
0503870: -5547203

PAGr:::

l08.7e

620.CO
325.00

v" -52:C3C2 CONSULTANTS/I LEGAl ?sr::s 050388 1,268 .50
O' -52:83C2 CONSOLTfu'lTS/L ~EGA=- Fr=SS 050388 " r 3"76.GO

v ~ -52l0302 CONSDLTMTS/L :OEGAl FEES 050388 ~, 333. 00
-52:03C2 CONSULTANTS/L LSGAL :::'SES 050388 516.00

REPAIRS & PAL PA;ERlF.~S R;';P,l\IRSIGN 050389

05039:SAFETY SUPPLI DOC KII, COCRSE GU:'DE

r-;-: -53622C3 050392
0503920: -58622C3

REPA:'RS & MAl FRON- CONTROl ARM
REPAIRS & PP.I '?P.~S~ISSION ~OR SB-7

-543l2J~ 050395
050395

SMAL:O TOOLS
SMALL TOO~S

CEA=K SAW ~E?A=RS
01 -543:204 CHAIN SAW REPAIRS

0"'--543:3:6 REPAIRS & C'ffiIADTO ?P3:'S
O' -343:3:6 REPAIRS & MAr AJTO ?A~TS
0: -543"'-3:6 REPAIRS & ;VAl AD-O ?i\r< ~ s

030396
050396
050396

Cl -2103 OBOI PAYABLE ~~~0 EOcCA~lON ~EES-MARCH 2010 030302

0: -5542202 OPERATING SUP REFIACEME~I OESK 050397

~ -5652330 DUES & seBSCR JcRISOICIlONAL ENTITY PERMIT 050400

0-l. -52~J330 DUES & SUBSCR CONF~RE~CE - LEADERSHIP 050401

0: -2"'-0:
u~ -2~02

AFIS PAYABLE AFIS - VARC'! 2010
FORENSICS PAY FORE~S=C - PJL~CH 2010

050303
050303

73.45

.95

65.00
725.00

59.76
:7.06

7.79
39.37
82.26

.00

659.22

72.00

85.00

5,887.49
5,854.57



5/04/20:0 ::46 P~
PACKET: 05:39 GAI~S ,'OR 5111110
VENDOR SET: 01
FUND GENERAL FUND

VENDOR ITEM #

1-24573
1-24574
I-26138
1-26602
1-26603
1-26604
1-26605
1-26788
1-28:35

01-P00250 PETT, CAS~
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
;-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329
1-201005031329

01-P00560 PeSLIC SERVICE/AEP
1-201004281309
1-201004281309
1-201004281309

01-Q00017 QuALIT, ~~ITORIAL SUPP
1-003098

Ol-ROCC9C ~~ =~c

1-20:005041342

01-R00482 ROBERTS TESTING SERVICE
1-902356

Ol-RC0498 ?A:N:S?'S PRIDE
1-64975

1-64977

01-S00250 S~~RJ\TON ~=DWES7 CITY H
1-139171

G/~ ACC00~: ~AME

cor.t i nue c

-54
'0-,- -543::'287

0: -54312:]7
01 -5431207
01 -5431207

C::' -:)3.22282

0::' -5E532::'~
0: -5:01033:

-::5<;233::'

:0331

01 -5322202

'0;" -5·2::'5313

0::"-5S~2202

0:' -S~3=-2C3

01 -5543316

0:1 -52::"333:1

JESCRI?,?IC:\

CLOTHING ALLO CNIFORlS OROERS

CLOTHI~G ALLO ~NlrO~~ OR0~RS
CLOTHING ALLO UNIFORlS CROERS
CLOTHING ALLO UNlFORlS OROERS
CLOTHING ALLO JNIFCR~ OR~ERS
CLOTHING ALLO 0NI~C?X ORJERS
CLOTHING ALLO CNIFOR~ OROERS
CLOTHING ALLO CNIFORlS OROSRS
CLOTHING ALLO JN1FOR~ OR2ERS

OPERATI~G SJP :OOJ =O~ JOG ?OJND
E~PLOYEE T~V RSIMB ~:~EAS~
EMPLOYES :RAV ::zr::MB :.Z1?? ::::OX:AACTTRAVSL
EMPLOYEE TRAV RE=~3 CJaG GCl~T TRAVEL
AWAR;JS PROGRA CA"E & P:;:\C"COKGRAT PARTY
EMPLOYEE :RAV SJCCESS:O~ TRA=~=NG
E~PLOYEE TRAV PICK JF :REES ,OR PARKS

?AG.t::

CHECK#

050402

050402
050402
050402
050402
050402
050402
050402
050402

050403
050403
050403
050403
050403
050403
050403
050403
050403

EMPLOYSE TRAV REI~B ~1:E:AGE PRIVATE VEHICLE 050403

050423

EMPLOYEE TRAV ADV ACClOEN, I~vEST SCHOOL
OPERATING SUP FOOJ FOR ;JOG POJND
EMPLOYEE TRAV REIMS ~EALS SPANlSH SF CLASS

ELECTRIC U=I~ 95242253705 - PO/NARC
ELECTRIC UTIL 95966977506 - KOYAR PARK

050403

0504C3

ELECTRIC JTIL 95722742806 - ~AVILION @ KOMAR 050308

050308
050308

OPERATING SC? :~~:TO~:A~ SJP?~ISS

DAJVAGES

REPAIRS & MAl ANKJA: P:;~P ~EST

REPAIRS & MAl rASOR-PAI:\T EFF :,EE POOL
REPAIRS & YAI PAIN: "J=C~lSOK POOL

EMPLOYEE TRAV EO:E: ,OR SPRING CONF

058404

050405

050408

050;'09
050409

0504:4

45.08

39.75
76.50

85.CJC
61.00
52.75

:C3.0C
140.00

29.96
34 .75

5:.
"..52.97

49.27

47 .97

:57.62
22.00
:3.00

~C5.09
:4.70

63.42
36.68
56.06

386.70

:92.0S

608.00

900.00
300.00

:.oe.oo



5/04/2010 1:46?M
PACKE':":
VENDOR SET:

05139 CLAIY:S FOR 5/11/10

FUND GEOlERA~ FOND

VENDOR ~TEM #

:-29

Ol-S005~ SOUT~WES: COKST COJr,S c
1-#117

01-S00726 STA?~ES BUSINESS ADVru~T
1-3134952660
=-68570
1--14920

C1-50C77C S:A:;W=~~ COV~UNICA1ION
1-1762

01-TOOOI0 >. E. ROGERS LUMBER CO.
1-413287
1-413443
1-414461

01

1005031335

01-T00554 :~=-~ECH I~C
I-INV031223

1-76842

01-0C013C ~NI~~~ SAFETY & C~I~S
1-201005041341

Cl-v.10CO~C h'P.~YP.R."': COMM'JNI7Y BRC

:-00678
1-01610
--01882
1-04040
1-04732
1-05924
1-07523
1-09834

O:-W00250 WE~~~E~ ~ETALS
:-lSlO

01-W00270 WELTE E~ECTR1CAL SUPPLY
1-S1201344.001
I-S1208758.001
I-S1209962.001
I-S1210030.001

PAGS:

CfiSCK#

cor.t i r.uec

050416 =-,095.80

Cl -S652330 050418

o=- -5~3:2C= OPSRATING SG? OCCr"lCSSC??=.C=~S 050420 299 95
01 -551'; O?ERAT Il\G SCP M:::SC CF:-=::::~;- SC??=-,IES 050420 67 81

-55~ OPSRATING SUP Jv:ISC O"lCE S'J:??~I~S 050420 127 06

v_ -554=202 050421 90.::-0O?ERAl'ING SCE RS? BATTE?lES 2-vJAY RADIO

,," -5542202 OPERATIOlG SUP YAS':'E? :.cc:<s ,OR PARKS 050422 .88
0: OPERATING S0? !vI,AS,:,r::::z :0:::,,3FOR PARKS 05'0422 ti4 9S

-S542202 OPERATING SUEJ EAST"R =--'CC2(~ ?OR ?AR"S 050422 53. 94

-5S4t:;3CS 050423 240.:::0

050424 285.0[::::ONTRACT8C SE E~S 3=~~=~G ,FE

050429REPAIRS & ~~= 3~l??=~G :::~ARGSS 7.39

WORKER'S COXP ~SD:CA~ 3:=--'=--'S~/12-4/27 050430 2,929.62

01 -5U,-202 OPSRATING sup s~:P?=--::::S CS0432 4:.82
OPERATING SU? SJP?:":::r.:s 050432 i-v. 6
OPSRATING SUP S'cP?~l"S 05002 :93.38
OP"RATING sr~:J ~-=SC C?r::?.1'.~-=:~c S:JP?LIES 050432 39. 15
OPSRATING SUP S~?P=--'=:::S 050432 :35. 62
OPERATING S::JP SUP?=-=r::S 050432 19. 94
OPSRA,ING SCP s:~??=--.=:::s 050432 .20
SAFETY SUP?LI CAS:::S GJI.~ORA:;E 050432 " " 7 60

lJ-L -543::"2C2

V-l- -S43::"2C2

v-'- -SES32::"3

-5548283 RE?AIRS & YP.I G:::L~?E~ BA~LAR0S 050433 3:5.00

01 -5542223 REPAIRS & MAl X:LS:::: ~EPA=? & MAINl' ITSMS 050435 124 .55
O' -5548203 RSPAIRS & l'flAI S~:::C"?RICA=--' S:;PPLIES 050435 16.00
01 -55482S3 REPAIRS & Ml\I E=-:::C:?:CF.:'" SC?PLJ:ES 050435 L7 .10
0::" -5542283 RSPAIRS & MAl MIse R,,?AIR & YAINT ITEMS 050435 40. 10



5/04/20:0 ::,6 P~
PACKET: 2S:39 CLAlYiS FOR 5/11/10
VENDOR SET:
FUND

VEK:JOR

Ol-W00270 WE=~~ ~:ECTRICAL SJPPLY
I-S1211294.001
I-S:211739.001
l-Sl21:941.001

01-X00020 XEROX COR~-~~.JOR ACCOUN
1-800550010

REGU~R D~?AR:ME~Y PA~XSNT RES:STER

con t im..:ed

01 -55':;82J3
0: -55,8203

-5548283

REPAIRS & )'AI E=-JEC:?=CA=. SL?PI..::i.ES
REPAIRS MAl EL~C:;':CA~ SUP?~:~S
REPAIRS & VAl E~FC,RI .:»: S::J?PLIES

FUND 0:

CEECK~

050ns
050435
050435

OS007

:'OTAL:

PASE:

375.0C
2C.47

5.76

1,699.73

83,292.05



5/04/20:0 1:46?~
PACKET:
VE:-JDOElS;::-;-:
?UND

ITEM #

I-OB24001
I-OB24002
I-OC09062
I-OC09064
I-OC09070
1-0Dd06:
1-0013062
I-OD13064
I-ODd065
1-0014029
I-CODY EDWARDS
I-~HCK MITCHE~L

1-106954985
1-106975326
1-:06975328

CI-ACC362 A~~~S=k~C~ COY~~NICA1IO
I-APRIL 2010

01-A00570 A~ERICA\ SOC FARMS

CI-AOC75~ A~ACOJS

1-304
1-5031

1-3453335
1-3469586
1-309248
1-3479255
1-3484394

1-858688
1-860460
1-860461
1-860462
1-860611
1-860729
1-860794
1-860844
1-860874
1-860903
1-860904
1-860908
1-860909
1-860942
1-860948

REGULAR DEPARTXEKI PAYMENT REGISTER

02 -5~n!;3C!;

02 -';97004
02 -59743=:':'

02 -5974304
02 -5974304

C2 -S97!;3~>~

-5974384

02 -597533:
02 -597533:

3283

02 -5975·222

02 -:J975332

02 -597

02 -5975207
02 -5973203

u.:. -58622C3
-5862203
-5862203
-5862203

02 -586222·]

02 62203
02 -';862203
02 -';974316

-';862203
02 -38622C3
C2 -5262203
02 -5862203
02 -';862203
02 -5862203

LAB TESTING XOKTHIY ~~B IESTIKG
MONIHLY IP.B IESTIKSLAB TESTINS

LAB TESTI:-JG
LAB TESIlt'S
LAB TESTING
LlIB TESTING

LAB TEST It'S IESIIKS-XONIHLY PLUS EXTR
lAB TESTING MONIHIY LAB IESTIKS
LAB TESTING MONT ElY LAB IESTING
EMPLOYEE TRF~ 0 WATER lICENSE CLASS
EMP~OYEE T?AV D WATE~ IICE~SE ClASS

RSPAIRS & MAl RENTAl CK 30IIIES
REPAIRS & Vm: ?ENTA~ C~ 30~TLSS
~EPAIRS & VAl MAINI CK ~P~KS - OXYGEN

OPERATING SUP INcER';":I - "ERE,ORD ~:-J

LAKD IMPElOVEM
l~D IMPROVEX 4 ?A~~EIS SO~

REPAIRS & MA= MIse S~??:=~S
REPAIRS & YAI ~=sc SC??~=ss
REPAIRS & MA= ~=s= S~??:=~s
CLOTHING AL~O 300TS - ~. COKJI:
REPAIRS & MAl TOOLS, 3ATTE~IES, BRSHES

REPAIRS & VAl Sv?P~IES ,CR PLA~T
REPAIRS & MAl S~~.:~ A~~O ?A~~S
REPAIRS & VAl SYJ~~~ A~~O PARTS
R~PAIRS & MAl SYAL: AG:C ?ARTS
REPAIRS & MA= S~~~L A~~O PAR:S
REPAIRS & YP.I SMA:~ A~~O ?ARTS
REPAIRS & MP.I SVA~L ?A~TS

REPAIRS & MAl S~P?~=~S ?OR ?~T
REPAIRS & VAl SV~.L~ A~IC PA?IS
REPAIRS & MAl SYALL A~TO PARTS
REPAIRS & VAl SMALl A~TO PARTS
REPAIRS & MAl SYAIL A~TO PA~IS
REPAIRS MP.I SVA~I AcTO ?ARTS
REPAIRS & MA: SYAI' AJTO DARIS

PAGE:

C'-IECK#

0503L
05031I
0503L
050311
0503:1
05031:
0503E
050311
05031:
05031l
050311
0503:1

050313
050313
050313

050311;

05031';

050316
050316
0';03:6
0503:6
050316

050318
0';0318
050318
050318
052318
J5C3~8
050318
050318
0503:i8
050318
050318
050318
050318
050318
050319

880.00

8:JC.00

1,360.
on.uv

.80

BO.CO
:,360.00

340.00
68.00
68.

20.5.

27.5?
29.40
65.77

65.95

l62.CJC
16~:.CO

63.98
22.56
74 .';5

lew.CO

256.03

3C.98
~95.90
199.38

5L 99
128.54
143.94

42.37
94.91
67.80

145.06
49. 99

101.37
';.38

';4.16
4~.37



PACKET: 05:39 C~IMS ,OR 5/11/10
VENDOR SS'":
FUND

VENDOR =:TEM #

=======================================~==============================-=--======-===-============-====~===============-============-

01-A00770 AUIO PARIS CO
1-861003
=-861009
1-861072
=-861090
I-8L124
1-861269
1-861270
1-86:311
1-861359
:-861385
1-861470
:-861475
I-861476
1-861479
1-861494
1-861495
1-861522
=-86:532
1-861634
1-861635
,-861642
:-86:651

01-3001 3EA~ES ~OOJY~AR lIR~S
J.:-Y;C-:7l653
=-MC-171654
1-I~C-:72920
I-MC-172922

01-300180 3E~~.C SUP?LY
1-S1513482.001
=-S1516124.001
1-S1516206.001
I-S1517077.001
I-S1517565.001
=-S1518055.001
I-S:518615.001
I-S1519014.001
1-S:519492.001
I-S1519882.001
=-S1520036.001

01-B00360 310£ 300K (USA)
I~105633-A

01-B0049C BRIGGS PRI~T1NG
1-55420-3

contim..:ed

02 -5862203
02 -5862203

-:J8622~3
82 -5862223

-59743=-6

02 -58E22C3

02 -5862283
02 -5862203
02 -5862283
02 -5862223
J2 -5862203
02 -5862203
02 -5862203
v.c: -5862203

02 -5862223
02 -5862283
02 -5862203
02 -5862203
02 -5862283
02 -5362203

02 -5262203

-5862203
0=

-58622
02 -5862223

-5973" 01
02 -5975202
02 -5975=02
02 -5975202
02 -5975222
02 -5975202

-5975282
02 -~ s2C3
02 -5975202

-59~

02 -5970:6

02 -5971,3::"7

REPAIRS & 11AI S~~II Ac~O PA~TS
REPAIRS & VAL SMAIl AcTO ~ARTS
REPAIRS & t1AI SVA~~ ?AR~S
REPAIRS & MA:::: SYA~~A0~O ?A~~S
"EPI\IRS & ;VAL SL:P?IIe:S :CO" PlAKT
RSPAiRS MAi SVP,II AcTO PA~IS
REPAIRS & MA::::SYP.~~A~~O ?A?~S
tzE?AIRS & 10AI Sl-"J\L=- A~-C:C ?ARTS
REPAIRS & MAl SYA~=- A~TC ?AR~S
REPAIRS & VAl S~~IL PARTS
REPAIRS & MAl SVPl~~ ?i~iS

REPAIRS & VAl S~P.II A~TO PARTS
REPAIRS & ;VAL SMALl AcTO PAR'"S
REPA=RS & MA: SYP.=-=-A~~O ?A?~S
REPAIRS & VAl SMAIl Ac~O PARTS
REPAIRS & ~j S~~.L=- A~:C ?AR~S
REPAIRS & MA: S~~=-=- A~:O ?AR~S
REPAIRS & YAI uPP~R & lOWe:" 3AIL JOINTS
REPAIRS & MAl SYP,II Ac~O ~A~:S
~EPAIRS & VAL S~P.II AcIO PARTS
REPAIRS & MA: SYA~~ nv~v ?AR:S
REPAIRS VAl SYP.II AJTO PAR~S

REPAIRS & MAl :IR~S :COR WP-6
~EPAIRS & YP.I TIRE :COR WW-9
REPATRS & MAT '"IRES Sk,ITA7IOK
REPAIRS & VAL TIRES - ','IATERD~P= JUMP

CAPITAL PROJ:': lO" STE:::=--0::::SC~ARGE PIPE
O?ERA~ING SUP S~?P~=~S ~ WATER & SEWER
OPERATI~G SJP SJP~LIES - WA7E~ SEWER
OPERATING SUP ScPPIIES - WAI~R & SEWER
OPERATING SJP S0PPII~S - WAT~R & SEWER
OPERATING SUP SUPPI=~S - WATER & SEWER
OPERATING SDP S~P?=--=:::S~C? WA~ER/S2W~R
REPAIRS & MF.1 SUP?IIES :COR WTP - MAI~T
OPERATING SUP ScPPlle:S - WA'"ER & SEWER
OPERATING S~P ScP?:_"ES ,OR WATER/SE'IiER
OPERATING SD? S~?P=-:::::::StO~ WA:;R/S:';WER

REPAIRS & MAl FRPIS~T O~ SC3A

CfiECK~

050319
050319
0503:9
050319
050319
050319
050319
050319
0503:9
050319
050319
050319
050320
0~Q32C
050320
050320
05032C
050320
05032C
05032C

050320
050320

050321
05032~
050321
05032:

050322
050322
050322
050322
050322
050322

050322
050322
050322
050323
050323

050325

050328

PJI.se::

.=~.24

S~.62
.26

:2.20
6.50

19.52
39.9;

33. 99
:,,5.63

69.73
47.59

Ie.60
2C.39
13.16

:05.99
87.75

289.50
~32.

5:.20

. 9
32.90

269.48
879.CO

3,~94.9C

3,:53.80

:,223.68

47.55
5.82

:66.28
2.58

:278.7)

9.42
22.55

2lC.08
83.93

:89.91

38:.50



5/04/20:0
?ACKET:
VENDOR SE~:
FUND :1?iI'JA

0:46 pv,
OS'.S9 CCAI'1S "OR 'J/U/lO

VENeOR TTEM #KAME

01-C00046 C :: Ttl GOVE:~~'XENT, INC

=-SLK6851
I-S~K6851
=-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
=-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-S~K6851
=-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SL;(6851
=-SLK6851
I-SL;(6851
l-SLK6851
1-8L;(6851
=-SLK685J

01-C00320 CENTER~OINT ENERGY ARKL
1-201004281308

O~-C00667 CO~:RAC:C~S SC?PLY CO
I-I009045

01-C00669 CO~Tl~ENTAL RESEARCH CO
:-33:614-C2.C-1
I-331639-CRC-l
I-332337-CRC-l

0':-C00840 CRAWrO~D & ASSOCIATES
l-201005031340

o I-CO 08 80 CGLI,lGPS 'tiA'CERCOND INC
T-APRIL 2010

1-234:4

01-~00037 ?ASTE~AL
I-OKMCA86660
:-OKMCA8 73 45
I-OiO'CA873 52

01-r00038 rEe EX
1-7-057-38644

01-,00:70 tlRST NA7l0KAL B~'lK
1-5/11110-#134

02
02 -52=..62:2
02 -5866282
0::2 -5866202

-5866202
-5866202

02 -587:2C2
02 -587::202
02 -587

0'"0 -58'
-=-3)

Co2 -58~~

C'2 -52673:4

-5364283

C2 -5973283
-5975202

02 -5 3003

C2 -5267302

82 -59732C3
~ 53:6

02 -59;5306

02 -5870202

-586C;4C:

OPERATING SUP 468098-CNNON 535
OPERATING S0P 303:66-C7005X TON~R
OPERATING SUP 854c,:-88Xl 3lK
OPERATING S0P 952 Y2LlOW
OPERATING SC? 852952-88 yp~G~N7A
OPERATING SUP 862399-28 CY,~'l
OPERATING S0P 85,740-88Xl ELK
OPERATING SUP 952958-38 Y~~LOW
OPERATING S0P 952953-88 YAGENTA
OPERATING SC? 862399-88 CYPS
OPERATING SUP 1436706-95/98 COM30
OPERA7ING SC? 8033~=-ge 3~~
OPERATING SUP 057835-,5 3lK
O?ERA~ING SC? 87423]-96 2~~
OPERATING S0P 628<4 Yc'\GEN~A
OPERA~ING SCP 064630-44 V~llOW

GAS UTILITY

REPAIRS & MAl 04" , :'? SP.,W,OIL, 3LADES

OPEAATIN,S 5C? ~·=::zs-=' P.== :<=~S,
R~PAIRS & MAL RU3B~~ =OA::KG

CONSULTANTS

CHECK#

050330
050330
050330
050330
050330
050330
05033C
050330
050330
050330
050330
050330
050330
05C330
050330
05C33C

eS0387

050331

050332
05C332
050332

CONS';~: ::;G ,'EES - 09 tIKANCIAL 050333

LAB TESTING

0nL:TY VAIN-

REPAIRS & MAl S~??~=ES ?CR ?~~T
REPAIRS & YAI S';~Pl:~S FOR REPAlRS
REPAIRS & MAl SJ??ll~S "OR REPAIRS

OPERATING SD? JEQ IJ\,:;~FlLl~ES?ONSE

CAPITAL OUTLA CA~ERF:lIJ\~R & CO'1PACTOR

050334

050338

05030
050343
050343

0503,4

050348

?AGE:

464.40
: 76.52

79.52
_S.5~

~5.5l

:59.04
31.02

30,02
3l.C2
93,
46.54

69,32

65.94
33,91,

468.29

l,:'73.50

~72.50

,23
093,25

597.50

93.65

0,9d,86

307.76
52.86
30.90

4'.,62

8,524.37



?ACKET: 2S:39 =~I~S FOR 5/11/10
VENDOR SET:
FUND YlPWA

VENDOR ITEM #

01-F00251 FOR~ C03B F0EL AUTHORIT
1-201004221301

Cl~GOC285 GE~~~218 ~KLCK SSRVICE
1-4299

01-E00041 ~AJOCA WATER WORKS
I-S5107322.001
:-S5107322.002

01-I00020 3 - IC:C

1-5270981

01-1 ~v =X?~~SS OF?:CE SUPP~Y
1-030478
1-030490
1-030532
1-030534
1-30516

01-I0012C INCODE
1-164154

1-5125995
1-5125995

01- I 002 37 =K~~RS'TA'T::: E~EC~'RICAL

1-169652

01-K0019C KEYSTO~E EQUI?MENT CO.
1-02 41883
:-41883

C-CM09902
C-CV:803910637

1-01458
1-01505
1-01529
1-02216
1-02680
:-07677
1-08818
1-08969
1-09369.
1-09421
:-09590
1-09901.

02

-58

02 -59H316

-597

02 -597~3=-7
02 -5864282
02 -5
02 -5972202

02 -';216336

02 -58
02 -S26E2C2

02 -

02 -S8622C3
-';862203

82 -597

02 -59752C2
02 -597

02 -::975282
C2 -59752=2

-';97016
02 -597
C2 -597

-S9752C2

02 ~59752C2
4316

02 -5975202

GAS TJTI~I':'Y

REPAIRS & MAl VALVE W/FARTS
REPAIRS & ~AI VALVE W/FARTS

REPAIRS & YAI SEEA~ ?=~S Vp.STER C'lAIN

OPERATING SUP INK FE~S, ~ISC ITEMS
OPERATING SU? INK ?E~S, ~ISC ITEMS

FEES & MIUNT

OPERATING SUP PAPER TOWELS
O?ERATING SU? TRAS~ 'l}\GS

REPAIRS & MAl RE3::I1.T 3ACK~OE ':lATERFU"
REPAIRS IVAI IYI?=::=--~~ I SAL=-_ SEARING,

OPERATJNG SJ? A:; CO~??~SSC?
OPERATING SUP AIR CO~"RESSOR
O?ERA7ING SG? SJ?F=--=;S ~O~ WATER/SEWER
OPERATING SJP A~; COX??ESSO?
OPERAT:NG SUP AIR COX??~SSOR
OPERATI~G 3D? A:? CCX??~SSC?
OPERATING SUP A=R CO'-:P?':SSOR
REPAIRS & VAl SG??~=~S ~O? RE?A:?S

OPERATING SUP SUF~lIES »»: ER/SEWER
OPERATING SG? AIR CCX?RESSO~
OPERATING SUP SUPPL=ES POR WATER/SEWER
REPAIRS & Vp.I SUPFlIES ~OR REFAIRS
OPERATING SG? A:? CO~??~SSC?

PAGE:

CHECK#

050301

0503Cc3

050355
05C355

050357

050358
050358
050358
050358
050358

0503~9

050360
05C3EC

050363

050370
05C370

C50373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050373
050374

924.

240.00

4,8::'3.47

::'C7.28

730.64

7.99
3';.

293.16

_,~99.C8

641.59
641.59

3::'.21-
80.91
19.88
46.83
41.80

1,012.29
56.32

5.82
8.49

13.41



5/04/20~C ~:~E?~
PACKST: 05~39 C~IXS FOR 5/lI/l0
VENDOR SET: v ~

FUND 02 M?'/IlA

VENDOR ::::TEM #

01-:..00428 =.cO',n:.:1 S C;,::::~::::SE?VICES
:-87422

1-8100819
:-81008844
1-81604778

:-007757

1-9835

01-M00665 MTS SA~Ecy PRODUCTS, IN
1-2846400

1-1086:91

1-352323

en-NCO] ~2 69 AU';'OSJI.LVAGE:
1-01002583

1-271643

01-000275 OK~~ ~::::PTO~ CO:~ERCE
I-5/l1110-#8908

1-20100500342
1-20721

01-RC036S ~=0S~WAY'S
1-42-459126

CI-ROC39C ?=-:SC~ :::~D. PROD~CTS
I-0064500-1N

01-R00524 ROSE STATE CO~LSGE
I-W,DI835

01-500234 S~A~E CO~?ORA~ION
1-739001

01-S00351 SIG~ATuRE SCIENCE, LLO

cont~::lueci
02 -'097 OPERATING SUP A~~ COX?~~SSO~

CEECKlf

050374

?AGE: ~3

38.19

02 -5973304 LAB TESTING '\"lAT2?" ~CR =--.F.B-[STING 050375 0, cn
oU

02 -597330s LAB TESTING WA:'2:? ?O? =-.AS TESTIN 050375 ~3 SO
02 -59733-24 LAB TESTIl\G 'wF.TE? ?C? Y.3 ':'ESTlt\ 050375 6 75

-'09°; UTILITY MA:NT R03B~? 30C?S, ?A~~ SUITS

REPAIRS & VAL REPAIRS C~ RAOICS WTP

REPAIRS & MAl WEIOl"CO ROOS & SJPP:"IES

-53 REPAIRS & MA.l COEAR RA.CK x

LAB TSSTING

02 Ci=L~ CDBG ~OAN #89 CD3CO - EDl, #8908

02 -8287

OPERATING SUP 20# ?~007E; ?APSR

C2 -5973333 WATER MAIN RS

-3 DUES & SU3SCR C WA~~~ =.c=CE~S2 C~SS

REPAIRS & VAl WEEO Kl~IS? :C~ SIA,ION

050378

05038~

050384

080385

05839C

050392

050393

050398

050~C'5

050406

050~07

050CO

050lj13

84 .00

4C.95

29L..CJ

!'86.

:,::'~5.83

,098.00

4,296.75

383.82

286.00

05.

222.19



5/04/20:0
PACKET:
VENDOR SET:
FCN0

05:39 CLAIMS FOR 5/11/10

VENDOR ::::TEIv: #

O~-S003S: S=G~A~~?~ S==~~CE, L1C conti~Jed
:-24000961-24

01-S00530 SOcOEWEST CHEMICAL SERV
1-88519
:-88537
1-88570
:-88621
1-88682

01-S007 S~~,~ARJ ~~C~I~E LLC
1-212258
1-2:2757
1-212760

01-300726 S~A?~~S 30SIKESS ADVANT
1-3134952663
1-3:34952664
r-69283

1-044615
:-0446:5
1-044883
1-044884
:-044885
1-045057
1-045057
1-045058
1-045059
1-045060
I-0451S~
:-045155
1-045156
1-045157
1-045303
1-045304
:-045305
1-045306
1-045307
1-045308
:-045309

01-C00122 UNIT LI~ER CO
1-0663391

01-U00130 17~I=ED SArETY & CLAIMS
1-201005041341
:-MAY 2010

02 -597~2C6
02 -5974206

-5974

02 -5262223
82 -536220:3
02 -5862283

-597~223

,']2 -52=-62C2

02
82 -5975333
02 -5975333

-5975333
02 -:L_

-52~62C2

-5973~

82 -5975333
-S975333

02 -597

-5975333
02 -S::n52C9

-5975209
02 -5975209
02 -59'

02 -5267106
02 -5267:06

L]\8 TESTI"IG

CflEMICA,"S
CHEMICALS
CEEKICALS
CHEMICALS
C:JEMrCA~S

=--O]:>.JS ::::.l\:~Sc::.'=-C
:'01'.=:S 0: ~.~uy:

?EPAIRS & :V:AI E\;':.?P.:::rz JR-'::1/~ SEP_F~

REPAIRS & MAL BOLOS
REPAIRS & PAL REPAIR 0RIVEIl~E

OPERATI"IG SUP OCNER, CC?V i'!}\C:JI"IE
O?ERA7ING SC? TO~~R :C~ co?y Y~CEI0E
REPAIRS & :1AI SC??=--::::~S ?~.~~

OP~RATING S:.JF :0ET:::~ ~;C:=K:<::::':"S
OPERAT:::NG SCP rv;:':::-=:-S?=--0:'::::<=--OCKS
WATER MAIN RE VA~V~ & ACCESSO?I::::S
WATER YAIN ?E SS-PP=..=:::SKA:''::::<./SEWSR
WATER MAIN RE SUPPLIES FCR WATE~/SEWER
OPERATING SUP EEO?~ ICC~ ~EYS
OPERATING SJ? K£T~~ ="O~KS
CAPITAL PRClE 10" :"EC~ JO:~TS & PTPE
WATER MAIN RE SU??=--=:::S WA~::::~/SEWER
WATER VAIN ?E S:"-?P~=':::S:';'A~':::?/S~:tJr:R

UTILITY PAr"l: SUP~IIFS RE~ WATER SEWER
WATER VAIN ?E VA~V::: & ACC::::SSORIES
UTILITY PAI~T SUP?llES ~E? WATER SEWER
UTILITY MAINT S17??II?S RE? WATER SEWER
UTILITY ~I~: S~??=--=':::S?.:::? ~ATE? SEWER
UT rulY VAINT SUP?llES RE? WATER SEWSR
UTILITY MA:::NT S0??=--=':::S~E? WA~2R SEWER
WATER MAIN RE SUP?I:ES ~OR WATER/SEWER
UTILITv MAINT S17P?ITSS RS? WATER SEWER
UTILITY MAIN~ S~??:I:::S R::::?WATE? SEWER
UTTLIE MAINT STJJ~IISS RE? ,'lATERSEWER

REPAIRS & MAl RE~AI~S C~ _ PLA~T

WORKER'S CO~P ~EDTCAI 311lS 4/12-4/27
WORKER'S COMP SE~VICE 'G~

CHEC'<#

050415

0504:7
050417
05007
0584~1
05041

050419
0504-9
050419

050420
050420

C50t:;20

050425
050425
OSO~2S
050125

05842::
050425
050425
050425
050425
050425
05042S
050425
050425
050425
050425
050425
050426
050426
050426
050426
050426

050428

050430
05043:

?AGE: I4

368.00

3,665,64
3,636.60
6,992.42

3,t:;5C.>J
3,632.64

8:6.00
6 ~ .. : 0

397.:JO

7.49

~8.8~

:3~.28
::5.68
186.00

82.90

65.64
28,92

2,::'7l.16
4 C . CJC

:6:.24
22.

'6'1.61
64,25
74 . ~ 9

.'-;0

67.23
80.C8

336,84
92.98
96.80

6.23

3,400.00

2,929.62

l,233.75



5/04/2010 1:46 ox
PACKET:
VENDO~ SE::
LIND

05139 C~.lMS FOR 5/11/10

M?TdA

VENSO? lTr-:M#

O:-WJ027C W~=~~ ~~ECTR~CA~ SUPPLY
I-S1204475.001
1-S1205220.001
I-S1206465.00]
I-S12:'2374.001
1-S1212983.001
I-S1213702.001

CI-WCC29C W~O~~SA~~ E~2CTRIC SUPP
1-S2860457.002

FAGE:

DE::SC?::::?:"::::C:-"

02 -S9'3223 REPAIRS & MAl PLk'\: S;;""=1SS FO? REPA1? 050435 77 .31
02 -~,97f,203 ?EPAIRS & VAl E1EC'''1CF.= S~:??LIES 0501,35 30.86
02 -59732:)3 REPAIRS & MAr ?LPc--;, SL'??=-'=~S E'O? ?EPAIR 050435 77 18
82 -5974316 REPAIRS & MAl ;u~c~ S~P?=.cIES FOR KFC 050435 ;4 .79
02 -S973203 REPAIRS & VlAI P:.J'S'T s':??~=::::s ,OR RSPAIR 050e5 16.41
02 -59732:3 REPAIRS & MAl ?=--'p.;.J: S;~O?:.15S 'OR ?EPAIR 050435 1-3

050436 429.:3

FUND 02 ,OTAL:



5/Q4/20~O l:~6?~
PACKST: 05:39 C~TMS tOR 5/11/10

REGULAR ~E?ARTMENT PAYMENT REGISTER

VENDOR SET:
tUN~ 03 ATR?ORT AUTHORITY

\lE!'JOR

01-C00320 C~~T~R?C~~T ~~E~GY ARKL
1-201004281308

01-200170 ,TRST NATIONAl SANK
I-5/11/10-#119817

01-WCC269 W~=:~S:~CTORS
':-649404

:=;/L

03 -5876S::

03 -587

FNB LOAN #1~9 ~OAK ~- - F.TRPORT AUTH

~NO MAINTENA REPA'R & :0\TNT TTEMS

FJND

CHECK#

050307

050346

050434

TOTAl:

PAGE: =-6

82.89

') ~- "
.::.., _' _ 'J •

36.00

2,628.89



S/Cs/2Cl0 ~:~6?~
PACKET:
VENDOR SE':':
tUK,'

VENDOR

1-201005031332
1-201005031333

1-201005031330
1-201005031331

':::-20:QC5C31334

O'-S00580 A':'& -
1-201004281306

RSGCI~~R~E?A~~X~~~ ?AYMENT REGIS~SR

("~!-
U!-,

08 -5549388
08 -S5S9388

050336
050336

-5:: !~ CON,RAC SERV C:8>~~~.C~ ;'::::.;~ ::;~lIV;;:RY 05034C _:J~

~ ::: ! CONTRACT SE"V ",1,,3 :<==-:::11.~:: ?c? DE~1VERY 05034 0 100 Vv

02 DE~IVERY

TELEPHONE UTI 918A,

FUND

050379

050309

TOTAl: 759.84



5/04/20:0 1:46 FE

PACKE~:
VE"JDOR S=,::
,'JND

OS:.39 CAlMS ,OR 5IlI/IO

G9

VEN::JOR cTEM #

Ol~rtDOC7S ~AR~IS CC~S:?UCTION SER
1-47 888SA
>478885B

01-KOOOOS K-3AR vV CC~STR~CTION
>12592

>1086

1-1388

REGULAR ::JEPARIME~: RAYMENT REGISTER

09 -586027 sua TITLE D E FR~~~E: - :CDC T =- 1/2 CR
::9 -:3

09 -556432"7 SUB TIT~E D E 80 ~CA=S O~ COVF.? D=R~

CEFCi<"

050356
050356

OS0369

PAG::~: :8

3, 989.

1,994.16

6, ceo.

09 -S86~J:=7 S~B TITLE E PI ?::.: =C? =-J:':::'J:'~I=--=-- PROJECT 0504 33 E3C 40

C 9 -52 64327 SUB TITLS J ~ PI P:::: ::-0; =--i='~\:J~<I=-=-"~R02EC'C 050433 :':::'iC::

09 :3, :8~L08



5/04/2010 1:;6 P~
PACKET:
VENDOR S':~:
FUND 28 SE EXPO CIR/TOURISM FU~J

VENDOR ITEM #

1-01132282

01-COOC46 C ~ ~ GOV~~~MENT, INC
1-S;~K6851
1-S:,K6851
:::-S~K6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
1-SLK6851
I-SLK6851
I-SLQ72:8
l-SLQ7218

01-000006 J & = ElEVAIOR INC
1-11486
1-1:486

01-000602 JON'S LAZY S JERKY MFG
1-0012867

Ol-?0025C ?S::Y CAS~
1-201005031329

O:-SOC03C S~~~'S C~~3
1-09-28124

1-0667361

Ol-WD004C WP_~YJJ<_r\-: CO:Vl+lvf~Jl'n:':{ 3RC

1-019529
1-023823
1-024529

CONCESSION 5J CO~CsSS=C~ S~??L=SS

28 OP?lRATING SO? :2 :':EG:::N':'f\.

::28 -::;62,( O?S?A':'IKG SCP :295=3~-C2 C':-·P·~~

28 -36::; OPEAAT=NG SUP 4082C-::6 3LK
28 -::6::;302 OPERATING SUP 152J22;-=.C6: 3L"
28 -5654202 OPilRATING SCiP - :4-~.cC::E2. ~·E:LLOv.T

28 -;:)654202 OPERATING SCP lS2C23l-:"'C6: C~A.t\

28 -5654:222 OPERATING SUF 6-lC6: vAGl:NTA
-560; OPiCRATING 5JP 129227; 3lK

28 -56542C2 OPEKATIKG S[;D _295278-C'2 YE~I.O[.·1'

28 -262L316

28 -5624316
REPAIRS & MAl :vIO;;I:'LvY:?,1N~ENA.\[CE
REPAIRS & ~~1 PARIS & lP,30?

CONCESSION SJ 3':=' ~=~KE,

28

CAPITAL OU'::""D,. tOL:::':;'::::; ~A3=-'~S - 8'

28 -:J6~4203

28 ~ C00lCSSSIOl' Sl: CO~:C~SS:O:\ SC??LIES
28 -:J6S42:C; COl'CESSION SU ::::OK:=:::SS:O:\ S~j??~=~S

28 -c 6342 CONCESSION S'~ CO:\C:::SS:O:\" S:';PPLIES

CHECK#

050324

050330

050330
050330
030330
05033C

050330

050330
050338

050330

050335
050335

050339

050483

05C41:

0504

030432
050432

050432

FeND SS EX?C C-R/~OJ?~S~ FUND TOTAL:

PAGE: :9

10.66
_0.66
;6,5;
63.84
::"C.63

:2 _ • 26

_,26
38,78
:0.66

200,00
.08

:32.08

:5.24

4,784.40

7,18
57,38

7.78

9,96



S/Ol,

PACKS':":
VSNDO? S:':~:
FUND

: : ,~6 ?X

OS039 CLAI~S POR 5/10/00

29 ;;:-901

VENDOR ITEM #

Ol-CC004E C S W GOV~R~~EKT, INC
1-SLK6851
l-SLK6851
l-SLK6850
I-SLK6851

Ol-JC8340 ::M WOO~ REFR:GERATION
1-10-11576

01-SC07~O STk~2k~~ YAC~=KE LLC
:-2127~9

?AG'::':: Lv

C"ECK#

09 -::324227: OPERATING SUP 1684l,'l-920 3:;'; 050330 38 ,i8

29 -=,32i~ OPERATING SCiP 168l,476- CYAG: 050330 09.38
29 OPERATING SUP 1-684 S >:ASSK~A 050330 ~ 9.38
29 -532l, OPERATING SUP 1684 8-922 Yr::~LOvJ 050330 09.38

29 -5324306 050368 6,REPAIRS-I"JAlNT ~KSO'Jl,: EEAT P:JM?

29 -S32~ C50409 .7SOPERATING SliP Y'STJl.l .

PlIND 29 6, 0.67:':-900



5/C4/2CIC l:~E?X
PACKET: 05139 CLAI~S ,OR 5/11/10
VENDOR SET:
FeNCl 30 ECO:-lOMIC DEVELOPMENT

VENDOR :TEM #

01-BOO~73 B~VC CC~STRUCTION INC.
I-PYMT #4

01-N003~7 ~E~lBcRGER BRAWLEY, INC
I-'1C-09-01-06

01-000275 CKLA DEFT OF COMMERCE
I-i"AY 2010

30 ~ - I

ECONO~IC ClEVE C~AK~E

CD3G / EDIF D CJ3S - ~~-~ CO~T. t:2248

FUND 3-2

CEEC?;#

050326

0503 9~

050399

TOTAL:

PAG:::: 21

55,823.63

~f682.30

.so

59,988.43



5/04/20:0

PJl~CKST:
VENDOR SET:
FUND

::":G6 ?X
05:39 CLACMS FOR 5/11/10

32 SOFTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

VENDO" OTEM #

-S00060 SJI~=5"S NJ"SP",
:-279067

01-TOC613 TU~SA COONe, FJSL:C FAC
0-20:0C5031328

32 EXFSNSE FOR P 6 TREES "OR ~A"KS

C:-lECK#

05C412

FJND 32 TOTAL:

PAG:':: 22

488.80

970.0C



PACKE:T: 05:39 CLAlKS FOR 5/11/10
VENDOR SET:

VEKDOR

C::::? rJND

~-COl530

REGU~~? DEPA?TYcE~T ?AY~ENT REGISTER

C -52 GARAGE: stm.nr BC::.~ 2:': ,E':CE & GATES

,UND 41

CHECK#

050387

TOTA:,:

?EPORT GRAND TOTAL:

?AGr::: 23

9,530.CO

9,:)38.08



5/04/2010 1:46 PX

YEAR

2009-20:0 v~ -2lC8
0: -21C:
0: -2:02

-':;2:0332

01 -:;211331
-52:2202

-:;213336
Cl -5214382
0: -52l51C6

-S2l53l~

-5'::::5323

-:;·322282

0: -::43:'202

-5431203
_ -:;431204

-:;431207
-54313:6
-5431331

'J_ -54322'22

v_ -:;432328

-5042316
-5542331
-5:;43316

-554£'308

CLEET PAYABLE ICCUR1;
AFIS PAYABLE - Cm;Rl
fCRENSICS PAYA3LE ICCURl
CBN PAYABLE (COJ~~)

O?ERATING SUP?~IES
CONSULTANTS/LA3C? ?E~~llO~
JUES & SUBSCRI?~=O~S
EMPLOYEE TRAVE~ & ~?F.=~=~

OPERATING SCPPLIES
EMPLOYEE TRAVEL & =RA=~l~
OPERATIKS SUP?~=ES
CPERATING SCPPLIES
EMPLCYEE ~RAVEL & l;P~l~l~G
FEES
CONSULTANTS
WORKER'S COMPENSA~lON
CONSULTANTS

ELEC7RIC JTILI:Y
GAS UTILITY

DAMAGES
LEASE PAYMEK-
INCODE SOFTWARE YP~lN1E~A~C
OPERATING EXPENSE
OPERATING SJPFlIES
~MPLOYEE TRAVE~ & :~~=~=~
OPERATING SCPPlIES
OPERATING SJP?LIES
?EPAIRS & ~~INT S~?~llES
SMALL TOOLS
CLOTHING ALLOWA~C~
REPAIRS & MAl!C:CN~':::E
EMPLOYEE TRAVEl & lRAl~l~
OPERATING SUPPLIES

CONTRACTED SE?VIC~S

REPAIRS & MA~I~TE~~\CE
EMPLOYEE nUWE:~ & l"AINICi
REPAIRS & MAI~TE~"~\CE
OPERATING SU?PL=~S
CONTRACT lA~BOR

G/l ACCOU~T TOTALS

P.j'10UNT

10,935.53
5,887.49
5,854.57

10.00

385.95
69.50

4,493.50
85.00

414.36
628.21

51.75
88.26

809.87
100.00
200.00

2,500.00
2,929.62

597.50
1,699.73

156.16
172.91

1,198.49
192.05

5,663.95
200.00

29.96
35.14

130.50
49.45

773.76
1,222.39

76.82
877.80

1,324.42
2,550.00

637.96
553.95
285.00

:2, 4] 3.79
273.34
148.94

22.00
1,200.00

180.00
660.00

~~~~~ =:~~========= =======G?OU? B~=GE:==~====

BUDGET

3, 602

20,

2,
4,

3,

1,7
6,

17, :JOO

1~8,OCC

325,
28,
1,0,

36C,00::
15,
64,93S
22, !

76,:53

27,29~

15,

3,

3,

12,

13,28C

5 I 28~

21, ~

~ C I

11,

2:,382

26,
18,

6,

1C,002

16, ,,;4

:;36.88
.86

~ . :3 9

13~.88- Y
:,292.33

38.82
:;69.24- 'f

";,252.12

r 93.80

2, :;1 .40

21.62
.: >, .82

6,893.26
22,866.:::]

2CC.OC
1,276.09

L, .88

2,>3:3.29
~,Cl:.4
1,,949.82

2,~28.76

2,685.:1

449.69
{~,387.36

264.61

2, 987.
:,246.79

:,644.44

255.22
1, '60.00
C, 64.96
6,736.00

ANNUAL
BUDGET



5/01,/2010 1:1,6 PM

YEA"

Cl -SSs722J
01 -5548203
O~ -5652222

O~ -565322,3

-5862283
-5865202
-58652C4
-5865218

-58654
-52:'-6)02
-5216]36

02 -S~67~OE
- 5 2 6"

C2 -C267314

=2 -5267323

UL. 622C~

02 -5861,252

02 -5861,

66202
-C871202

,~2 -597

-5973283

02 -::'973316

-59731,

02 -S97S2C3
-5974206
-597430':'

02 -C971,316

02 -59743:
'vi.. -5975202

-597520'7

02 -59:S3l6
-597

02 -597533::"
-5970332

02 -5975333
53 -5876228

RSGU~~ DE?A~;~~~l ?AY~ENT REGIST~R

RSPAIRS & ~A1Kl SuPPCl~S
REPAIRS & ~~INTENfu~CS SJP?
OPERATING SUPPLIES
DUES & SU3SCR=P:IO~S
SAFETY SUPPLIES
}\WARDS ?ROG?Alv1

OPERATING SuPP~IES
REPAIRS & YAlN'C SJ?PClES
OPERATlNG S·JPPLIES
SMALL TOOLS

CAPITA~ PROJECTS-REScRFACl
OPERATING SUPPLIES
FEES
WORKER'S COMPEKSAelO~
CONSULTfu'lTS
SAS UTILI-:'Y
DAMAGES
CDBG LOAN #8908

REPAIRS & Y..A.::::NY S:~7??=-=:::S

PETROlEUM PRODUCeS
OPERATING SC?PllES
REPAIRS & MAIN~ ScPPCl~S
CAPITAl OU~lAY

OPERATING SUPPLIES
OPERATING SCPPLlES
REPAIRS & MAINT SCPPClSS
LAB TESTING
REPAIRS & YAlNTENF~CE
CAPITAL PROJECT
REPAlRS & ~~IN~ SCPDCl~S
CHE:MICALS
LAB TESTlNG

ADVERTISING & PR1~elNS
OPERATING SUPPllES

DUES & SU3SC"lPelOXS
EMPLOYEE TRAVEL & TRF.lX=~
LAND IMPROVE~E~TS
WATER MAIN FERAl"
LAND MAINTE~R~CE SUPP.

S/C ACCOCN? TOTALS

:,428.56

3,901.69

692.97

294.00

1,670.30

98.92

67.88

8,286.73

118.30

205.90

7,257.19

499.99

1,018.21

293.16

4,163.37

597.50

1,393.01

8,098.00

,145.83

':3,275,:4
1,,296.7 'J

750.00

1,173.50

8,524.3'7

428.05

1,028.47

142.64

2,362.66

45].75

3,I,CO.00

3,194.84

1,899.38

21,]77.45

0,851.65

5,707.65

:,112.11,

3,1,55.03

100.00

5, .03

83.76

LiP5.00

265.00

320.00

1,957.84

36.00

=====~=~~ =~~M========= =======GROUP 3U~SE:=======

BUDSET

~i , OC c
19,C80

2,34 S

1,

8,50C
5,5CO

l,soe
215,OCO

3,
2,

200,
c i ,

15,

221,

18,311,

6,

64,500
1.5,

2~3,

8,580

31,948

52,764

2,50C

6,OCO

2,
57 I

27,

I, 6,

28,
47,

362,

44,

03,

34,
2,7

33,

J,

3,2CC

20,CCO

3,000

'L:-:::OETOVER

3,928.35

1,80.63

192.30

766.63

.29

353.40
69,672.04

.C3

.04

4,588.15
1,20.43- Y

67 I C:8

596.95- Y

~,62EJ.94

,760.82- Y
:,~45.83

.27
85,926.80

.78

9, 1.83

8 I • '21

2:5.27
2,556.28

4,942.79

9,823.02

.16

2,1 .38
,602.21

636.03

149.94- Y
25.97

4,369.5'4

329.82

1,7]3.8]

6.37
1!,9.31,

:'-82.20

:/739.50

ANNUAL
BUDGET



5/C4/2C1C ~:!;t?~

YEAR

03 -3876314

83 -S87ES=-:

08 -S,,493l5
89 -586':;327
28 -,,654

-S6S,223
28 -,,6S,2
28 -5654316
28 -56",40l
29 -5324202

32 -52

~ -58654

KEGCL?R 8SPA;TYS~- PAYMENT REGISTER

NAME

GAS UTILITY
FNB LOAN #1198l7 PAYY.~~~S
CONTRACT SERV=CES
TELEPHONE U~ILITv
SUB TITLE D 2X?S~S~
OPERATING SUPPLI~S
REPAIR & MAI~T SC?P~=~S
CONCESSION SUPPLcES
REPAIRS & MAI~TENK\C~
CAPITAL OUTLAY
OPERATING SUPPLIES
REPAIRS-MA=NT2NP~~~

(DBG / E0IF DuRALI~~ ~OF2~

EXPE~SE FOR PAR'(S :O"'~R:
TULSA FAIR 300T~ SX?S~SE

2809-22l0 Y~AR TOTALS

NO SRKOKS

Gil. ACCOUNT TOTALS

=========~=~~ I~2~====c
AN~UAL

Al'10Ul\T ~1JJGr::~

82.89 sec,

2,510.00 3c .v,

627 .00 14,
132.84 1, 4

13,189.08 152,928
249.53 7,

51. 7S ':5,
1,719.28 2" ,

325.00 16,900

1;,784.40 rc.occ
270.67 :8,

6,000.00 2S,

::9,705.93 561,887
282.50 3,390

480.00
970.00 1,461

9,530.00 10,

288,414.10

':03.79

20.24- Y
~5,2:39.47

.26
C,2l2.66

,368.

.J2

.68
c.

7lS.20- Y
49':.lS

.00



S/04/2ClC ~C:55 AM

VS:-:JOR

~IRST ~ATIONA~ 3ANK

DESC

C:t'CK RSc;:;:STER

CHECK
TY~E

?E?~OD

4/2210

'0/2210

4/2C10
2/2810
::12210

'0/2010

512010

512010

5/2010

32 412010

S/20:C
51201C

CHECK CHECK
DATE

65,291.

=- 3 f ~

238, .;=-.:; . =-

1\0#



P. O. Box 13
McAlester, Oklahoma 74501
April 30, 2010

McAlester City Council
City of McAlester
i" & Washington
McAlester, Oklahoma 74501

Re: JUNETEENTH CELEBRATION
SATURDAY, JUNE 19, 2010

Gentlemen:

This letter is our request to get approval to use the Michael J. Hunter Park, 14th & Chickasaw, McAlester
on Saturday, June 19, 2010, for the annual Juneteenth Celebration. The hours will be from 9:00 a.m.
until 5:00 p.m.

Juneteenth commemorates June 19, 1865 as the day Galveston, Texas and surrounding states received
the news of the Emancipation Proclamation of 1863. It is an historical event and is celebrated as an
educational investment for our community.

Thank you for your assistance.

Sincerely,

Maureen Harrison
Publicity Chairperson
Pittsburg County Chapter NAACP

xc: Miller Newman, President
File

(918) 423-6396



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 1

Department: Finance

Prepared By: Gayla Duke Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 1

SUbject
Consider and accept presentation of the Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report for
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2009.

Recommendation
Consider and act upon accepting the annual audit for FY 08-09 for the City of McAlester.

Discussion

Approved By
Initial
GDD

Date
05/04/10Department Head

City Manager PJS 05/04/10

Page 1 of 1



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 2

Department: Finance Department
Gayla D. Duke, Chief

Prepared By: Financial Officer Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 1

Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign an Engagement Letter with Crawford and Associates,
P.C., for the period from July 1,2010 through June 30, 2011.

Recommendation
Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign an Engagement Letter with Crawford and Associates, P.c.

Discussion
Annually, Crawford and Associates, P.C., submits an Engagement Letter for City Council consideration and
possible approval, which covers accounting services that they may provide the City during the term of the
agreement.

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

Date
05/04/10

05/05/10

Page 1 of 1



)
;;0

»
~
c,i

o
No r.c,

& ASSOCIATES

April 20, 2010

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of McAlester
P.O. Box 578
McAlester, OK 74502-0578

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

Crawford & Associates, P.c. is pleased that the City of McAlester (the City) continues to express its
confidence in our firm and our state and local government expertise. We look forward to a continued long
and successful relationship as an integral financial management resource to the City of McAlester
management and governing body.

Weare prepared to provide a full range of accounting and consulting services to the City of McAlester
contingent upon approval of your management and/or governing body. The purpose of this engagement
letter is to identify the scope of available services from Crawford & Associates, the specific initial
services requested at this time, and to confirm the terms, objectives, and limitations of our engagement
services.

Scope of Services

The scope of professional services that are available and can be provided to the City of McAlester are
outlined below under the heading Scope of Available Services. While this listing includes a range of
services available from Crawford & Associates, the specific initial services requested to be provided at
the current time are separately identified under the heading Initial Services Requested. Any additional
services that are available from Crawford & Associates beyond these initially requested services can be
provided upon subsequent specific request and agreement.

Scope of Available Services
Compilation of Annual Financial Statements (Restricted for Management Use Only)
General Accounting and Advisory Assistance
Budget Preparation and Amendment Assistance
Capital Asset Records and Accounting Assistance
Information Technology System Assistance
Internal Control Policies and Procedures Assistance
Labor Relations Consulting
Laws and Regulations Compliance Assistance
Investigation of Allegations or Concerns
Tax and Other Regulatory Report Assistance

Initial Services Requested
Compilation of Annual Financial Statements (Restricted for Management Use Only)
General Accounting and Advisory Assistance

r 405-691 -5550
: 405-691 -5646 Iw: www.crawfordcpas.com
: info@crawfordcpas.com I 10308 Greenbriar Place, Oklahoma City, OK 73159

http://www.crawfordcpas.com
mailto:info@crawfordcpas.com


CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES r.c

Services Related to the Compilation of Annual Financial Statements

The objective of a compilation is to assist you in presenting financial information in the form of financial
statements. We will utilize information that is your representation without undertaking to obtain any
assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order
for the statements to be in conformity with the applicable financial reporting framework defined below.

Applicable Financial Reporting Framework
In regards to the applicable financial reporting framework to be used in the compilation of the annual
financial statements, it is our understanding that:

a. Management has elected to present the annual financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

b. Management understands the applicable financial reporting framework and has taken the
necessary steps to determine that it is an appropriate and acceptable framework for meeting its
financial reporting needs.

c. While management ultimately intends to use the audited financial statements for general use,
management intends for these compiled financial statements to be used solely for providing such
statements to the City'S external financial statement auditor for their use in conducting the
financial statement audit. Therefore, such compiled financial statements will be restricted for
management's use only.

Crawford & Associates' Responsibilities
We will compile, from information you provide, the annual financial statements of the financial reporting
entity of the City of McAlester as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010. Such financial statements will
include the following to the extent they apply to the applicable financial reporting framework defined
above:

a. Management's Discussion and Analysis
b. Basic Financial Statements
c. Required Supplementary Information
d. Other Supplementary Information (to the extent management elects to include)

We will disclose to you any known and uncorrected departures from the applicable financial reporting
framework identified in the compilation of the annual financial statements.

Weare responsible for conducting the engagement in accordance with the Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AlCP A) that are applicable to compiled financial statements that are not intended for use by third parties.

The compilation engagement services will result in compiled annual financial statements that are
restricted as to use by management solely for the purpose of providing such compiled financial statements
to the external auditor for the conduct of the annual financial statement audit. As provided for in the
AICPA's Standards for Accounting and Review Services for compilations not expected to be used by
third parties, we will not issue a compilation report in conjunction with these compiled financial
statements, and instead, we will use this engagement letter as documentation and confirmation of your
understanding of the services to be performed and the limitations on the use of the compiled financial
statements. As such, we will follow the applicable AlCP A guidance and mark each page of the compiled
financial statements as "Restricted for Management's Use Only".



CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATESpc

Management's Responsibilities
In conjunction with the compilation of the annual financial statements, management is responsible for:

a. the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework as defined above, including all necessary informative disclosures;

b. designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements;

c. preventing and detecting fraud;
d. identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its

activities; and
e. making all financial records and related information available to us.

Limitations of a Compilation
A compilation differs significantly from a review or an audit of financial statements. A compilation does
not contemplate performing inquiry, analytical procedures, or other procedures performed in a review.
Additionally, a compilation does not contemplate obtaining an understanding of the entity's internal
control; assessing fraud risk; testing accounting records by obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
through inspection, observation, confirmation, or the examination of source documents (for example,
cancelled checks or bank images); or other procedures ordinarily performed in an audit.

Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance regarding the financial statements
being compiled.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or illegal acts. However, we will inform
the appropriate level of management of any material errors, and of any evidence or information that
comes to our attention during the performance of our compilation procedures that fraud may have
occurred. In addition, we will report to you any evidence or information that comes to our attention
during the performance of our compilation procedures regarding illegal acts that may have occurred,
unless they are clearly inconsequential.

The financial statements will not be accompanied by an accountant's report and are for management's use
only and are not to be used by a third party. Your external financial statement auditor is not considered a
third party for these purposes.

Management's Acknowledgements
In regards to the compilation of the annual financial statements, by signing this engagement letter,
management acknowledges its understanding and acceptance of the following:

a. That the nature and limitations of the compilation services and the restricted use of such financial
statements only by the external auditor in conjunction with the financial statement audit;

b. That a compilation is limited to presenting, in the form of financial statements, information that is
the representation of management; and the work performed by Crawford & Associates in
compiling the annual financial statements cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or
illegal acts;

c. That the financial statements will not be audited by Crawford & Associates and no opinion or any
other form of assurance on the financial statements will be provided in conjunction with the
compilation;

d. That management has knowledge about the nature ofthe procedures to be applied and the
applicable fmancial reporting framework and assumptions to be used in the preparation of the
financial statements;



CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES PC

e. That the compiled financial statements are not to be used by any third parties for any purpose (the
financial statement auditor is not considered to be a third party); and

f. That management is ultimately responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements
and management will make such representations to the external auditors.

Other Requested and Available Services

In conjunction with the other requested and available services (other than the compilation of the annual
financial statements) as identified in the Scope of Services section of this letter, Crawford & Associates
will be responsible for providing such services upon request in accordance with the applicable
professional standards of the AICP A. It is anticipated that most if not all of these other services will be
performed in accordance with the standards applicable to consulting services as prescribed by the AICP A.

Crawford & Associates, is not obligated to, but may report or otherwise communicate to management any
recommendations, it determines necessary, resulting from the professional services provided.

Management and the governing body will be responsible for establishing the scope of our other
professional services to be provided and for providing the necessary resources allocated to the work; such
responsibility includes determining the nature, scope, and extent of the services to be performed,
providing sufficient appropriation for the estimated cost of these services, providing overall direction and
oversight for each service, and reviewing and accepting the results of the work.

Access to Working Papers and Reports

Any working papers prepared by Crawford & Associates in connection with performing the compilation
and other professional services are the property of Crawford & Associates. Upon request, copies of any
or all working papers and reports that we consider to be nonproprietary will be provided to management.
Management may make such copies available to its external auditors and to certain regulators in the
exercise of their statutory oversight responsibilities. Such copies may not be made available to any other
third party without the prior written consent from Crawford & Associates.

Fees and Costs

Fees and out-of-pocket expenses for this engagement will be billed as the work progresses and payable
upon receipt of our invoices. Out-of-pocket expenses include such costs incurred by Crawford &
Associates in providing the services including travel, lodging, telecommunications, printing, document
reproduction, and the like. Our fees for these services will be billed at our standard hourly rates, as
follows, for the individual performing such services based on the actual number of hours of work,
including travel time, performed by that individual.

Standard Hourly Rates:

• Firm Chairman Emeritus and Firm President $200
• Other Firm Shareholders/Owners and Managers $135
• Accounting & Consulting Staff $95
• Clerical Staff $30



CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATESp.c

Because Crawford & Associates has no direct control over the type and amount of services requested by
the management or the governing body during the term of this engagement, nor does Crawford &
Associates have direct control over the quality of your accounting system or records, potential turnover of
your staff, or your staffing levels, resources, or capabilities, it is impractical for us to provide an accurate
amount of hours that will be required for the services requested or a not-to-exceed limit on fees and
expenses charged. We will rely on you to provide us with a copy of approved purchase orders, containing
estimated fees and expenses, monitor the cumulative fees and expenses charged, and notify us if and
when the cumulative amount approaches the total appropriated level estimated. You also agree to provide
sufficient appropriation for all services requested prior to the services being performed. For purposes of
purchase order preparation, we will be glad to provide you with an estimated range of fees and expenses
upon request.

The City agrees to provide sufficient appropriation for all services requested prior to the services being
performed. For purposes of purchase order preparation, we will be glad to provide the City with an
estimated range of fees and expenses upon request.

The term of this engagement is a period from July 1, 2010 through June 30,2011. Crawford & Associates
may perform additional services upon receipt of a formal request from management or the governing
body with terms and conditions that are acceptable to both parties.

The agreements and undertakings contained in this engagement letter, shall survive the completion or
termination of this engagement.

Acceptance

Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by signing in the space provided below and returning
this engagement letter to us. A duplicate copy of this engagement letter is provided for your records. We
look forward to continuing our professional relationship with the City of McAlester.

Respectfully submitted and agreed to by,

lff!:rd4G-
Crawford and Associates, P.C.

Accepted and agreed to for the City of McAlester:

By: -------------------
Title: -----------------
Date: -----------------



Transmission Report

Date/Time
LocatiO 1
Local 102

03-05-2010
9184214970

05: 57:46 p.m. Transmit Header Text
Local Name 1
Local Name2

Line 1City of MCalester
Line 2

~o Thisdocument: Confirmed
(reduced sample and details below)

Document size: 8.S"x11"

."& ASSOCIATES

April 20, 2010

Honorable Mayor and Membel'5 of me City Council
City ofMcAlestet
P.O.BoxS78
McAlester, OK 74502-0578

To the Honorable Mayor and Menlbers or the City Council:

Crawford & Associates, P.C. is pleased lha~the City of McAlester (the City) continues 10 express its
confidence in our firm and our stale and local government expertise. We look forward to a continued long
and successful relationship 88 an integral financial management resource to the City of McAlester
management and governing body.

We are prepared to provide a full range of llOOOUntillf!;and consulting services 10 the City of McAlester
contingent upon approval of your management andIo;' governing body. The purpose of Ibis engagement
letter is to identifY the scope of available serviees from Crawford & Associates, the specific initial
services requested at this time, and 10 confirm the tenus, objectives, and limitations of our engagement
services.

Stope ofServket

The scope of professiooal services that are available and can be provided to the City of McAlester are
outlined below under the heading Scope of Available Services. While this listing includes a range of
services available from Crawford & Associates, tbe specific initial services requested 10 be provided at
the current time are separately identified under the heading Initial Services Requested. Any additional
services lhal are available from Crawford & Associates beyond these initially requested services can be
provided upon subsequent specific request and agreement.

S9QPC of Available Services
Compilation of Annual Financial Statements (Restricted for Management Use Only)
General Accounting and Advisory Assistance
B\ldgel Preparation and Ametldmcnt Assistance
Capital Asset Records and Accounting AssiswlCe
Information Technology System Assistance
Internal Control Policies and Procedures Assistance
Labor Relations Consulting
Laws and Regulations Compliance Assistance
Investigation of Allegations or Concerns
Tax and Other RegulatQI)' Report Assistanoe

loitiftl Services Requested
Compilation of Annual Financial Slatements (Restricted for Management Use Only)
Genoral Accounting and Advisory Assistance

T: 405-691-55S0
,: 405-691·5646 Iw' www.crowlordcpas.com
E: infoOaowfordcpos.CiOCllII0308~rl'lace,OkIahomoCiiy,OK73J59

Total Pages Confirmed: 6
Start Time Duration

05:53:32 p.m. 03-05-2010 00:03:27

Abbreviations:
HS: Host send
HR: Host receive
WS: Waiting send

PL: Polled local
PR: Polled remote
MS: Mailbox save

MP: Mailbox print
CP: Completed
FA: Fall

TU: Terminated by user
TS: Terminated by system
RP: Report

G3: Group 3
EC: Error Correct

http://www.crowlordcpas.com


McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 3

Department: City Manager
Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code: N/A

Date Prepared: May 4,2010 BUdgeted Amount: N/A
Exhibits: 2

SUbject
TABLED - Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract upon City Attorney review with
Allied Waste Services of Alderson for the City of McAlester's solid waste collection, removal and disposal.

Recommendation
Motion to accept the Allied Waste Services (AWS) of Alderson proposal subject to review by the City
Attorney.

Discussion
The City Council held workshops on March 4, 2010 and April 6, 2010, to discuss the City of McAlester's
options for solid waste collection, removal and disposal. An analysis of the recent proposals, including the
City's cost of residential curbside pickup, was presented. The staffs recommendation is to accept the AWS
proposal for solid waste collection, removal and disposal.

Approved By
Initial
PJS

PJS'I '1

Date
05/04/10Department Head

City Manager 05/04/10

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF MCALESTER
SOLID WASTE PRICING STRUCTURE COMPARISON

5/11/2010

MONTHLY MONTHLY
CURRENT PRICING RATE PROPOSED PRICING RATE

Residential Customers: Residential Customers:
Customer supplied trash cans twice/week AWS supplied 95 gallon poly-cart once/week

Charge from Allied Waste to City $ 8.95
City Administrative Fee (Note 1) 5.00
Cubic yardage fee (Note 2) 4.00

Total Base Rate $ 18.16 Total Base Rate $ 17.95
Landfill fee (Note 3) 4.16 Landfill fee (Note 3) 4.16
Use fee (Note 5) 0.26 Recycling fee (Note 4) 0.40

Total Residential Rate $ 22.58 Total Residential Rate $ 22.51

Commercial Customers: Commercial Cutomers:
Customer supplied cans < 1 yard AWS supplied 95 gallon poly-cart once/week

Charge from Allied Waste to City $ 15.00
City admininstration fee (Note 1) 5.00
Cubic yardage fee (Note 2) 4.00

Tota I Base Rate $ 19.33 Total Base Rate $ 24.00
Landfill fee (Note 3) 4.16 Landfill fee (Note 3) 4.16
Use fee (Note 5) 0.26 Recycling fee (Note 4) 0.40

Total Commercial Rate $ 23.75 Total Commercial Rate $ 28.56

Commercial Customers:
Customer supplied 1 yard dumpster twice/week

Total Base Rate
Landfill fee (Note 3)
Use fee (Note 5)

Total Commercial Rate

$ 24.62
4.16
0.26

$ 29.04

Commercial Customers:
AWS supplied 2 yard dumpster once/week
Charge from Allied Waste ($3.50/c.y.)
City administration fee (Note 1)
Cubic yardage fee (Note 2)

Total Base Rate
Landfill fee (Note 3)
Recycling fee (Note 4)

Total Commercial Rate

$ 30.31
5.00
4.33

$ 39.64
4.16
0.40

$ 44.20

Notes:
1. $5.00 charge per solid waste customer to cover billing, collection and customer service costs for City.
2. Cubic yardage fee is a city imposed fee of $0.50/c.y. with a minimum charge of $4.00 per month.
3. Landfill fee will used for daily cover, operating expenses, closing and post closing costs for the city landfill.
4. Recycling fee recovers the annual charge from Allied Waste to staff and operate a city recycling center.
5. Use fee will be eliminated.

AWSPricingComp51110



CONTRACT
FOR

(
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION,

REMOV AL and DISPOSAL SERVICES

This CONTRACT, made and entered into this day of , 2010, by and
between the McAlester Public Works Authority, a Public Trust in which the City of McAlester
holds the beneficial interest, hereinafter referred to as "AUTHORITY" and

hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR."

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR did on the _15th_ day of _December , 2009, submit
a PROPOSAL pursuant to a Request for Proposals as approved by the McAlester Public Works
Authority to collect and remove all residential and commercial solid waste within the City of
McAlester and to perform other such work as may be incidental thereto, for the period from
February 1, 2010, through January 31, 2020, inclusive; all of the expense of every nature and
kind incurred in solid waste collection and removal is during period #1 and in solid waste
collection, removal and disposal during period #2.

( NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual agreements and covenants herein
contained, it is understood and agreed by and between CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY that:

1. The term ofthis CONTRACT is from February 1, 2010 to January 31,2020. Divided into
two (2) periods as follows:

Period #1 - February, 2010 to October 1, 2010
Period #2 - October 2,2010 to January 31,2020

~ The PROPASAL will be awarded in two (2) CONTRACT Periods. Period #1
will require the CONTRACTOR to provide solid waste collection, removal and
disposal at the City of McAlester landfill. Period #2 will require the
CONTRACTOR to provide solid waste collection, removal and disposal at a
landfill provided by the CONTRACTOR. The selected CONTRACTOR will be
required to provide to the AUTHORITY all necessary documentation proving that
the CONTRACTOR has a valid landfill disposal CONTRACT and that the
landfill has sufficient life to assure the AUTHORITY that the CONTRACTOR
can meet the requirements of this CONTRACT.

~ The SCHEDULE OF QUOTES for Period #2 shall include all fee's, taxes,
charges, etc., and shall be included in the quoted prices.

The Terms and Conditions of this CONTRACT shall be reviewed on June 1 during each year of
the CONTRACT and may be ratified or renewed with changes agreeable to the CONTRACTOR
and the AUTHORITY.

~

CONTRACT - Page 1



II. The above referenced PROPOSAL, the Request for Proposals, General and Special
Conditions, Performance, Payment and Guarantee Bonds are expressly made a part of
this CONTRACT by reference as though fully set out verbatim herein.

III. The AUTHORITY agrees to pay and the CONTRACTOR agrees to accept, in full
consideration for the performance of the CONTRACTOR's obligations, compensation to
be computed at the UNIT PRICES set forth in the Schedule of Quotes.

This CONTRACT covers the Basic Residential and Commercial Services as set forth in
the PROPOSAL and in the Schedule of Quotes.

IV. This CONTRACT constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties
hereto, and shall not be modified, altered, changed, or amended in any respect unless in
writing and signed by both parties hereto.

If the AUTHORITY participates with the CONTRACTOR in any cost reduction
programs, efficiency studies, or studies of innovative methods or equipment, or take any
action that results in cost savings for the CONTRACTOR, the AUTHORITY shall
receive rate decreases equal to a minimum of fifty percent (50%) of the savings realized
by the CONTRACTOR.

V. CONTRACTOR shall conform to all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to
this CONTRACT.

VI. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify; save and hold harmless the AUTHORITY, the City,
their officers, employees and agents from all claims, suits or actions of whatever kind or
character made upon or brought against the City or AUTHORITY, their officers,
employees or agents, for or on account of any injuries or damage received or sustained by
any party or parties by or from the acts of said CONTRACTOR or its servants, agents,
employees and subcontractors, in doing the work and rendering the services herein
contracted for, or by or in consequence of any negligence in operations or any improper
equipment or material used, or by or on account of any act or omission of
CONTRACTOR or servants, agents, employees or subcontractors and also from all
claims of damage for infringement of any patent in fulfilling this CONTRACT. This
indemnity shall include attorney's fees and costs and all other costs and 'expenses
incurred in the defense of any suit.

(

VII. CONTRACTOR shall not assign this CONTRACT to another party, company,
partnership, or corporation without specific approval in writing from the AUTHORITY.

VIII. CONTRACTOR shall pay all just claims due for the payment of all employees and
mechanics for labor that shall be performed, for the payment of all material and
equipment furnished, and for the payment of material, equipment and facilities rented
which is actually used or rented in the performance of this CONTRACT

CONTRACTOR shall submit evidence satisfactory to the AUTHORITY that all payrolls,
equipment, materials or facility bills, and other indebtedness pertaining to the
performance of this CONTRACT have been paid.

CONTRACT - Page 2



IX. In the event that it shall become impossible or unlawful for CONTRACTOR to continue
the performance of this CONTRACT by reason of an Act of God, an Act of the
Legislature herein after passed, by Act of the City or AUTHORITY, or by reason of a
final order by the court of record in proceedings not instituted by or acquiesced in by the
CONTRACTOR, directly or indirectly, and not due to any negligence upon the
CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for damage for consequences
arising solely out of such impossibility.

(

X. This CONTRACT shall not constitute a franchise or an exclusive right to collect solid
waste for roll-off containers within the corporate limits of the City of McAlester.

XI. This CONTRACT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oklahoma both as to
interpretation and performance.

XII. The CONTRACTOR may submit a copy of their standard CONTRACT for services,
however the AUTHORITY reserves the right to change, amend or use its CONTRACT as
contained in this PROPOSAL.

In witness Whereof, we, the contracting parties, by our duly authorized agents, hereto affix our
signatures and seals at McAlester, Oklahoma, this day of ,2010.

MCALESTER PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY

By: _
( Kevin Priddle

Mayor
(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Cora Middleton
City Clerk

Allied Waste Services of Alderson'----
Name of CONTRACTOR

By: Bob Mathis
_General Manager _
Title

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Secretary

CONTRACT - Page 3



PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned
_______________ as PRINCIPAL, and

_______________ as SURETY, are hereby held and firmly bound

unto the McAlester Public Works Authority, a Municipal Authority in the sum of

__ ~~==_=.Dollars ($ ) for the payment of which, well and truly

to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, successors and assigns, jointly and

severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGAnON is such that whereas the PRINCIPAL

entered into a certain CONTRACT for Services with the McAlester Public Works Authority, a

Municipal Authority, dated the day of , 2010, a copy

of which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for solid waste collection, removal and

disposal for the City of McAlester.

( NOW THEREFORE, if the PRINCIPAL shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the
undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and requirements of said CONTRACT for Services
during the first CONTRACT period thereof, and if he shall satisfy all claims and demands
incurred under such CONTRACT, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the City of
McAlester from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall
reimburse and repay the City of McAlester all outlay and expense which the City of McAlester
may incur in making good any default, that this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in
full force and effect.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees
that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the CONTRACT for
.Services or the Services to be provided there under or the Provisions accompanying the same
shall in any wise affect its obligation on this BOND, and it does hereby waive notice of any such
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the CONTRACT for Services or
to the Services or to the Provisions.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the McAlester Public Works
AUTHORITY and the PRINCIPAL shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose
claim may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PRINCIPAL and the SURETY have hereunto set their hands and
seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed
and these presents to be signed by proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.



(

(

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in triplicate, this day of _

_____ ,2010.

Principal
ATTEST

By:

(Witness as to Principal)

(Address)

Surety
ATTEST

By:

By:

(Witness as to Surety) Attorney-in-Fact

(Address) (Address)

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to the date of the CONTRACT. If PRINCIPAL is a
partnership, all partners should execute BOND.

IMPORT ANT - Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department's
most current list [Circular 570 as amended] and be authorized to transact business in the state
where the project is located.



(

GENERAL AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS
FOR

(
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION,

REMOV AL and DISPOSAL SERVICES



1.0 - DEFINITIONS

1.1 For the purposes of this CONTRACT, the following definitions shall apply in addition to
the provisions of the Municipal Code of the City of McAlester in effect as of the date of
this CONTRACT and including any amendments and/or revisions of said Code during
the term of this CONTRACT.

a. A UTHORITY- Means the McAlester Public Works Authority.

b. Bags - Plastic sacks designed to store refuse with sufficient wall strength to
maintain physical integrity when lifted by the top.

c. Bin - Metal receptacle designed to be lifted and emptied mechanically for use
only at commercial and industrial units.

d. Bulky Waste - Stoves, refrigerators, water tanks, washing machines, furniture and
other waste materials other than construction debris, dead animals" hazardous
waste or stable matter with weights or volumes greater than those allowed for bins
or containers, as the case may be.

Bulky waste items which typically contain refrigerants such as Freon will not be
accepted unless the person disposing of such items provides the CONTRACTOR
with an acceptable written certification that the refrigerant has been removed in
accordance with the procedures established under E.P.A.' s CFC Recycling and
Disposal Rule of 1993 (40 CFR 82.156 (g) or (h)).

(
e. Bundle - Tree, shrub and brush trimmings or newspapers and magazines securely

tied together forming an easily handled package not exceeding three and one-half
(3 12) feet in length or 50 pounds in weight.

f. City - Means the City of McAlester or any other entity or department of the City.

g. Collection Point - The point at which the waste will be picked up at the residential
unit. This is either house-side or alley or curbside.

h. Commercial and Industrial Refuse - All bulky waste, construction debris,
garbage, rubbish and stable matter generated by a producer at a commercial or
industrial unit.

1. Commercial and Industrial Unit - All premises, locations or entities, public or
private, requiring refuse collection within the corporate limits of the City, not a
residential unit.

J. Construction debris - Waste building materials resulting from construction,
remodeling, repair or demolition operations.

k. Container (poly cart) - A receptacle with a capacity of 95 gallons constructed of
plastic or other approved material, having handles of adequate strength for lifting,
and having a tight fitting lid capable of preventing entrance into the container by

General and Special Provisions - Page 1



vectors. One shall be supplied by the CONTRACTOR to each residential unit,
and each commercial unit as needed. Care, custody and cleaning shall be the
responsibility of the customer. The CONTRACTOR shall replace up to fifty (50)
carts at no cost.

1. CONTRACTOR - The person, corporation or partnership performing refuse
collection and landfill operation under CONTRACT with the City.

m. Curbside - That area within four feet of the curb line of the street or public alley
from which a residence, property or institution is serviced.

n. Dead Animals - Animals or portions thereof equal to or greater than 10 lbs. in
weight that have expired from any cause.

o. Director - Shall mean the Public Works Director of the City of McAlester or any
designated representative.

p. Disposal Site - A refuse depository, including but not limited to the landfill and
other sanitary landfills, transfer stations, incinerators, and waste
processing/separation centers licensed, permitted or approved to receive for
processing or final disposal of refuse and dead animals by all governmental
bodies and agencies having jurisdiction and requiring such licenses permits or
approvals.

q. Garbage - Any and all dead animals of less than 10 lbs. in weight; every
accumulation of waste (animal, vegetable and/or other matter) that results from
the preparation, processing, consumption, dealing in, handling, packing, canning.
storage, transportation, decay or decomposition of meats, fish, fowl, birds, fruits,
grains, or other animal or vegetable matter (including, but not by way of
limitation, used tin cans or other food containers; and all putrescible or easily
decomposable waste animal or vegetable matter which is likely to attract flies or
rodents;) except (in all cases) any matter included in the definition of bulky waste,
constriction debris, dead animals, hazardous waste, rubbish or stable matter.

(

r. Hazardous Waste - Any chemical, compound, mixture, substance or article which
is designated by the E.P.A. or appropriate agency of the State to be "hazardous"
as that term is defined by or pursuant to federal or state law.

s. House-side - refers to all ofthe following:

(l) Where serviced from the street, that area no further from the street than
within four feet of the rear corner of the residence and/or building in a
location outside any enclosed or fenced portion of the premises that does
not have an open gate or other opening.

(2) Where serviced from an alley in the rear of the premises, that area closest
to the alley and adjacent to the property line, but outside of any enclosed
or fenced portion of the premises which does not have an open gate or
other opening.

I
\\.

General and Special Provisions - Page 2



(3) A location designated by the Director when the physical conditions of the
premises make it impractical or impossible to conform to (1) or (2) above.

(4) House-side Handicapped. A location designated by the Director when the
physical conditions of the resident, either permanent or temporary, is such
that he/she can not physically maneuver a receptacle to the designated
pick-up area.

t. Producer - An occupant of a commercial and industrial unit or a residential unit
who generates refuse.

u. Refuse - This term shall refer to residential refuse and bulky waste, construction
debris and stable matter generated at a residential unit, unless the context
otherwise requires, and commercial and industrial refuse.

v. Residential Refuse - All garbage and rubbish generated by producer at a
residential unit.

w. Residential Unit - A dwelling occupied by a person or group of persons
comprising not more than four families. A residential unit shall be deemed
occupied when either water or domestic light and power services are being
supplied thereto. A condominium dwelling, whether single or multi-level
construction, consisting of four or less contiguous or separate single-family
dwelling units, shall be treated as a residential unit, except that each single family
dwelling within any such residential unit shall be billed separately as a residential
unit.

(
x. Rubbish - All waste wood, wood products, tree trimmings, grass cuttings, dead

plants, weeds, leaves, dead trees or branches thereof, chips, shavings, sawdust,
printed matter, paper, pasteboard, rags, straw, used and discarded mattresses used
and discarded clothing, used and discarded shoes and boots, combustible waste
pulp and other products such as are used for packaging, or wrapping crockery and
glass, ashes, cinders, floor sweepings, glass, mineral or metallic substances, and
any and all other waste materials not included in the definition of bulky waste,
construction debris, dead animals, garbage, hazardous waste or stable matter The
collection point will be at curbside or alley.

y. Stable Matter - All manure and other waste matter normally accumulated in or
about a stable, or any animal, livestock or poultry enclosure, and resulting from
the keeping of animals, poultry or livestock

General and Special Provisions - Page 3



(
2.1

2.2

(
2.3

2.4

(
"

2.0 - INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR will indemnity, save harmless and exempt the McAlester Public
Works Authority, the City of McAlester, its officers, agents, servants, and employees
from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages,
costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incident to any work done in the performance of this
CONTRACT arising out of a willful or negligent act or omission of the CONTRACTOR,
its officers, agents, servants, and employees; provided, however, that the
CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims,
demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorney's fees arising out of a willful or
negligent act or omission of the AUTHORITY, the City of McAlester, its officers,
agents, servants and employees, or third parties.

The CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the CONTRACT maintain, in full force and
effect, Employer's Liability, Workmen's Compensation, Public Liability and Property
Damage Insurance, including contractor liability coverage for the provisions of Section
2.0. ALL insurance shall be by such insurers and for policy limits acceptable to the
AUTHORITY. Before commencement of work hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall
furnish the AUTHORITY certificates of insurance or other evidence satisfactory to the
AUTHORITY, to the effect that such insurance has been procured and is in force.
Insurance certificates shall contain the following express obligation:

"This is to certify that the policies of insurance described herein have been issued to the
insured for whom this certificate is issued, and the coverage's stated are in force at this
time. In the event of cancellation or material change in a policy affecting the certificate
holder, thirty (30) days prior written notice shall be given the certificate holder. '

For the purpose of this CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR shall carry no less that the
minimum insurance coverage as specified below:

Coverage

Workmen's Compensation
Employer's Liability
Bodily Injury Liability ...

Except Automobile
Property Damage Liability

Except Automobile
Automobile Bodily Injury

Liability
Automobile Property Damage Liability
Excess Umbrella Liability

Limits of Liability

Statutory
$ 500,000
$ 500,000 each occurrence
$1,000,000 aggregate
$ 500,000 each occurrence
$ 500,000 aggregate
$ 500,000 each person
$ 500,000 each occurrence
$ 500,000 each occurrence
$5,000,000 each occurrence

It is expressly understood and agreed that the CONTRACTOR is an independent
CONTRACTOR and that the CONTRACTOR and its employees are not employees of
the City of McAlester, and that the City of McAlester is not to provide Workmen's
Compensation, health or accident insurance, general liability insurance, or any other form
of insurance coverage of any kind which would cover the CONTRACTOR or its
employees, if any, in and under the terms of this CONTRACT.

General and Special Provisions - Page 4



3.0 - BONDING REQUIREMENTS

3.1 The successful CONTRACTOR shall be required to furnish a PERFORMANCE BOND
acceptable to the AUTHORITY in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the
total annual quote for solid waste collection, removal and disposal services for the period
of the CONTRACT. The CONTRACTOR shall have twenty (20) days following written
notification from the AUTHORITY to provide such a bond.

3.2 A Performance Bond shall also be required for each subsequent period of the
CONTRACT and shall be presented to the AUTHORITY by the CONTRACTOR no
later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of the subsequent period of the
CONTRACT. The PERFORMANCE BOND amount required for each subsequent year
of the CONTRACT shall be equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the quoted cost of
solid waste collection, removal and disposal services for that year.

3.3 PERFORMANCE BONDS provided to the AUTHORITY by the CONTRACTOR shall
guarantee the performance of the CONTRACTOR under the terms and conditions of
these specifications and the CONTRACT for services between the parties.

(

General and Special Provisions - Page 5



( 4.0 - SCOPE OF SERVICE

4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide solid waste collection, removal and disposal services
to all residential, commercial and industrial premises in accordance with the following:

4.1.1 Premises to which the City of McAlester, hereinafter referred to as "CITY"
provides services at the time the CONTRACTOR begins operations, as
determined by utility billing and refuse routes.

4.1.2 Premises not serviced by the City at the time CONTRACTOR begins operations
shall be serviced by the CONTRACTOR on the first regularly scheduled day after
receiving written instructions to do so from the Director, so long as they are either
on an existing route or within one mile of an existing service and meet the
following criteria, or in any newly annexed area of the City:

(a) One residence with no adjacent residence must he within 1/10 mile of a
service route.

(b) Two adjacent residences must be within 2/1 0 mile of a service route.

(c) Three adjacent residences must be within 3/10 mile of a service route.

(d) Four adjacent residences must be within 4/1 0 mile of a service route.

( (e) Five adjacent residences must be within 5/10 mile of a service route.

(f) Six or more adjacent residences must be within one mile of an existing
service route.

4.2 The CONTRACTOR may refuse to service a location as specified only when one or more
of the following conditions exist:

4.2.1 When solid waste is not placed in approved containers or in the required pick-up
areas. The CONTRACTOR shall advise in writing, the person or company
affected by refusal to collect.

This notice shall be given by affixing a red tag to the container. The form and
information on the tag must be approved by the Director. A copy of the notice or
record of same shall be submitted to the Director within twenty-four (24) hours
listing date, time, reason, and address where refuse was not collected.

4.2.2 CONTRACTOR will not be required to collect dead animals, construction debris
or hazardous materials as defined herein.

4.2.3 The CONTRACTOR shall discontinue service at any location set forth in a
written notice from the Director. CONTRACTOR shall resume collection service
on the next regularly scheduled collection days following notice to do so.

General and Special Provisions - Page 6



4.3 For residential collection, on each regularly scheduled pick-up day, CONTRACTOR
shall collect all refuse, garbage, or bulky waste that is in Poly Carts and placed in the
proper location for collection. CONTRACTOR shall return all Poly Carts to the proper
upright location with lids securely fastened. CONTRACTOR is responsible for any
damage to containers due to the actions of its employees during collection.

4.4 The CONTRACTOR shall not litter public or private property while collecting and/or
removing refuse and shall clean-up any spilled refuse immediately. All refuse hauled by
CONTRACTOR shall be so contained, tied or enclosed that leaking, spilling or blowing
is prevented.

4.5 CONTRACTOR shall dispose of all refuse at the McAlester Municipal Landfill during
period #1. During period #2 the landfill to be used for disposal shall be designated by the
CONTRACTOR.

4.6 CONTRACTOR shall provide collection, removal and disposal services at no cost in
conjunction with the City of McAlester annual Two-week City-wide cleanup, which
occurs in the spring and fall.

4.7 CONTRACTOR shall provide collection, removal and disposal services for the City
governmental operations at no additional charge under this CONTRACT. This does not
include sludge generated by the treatment plants. The following is a list of locations,
container quantities, sizes and frequency of collection included under this requirement:

(
Location Quantity Size Frequency

Public Works Facility 2 3 yd. When Needed
Cemetery 1 3 yd. When Needed
City Hall 1 3 yd. Twice Weekly
EXPO 3 2-2 yd. When Needed

1- 3 yd.
1- 20 yd.
roll-off

Mike Deak Ball Field 1 2 yd. When Needed
Police Firing Range 1 3 yd. When Needed
Monroe Complex 1 3 yd. Twice Weekly
Stipe Center 1 3 yd. Twice Weekly
Public Library 1 3 yd. Twice Weekly
Sports Complex* 3 3 yd. Once Weekly
Wastewater Treatment Plants (East, West) 2 1- 2 yd. When Needed

1- 1 yd.
Police Garage (Hereford Lane Complex) 1 3 yd. Twice Weekly
Municipal Airport 2 1- 3 yd. Twice Weekly

1- 2 yd.
Fire Station # 1 (South) 1 1 yd. When Needed
Fire Station # 2 (North) Cans Cans When Needed
Genealogical Building Cans Cans When Needed
Downtown Trash Receptacles (currently (10) 20 Cans When Needed

General and Special Provisions - Page 7



(

Municipal Swimming Pools (2) 3 yd. Twice Weekly1
* May need extra pick-ups during tournaments

Additional services to municipal operations will be provided as needed.

A. BASIC RESIDENTIAL SERVICE: Approximately one percent (l %) of the estimated
total residential units is picked up at house-side; approximately sixty percent (60%) are
picked up in alleys and the rest, thirty-nine percent (39%) receive curbside pickup.

B. CITY-WIDE CLEANUP: The estimated volume of bulky waste collected at the most
recent annual city-wide cleanup (See 4.6 of the General and Special Provisions) is two
hundred and fifty tons. The drop off site is in various locations throughout the City.

C. GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS: Disposal of refuse from governmental operations
of the City of McAlester (See 4.7 of the General and Special Provisions) shall be
included at no additional cost.

Number of Residential, Commercial and Industrial Units Serviced

TYPE OF SERVICE TABLE APPROXIMATE # COMMENTSOF UNITS

Residential R 7,144

Residential, House-side RH 0

Residential, House-side
RHO 0Outside city limits

Residential, Outside city RO 0limits

Commercial, Trash Cans TC 377

Commercial, Flat Rate C

Commercial, 2 yd. Dumpster D14 255

Commercial, 3 yd. Dumpster D12 223

Commercial, Full Dumpster D3 N/A

Commercial, Full Dumpster
D30 0Outside City Limits

TOTAL
Note: The above numbers are as of November 17, 2009 and are subject to change.

General and Special Provisions - Page 8



5.0 - CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS

5.1 CONTRACTOR shall furnish the Director, in writing, the name and background
information of its managing agent forty-five (45) days prior to commencing collection
operations and shall notify Director of any change in agents. The CONTRACTOR's
managing agent shall serve as the point of control for dealings and communications with
CONTRACTOR.

5.2 CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain a sufficient number of vehicles, equipment,
tools and personnel to collect, remove, and dispose of refuse as required by this
CONTRACT.

5.3 CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain a garage, shop, and yard for its operations
within the corporate limits of the City of McAlester or Pittsburg County, sufficient to
ensure all weather year-round operation. These facilities shall he maintained in
accordance with applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations.

5.4 Routes and Schedules

5.4.1 Maps and schedules of collection routes shall be provided to the Director and
Utility Billing no later than thirty (30) days prior to the initiation of collection
operations or changes in operations.

5.4.2 CONTRACTOR shall not commence collection in residential areas prior to 7:00
A.M. and shall not continue past 7:00 P.M.

( 5.4.3 CONTRACTOR shall notify the Director of all days to be observed as holidays
by CONTRACTOR's employees prior to commencing collection operations and
shall notify persons to be affected by CONTRACTOR's holiday schedule prior to
the holiday in question. Persons whose regularly scheduled collection days fall on
such a holiday will be served on the next regularly scheduled collection day or
within four (4) days, which ever comes first. Sunday or holiday collections are
not required except as special-pick-ups.

5.4.4 Not less than two (2) weeks prior to commencing collection operations, the
CONTRACTOR shall notify each customer affected by changing routes or
schedules that alter the day(s) of collection. Notice shall be made by mail to
individual customers and by a large public notification in the local news media.

5.4.5 The Director must give written approval to all routes and schedules when
established or changed prior to implementation.

5.5 Vehicles and Other Equipment

5.5.1 CONTRACTOR's vehicles and other equipment shall be clearly identified as
belonging to the CONTRACTOR and must be kept in good repair, appearance
and in a sanitary condition at all times.

(

General and Special Provisions - Page 9



5.5.2 Bodies of the CONTRACTOR's trucks shall be enclosed packer type, water tight,
sanitary and capable of unloading by dumping or automatic push out means.

5.5.3 CONTRACTOR's equipment shall essentially be a standard product of a
reputable manufacturer so that continuing service and delivery of spare parts are
assured.

5.5.4 CONTRACTOR's equipment/vehicles shall have clearly visible letters (minimum
of 6") with the name, address and telephone number of CONTRACTOR's local
office on each side of the equipment/vehicle.

5.5.5 CONTRACTOR shall ensure that each vehicle carries sufficient hand tools to
allow cleanup of spilled or littered refuse, a first aid kit, and necessary emergency
equipment.

5.5.6 CONTRACTOR shall submit evidence satisfactory to Director, and maintain
same for term of this CONTRACT, that a maintenance CONTRACT for repair
and service of equipment or employment of qualified service mechanics is in
effect.

5.5.7 CONTRACTOR shall furnish the Director with a list identifying all vehicles and
equipment to be used in fulfilling this CONTRACT and notify the Director of any
additions or deletions.

5.6 CONTRACTOR's Personnel:

( 5.6.1 Employees driving or operating CONTRACTOR's vehicles shall at all times
possess a valid commercial vehicle operator's license ofthe State of Oklahoma.

5.6.2 Employees of the CONTRACTOR who normally and regularly come into contact
with the public shall bear some means of individual identification such as a
uniform nametag or identification card.

5.6.3 CONTRACTOR's employees, officers, agents, and sub-contractors shall, at no
time, identify themselves or in any way represent themselves as being employees
or agents of the City of McAlester or the McAlester Public Works Authority.

5.6.4 CONTRACTOR shall take affirmative action not to deny employment or all
benefits of employment for reasons of race, religion, color, sex or national origin.
CONTRACTOR shall post in conspicuous places notices setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. Similar notices shall be included in
all advertisements for employees.

5.6.5 Employees of the CONTRACTOR shall not be required to expose themselves to
the dangers of vicious animals in order to accomplish refuse collection in any case
where the owner or tenants have animals at large, but the CONTRACTOR shall
immediately notify the City in writing, of such condition and of his inability to
make collection.

(

General and Special Provisions - Page 10



5.7 CONTRACTOR's Local Office

(
5.7.1 Throughout the term of this CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR shall establish

and maintain a local office and an authorized managing agent within the City of
McAlester or Pittsburg County. If the office is not located within the McAlester
City Limits then the CONTRACTOR shall provide a toll free telephone number
(McAlester phone exchange). CONTRACTOR shall designate, in writing to the
Director, the agent upon whom all notices may be served from the AUTHORITY,
City or Director. Service upon the CONTRACT's agents shall always constitute
service upon CONTRACTOR.

5.7.2 The office shall be open during collection hours; have responsible person(s) in
charge during open hours; be equipped with sufficient telephones to receive and
record complaints, requests for information, service changes, etc.; complaints
shall be resolved in a courteous, polite, and expeditious manner within the
following twenty-four (24) hour period.

5.8 CONTRACTOR's Records

5.8.1 CONTRACTOR shall keep and maintain records of all refuse collected and
charges therefore, and the Director shall have the right to inspect and review said
records that in any way pertain to the payments due CONTRACTOR and/or to the
CONTRACTOR's contractual obligations. CONTRACTOR's accounting shall be
approved by the Director.

(
5.8.2 Examples of specific information to be recorded include but are not limited to:

Route and schedule information; names, addresses, and number of locations and
customers served by route and type of service; number, nature and disposition of
complaints by date; and, number of tons and cubic yards of refuse collected by
route on a monthly, month to date and annual basis.

5.9 Licenses, Permits, Taxes, Etc.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain, at its sole expense, all permits, licenses, and pay at
its own expense all taxes, disposal fees (other than those associated with the
AUTHORITY contract for landfill services), and other fees associated with the
collection, removal, and disposal of refuse.

5.10 Indemnity

The CONTRACTOR will indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, and
employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims,
demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys fees arising out of a willful or
negligent act or omission of the CONTRACTOR in the performance of this
CONTRACT. The City will not be responsible for negligence of
CONTRACTOR, or any of its agents, employees, or customers.

General and Special Provisions - Page 11



6.0 - QUALITY OF SERVICE

(
6.1 The Director shall have the power at any time to order the CONTRACTOR to add,

repair, or replace equipment if, in his reasonable judgment, such action is necessary for
fulfillment of this CONTRACT. If upon receipt of such order, CONTRACTOR fails to
comply within sixty (60) days, such failure shall constitute a breach of this CONTRACT
and the AUTHORITY shall have the right to deduct from any compensation due the
CONTRACTOR liquidated damages in the sum of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00)
for each day that the CONTRACTOR fails to comply with such order.

6.2 The Director shall have the right to inspect CONTRACTOR's facilities, equipment,
operations, and records at any reasonable time. Such inspections shall be limited to those
facilities, equipment, operations, and records related to the performance of this
CONTRACT.

6.3 The Director's decision on all particulars as to the quality and manner of providing
service and interpretations of the CONTRACT shall be binding on both parties. However,
the CONTRACTOR shall have the recourse of an appeal to the City Manager if the
CONTRACTOR disagrees with the Director's decision. The City Manager shall have the
power to reverse decisions of the Director regarding the provision of services under the
terms of this CONTRACT.

6.4 Failure of the AUTHORITY at any time to require performance by the CONTRACTOR
of any CONTRACT provision shall in no way affect CONTRACTOR's obligation to
perform or the AUTHORITY's right to enforce the same. Nor shall waiver by the
AUTHORITY of any breach of any CONTRACT provision be taken or held to be a
waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of any provision itself.

(

6.5 Each vehicle shall be equipped with a cover which may be net with mesh not greater than
one and one-half (1-1/2) inches, or tarpaulin, or fully enclosed metal top to prevent
leakage, blowing, or scattering of refuse onto public or private property. Such cover shall
be kept in good order and used to cover the load going to and from the landfill, during
loading operations, or when parked if contents are likely to be scattered. Vehicles shall
not be overloaded so as to scatter refuse. If refuse is scattered from CONTRACTOR's
vehicle for any reason, it shall be picked up immediately. Each vehicle shall be equipped
with a fork, broom, and shovel for this purpose.

6.6 Each bin shall have lid affixed so as to stop blowing, or scattering of refuse onto public or
private property. Such cover shall be kept in good order and used to cover the bin when
it is not being picked up or unloaded. When notified that a lid is missing or not closing
properly, the CONTRACTOR shall fix within 48 hours.

General and Special Provisions - Page 12



7.0 - CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

7.1 All service complaints shall initially be directed to the CONTRACTOR and shall be
resolved within twenty-four (24) hours. CONTRACTOR shall supply the Director with
copies of all complaints on a form approved by the Director. As a minimum, the form
shall contain the date and time the complaint was received, who received the complaint,
the complainant by name and address, the date and time that the complaint was resolved
and a description of the action taken. When a complaint is received on a day preceding a
holiday or weekend, it shall be resolved the next working day.

7.2 The Director shall notify the CONTRACTOR of each complaint reported to the
AUTHORITY or City. It shall be the duty of the CONTRACTOR to resolve the
complaint and notify the Director as prescribed within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt
of the complaint

7.3 CONTRACTOR shall notify all customers about complaint procedures, rules, and
regulations and day of collection on an annual basis and whenever there is a change in
service. Notice shall be pre-approved by the Director and shall consist of printed matter
distributed by the CONTRACTOR to all premises served and by public notice in the
local media.

704 Failure to remedy the cause of complaints shall be considered a breach of the
CONTRACT and for the purpose of computing damages under the provisions of this
section of the CONTRACT, it is agreed that the AUTHORITY may deduct from
payments due or to become due the CONTRACTOR, the following amounts as
liquidated damages:(

704.1 Failure to clean up spilled refuse.

7.4.2 Failure or neglect to collect refuse
from any premises at those times
provided in this CONTRACT within
24 hours

7.4.3 Failure to return containers to the
designated location and replace lids
as per this CONTRACT

70404 Failure or neglect to correct chronic
problems in any category above.
(Chronic shall mean three or more
incidents at the same premises.)

$50.00 each incident at the same
premises.

$50.00 each failure or neglect of
repeated instances at same premises.

$20.00 each repeated instance at
same premises.

$50.00 each instance.

General and Special Provisions - Page 13



8.0 - DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

8.1 If the CONTRACTOR fails to provide the services required by this CONTRACT for a
period in excess of five (5) consecutive, scheduled working days, the AUTHORITY may
take the following actions:

8.1.1 Subject to Section 8.4, at its option, take possession of all of the
CONTRACTOR's equipment and facilities used in the performance of this
CONTRACT for a period of up to thirty (30) days or until CONTRACTOR is
able to comply with the requirements of this CONTRACT.

8.1.2 Employ such means as it deems advisable and appropriate to continue work until
such matter is resolved and CONTRACTOR is again able to carry out operations
under this CONTRACT.

8.1.3 Deduct any and all operating expenses incurred by the AUTHORITY from any
money due, or to become due the CONTRACTOR. Ifthe AUTHORITY's cost for
continuing operations exceeds the amount due the CONTRACTOR, the
AUTHORITY shall collect the difference, either from the CONTRACTOR, the
surety, or both, and also assert a lien on all properties ofthe CONTRACTOR.

(

8.1.4 During such period, the CONTRACTOR hereby specifically agrees, that the
liability of the AUTHORITY to the CONTRACTOR for loss or damage to
equipment and facilities so used shall be that of a bailee for hire, ordinary wear
and tear being specifically exempt from such liability.

8.1.5 If CONTRACTOR is unable, for any cause, to resume performance at the end of
thirty (30) calendar days, all liability of the AUTHORITY to the CONTRACTOR
under the CONTRACT shall cease and the AUTHORITY shall be free to
negotiate with other contractors for the operation of said refuse service and take
the actions provided for herein for bankruptcy default, or breach of CONTRACT.
Such actions shall not release the CONTRACTOR of his liability to the
AUTHORITY for such breach of this CONTRACT

8.2 In the event CONTRACTOR shall be adjudged bankrupt, either by voluntary or
involuntary proceedings, then this CONTRACT shall immediately terminate and in no
event shall this CONTRACT be, or be treated as, an asset of the CONTRACTOR If
CONTRACTOR shall be proven insolvent, or fail in business, the CONTRACT may be
terminated at the option of the AUTHORITY.

8.3 All terms, conditions, and specifications of the CONTRACT are considered material and
failure to perform any part of the CONTRACT shall be considered a breach of
CONTRACT. If the CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of his contractual obligations,
the AUTHORITY may, at its option, terminate the CONTRACT ten (10) days after
written notification to the CONTRACTOR of the violation of the CONTRACT and the
failure of the CONTRACTOR to remedy the violation within said time.

General and Special Provisions - Page 14



8.4 In the event of termination of the CONTRACT for breach, default, or bankruptcy as
noted above, the AUTHORITY shall have the right to forthwith take possession of all the
CONTRACTOR's equipment, facilities, and records used in the performance of this
CONTRACT.(

8.4.1 The AUTHORITY shall have the right to retain possession of said equipment,
facilities and records until other such items can be acquired by the AUTHORITY
for operation of the system or another CONTRACTOR is engaged to perform the
service.

8.4.2 The AUTHORITY is specifically given the right to become the CONTRACTOR,
at the option of the AUTHORITY, to purchase CONTRACTOR's equipment and
facilities at the fair market value thereof.

8.4.3 The AUTHORITY shall pay CONTRACTOR the reasonable rental value of such
equipment and facilities during the time used by the AUTHORITY should
AUTHORITY elect not to purchase. The liability of the AUTHORITY to the
CONTRACTOR during this period shall be that of a bailee for hire, ordinary wear
and tear specifically exempt from such liability.

(

8.4.4 CONTRACTOR shall not transfer, sell, assign, lease, surrender, abandon, or
permit to lapse its title or right of possession in and to any real or personal
property used in the performance of this CONTRACT without the prior written
consent of the AUTHORITY. This consent shall not be unreasonably withheld
nor delayed, provided that CONTRACTOR may dispose of damaged, destroyed
or obsolete equipment or swap equipment with other locations or affiliates of
CONTRACTOR, so long as such equipment is replaced with operable equipment
meeting the requirement of this CONTRACT. Any attempt to do so without such
permission shall constitute a material breach ofthis CONTRACT.

8.5 No assignment of this CONTRACT or any right occurring under this CONTRACT shall
be made in whole or in part by the CONTRACTOR, either voluntarily or involuntarily or
by any process of law, and shall not be or come under the control of creditors or trustees
of CONTRACTOR in the case of bankruptcy or insolvency of CONTRACTOR, without
the prior written consent of the AUTHORITY, which consent shall nor be unreasonable
withheld or delayed.

General and Special Provisions - Page 15



(
9.0 - CONTRACTOR'S COMPENSATION

9.1 Billing Process

9.1.1 All Accounts: The CONTRACTOR shall provide the AUTHORITY with
monthly reports within ten (10) days of the end of the reporting period. Reports
shall include the number of households, number of pickups of each commercial
client if applicable, the type and the size of dumpster if applicable, and total
tonnage of materials collected.

9.1.2 Alternative Commercial Accounts: It is anticipated that the AUTHORITY will
provide monthly billing for all sanitation collection services. However, there may
be times where the CONTRACTOR would need to bill directly. If the
CONTRACTOR provides billing to any commercial accounts, then the
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay to City afranchise fee, as agreed upon between the
City and CONTRACTOR, on or before the last day of each month. Such fee will
be based on the gross amount billed for all services rendered during the preceding
month excluding any sales taxes.

9.2 The AUTHORITY shall pay CONTRACTOR on or before the thirtieth (30th) day
following the month service was rendered. CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to payment
for all services rendered.

(
9.3 Said billing and payment shall be based on the prices and schedules set forth in the

CONTRACT multiplied by the number of units served, as determined by AUTHORITY
billing records or verified by the Director, for regularly scheduled residential services.
Billing and payments for special pick-ups shall be based on the hourly rate per crew as
set forth in the CONTRACT multiplied by the number of hours each crew was used, as
verified by the Director.

The AUTHORITY shall furnish, at no cost to CONTRACTOR, copies of the billing
records indicating the addresses, type, and frequency of service being billed for during
the preceding month.

9.4

The AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR agree to maintain, at their respective places of
business, adequate books and records relating to the performance of their respective
duties under the provisions of this CONTRACT. Such books and records shall be made
available at any time during business hours for inspection by the other party.

9.5 If the CONTRACTOR's records disagree with the billing records, CONTRACTOR must
notify the Director in writing prior to submitting CONTRACTOR's bills to the
AUTHORITY.

9.5.1 CONTRACTOR's notification shall be made on a form approved by the Director
that specifies the nature of the disagreement, the address (es) of the unites) in
question, the type and frequency of service CONTRACTOR maintains is being
provided, and the date such service began or ended.

General and Special Provisions - Page 16



(

9.5.2 Director shall investigate all reported discrepancies and confirm or deny
CONTRACTOR's report. Director shall verify those confirmed discrepancies so
customers may he billed accurately and the AUTHORITY may pay the
CONTRACTOR for actual services rendered.

9.5.3 CONTRACTOR's bill to the AUTHORITY shall indicate all disagreements with
billing records.

9.6 Modification to UNIT PRICES.

9.6.1 Fees charged by the CONTRACTOR will be adjusted upward, or downward,
annually on the first day of May, the "Rate Modification Date". This is to reflect
changes in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical
Workers, Expenditures Category, "All Items" and "Gasoline," both as published
by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, for the Regional
area of McAlester, Oklahoma. It is expressly understood and agreed that the
maximum annual increase shall not exceed three and one-half percent (3.5%). On
each Rate Modification Date the fees will be increased or decreased for the annual
period ending on the Rate Modification Date in a percentage amount equal to
ninety percent (90 %) of the net percentage change of the All Items Index, plus
ten percent (to %) of the net percentage change of the Gasoline Index. All
percentage changes are to be computed as the difference between the applicable
index value for the April reporting period in the annual period ending on the
Preceding Rate Modification Date (or May 2010 in the case of the adjustment on
the first Rate Modification Date) and the April reporting period in the annual
period ending on the current Rate Modification Date, divided by the index value
for the April reporting period for the prior annual period.

9.6.2 As soon as possible, prior to the Rate Modification Date, the CONTRACTOR
shall present the AUTHORITY with a comparative statement, setting forth for
both the All Items Index and the Gasoline Index; the index value for the April
reporting period of the previous year and the index value for the April reporting
period for the current year; the net percentage change; the composite percentage
change equal to ninety percent (90 %) of the All Item's Index, plus ten percent
(10 %) of the net percentage change in the Gasoline Index, and the increase or
decrease in the UNIT PRICES which may be charged by the CONTRACTOR. On
the Rate Modification Date and after the receipt of the comparative statement, the
UNIT PRICES charged by the CONTRACTOR will be modified to reflect any
such change until the next Rate Modification Date.

9.6.3 In addition, the CONTRACTOR will be granted the option to petition the
AUTHORITY at any time for rate adjustments deemed necessary due to unusual
changes in the operation experienced by the CONTRACTOR. The AUTHORITY
will be the sole determinate if any rate adjustments will be allowed. The decision
of the AUTHORITY will be final.

9.7 Title to all waste and refuse collected in the performance of this CONTRACT and all
salvage rights thereto shall he vested in the CONTRACTOR upon being placed in
CONTRACTOR's equipment.

General and Special Provisions - Page 17



10.0 - PURCHASE OF CITY'S EQUIPMENT

10.1 The CONTRACTOR agrees to purchase the City's entire current inventory of solid waste
apparatus, equipment and dumpsters at fair market value. If the CONTRACTOR desires
not to purchase the below items, then it shall be so indicated by stating "No Purchase" on
the Schedule of Quotes.

(

Item and Type Year Odometer Yin. No. Condition

International Trash Truck 2000 025,870.0 9402 Fair

International Trash Truck 2000 105,839.0 6374 Fair

Freightliner Trash Truck 2010 4,482.3 3552 Excellent

International Trash Truck 1994 93,431.2 9729 Poor

International Trash Truck 1994 126,156.7 4917 Poor

Freightliner Trash Truck 2010 9,360.2 2551 Excellent

International Roll-off Truck 1996 136,028.1 6941 Poor

Chevrolet Silverado Pickup 2000 11,782.3 4378 Good

Chevrolet Pickup Service Truck 1992 131,802.6 0596 Fair

International Cab & Chassis Roll-off 2008 4,434.7 2839 Fair
Truck

It is estimated that we have approximately seven twenty (20) yard, (16) 30 yard and (23) 40 yard
roll-off dumpsters.

It is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to inspect all the above listed equipment and
satisfy themselves to condition and value.

General and Special Provisions - Page 18



11.0 - HIRING OF CITY'S EMPLOYEES

11.1 The CONTRACTOR agrees to offer employment to all of the City's current sanitation
employees at the time of transition. There are sixteen (16) funded full-time positions in
the sanitation division.

11.2 The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide employees with a total compensation package
comparable to their current compensation package. Comparable does not mean identical.
Employee's current compensation and benefits are outlined below. The
CONTRACTOR may submit an outline of the compensation package to be offered as
part of this bid proposal, however the CONTRACTOR shall provide a certification that
the current sanitation employee's will be provided a compensation package equal to or
greater than is currently provided at the time of transfer of service.

(

Employee No Salary Accumulated Benefit Tenure with Current Vacation CDL
Cost (Annual) AUTHORITY Leave

(health ins, pension, (as of 11/01/09)
etc.)

01-1414 25,074.00 10,367. 2 yrs. 1 mo. 41 hrs Yes
01-4706 25,074.00 10,357. 3 yrs. 3 mo. 62 hrs. Yes
01-6606 22,232.88 9,975. 8mo. 53 hrs. No
01-6611 40,897.92 12,028. 34 yrs. 3 mo. 500 hrs. Yes
01-6615 23,343.84 10,097. 6 mo. 40 hrs. Yes
01-6617 22,632.96 10,019. l lmo. 53 hrs. No
01-6629 22,232.88 9,975. 5 mo. 33 hrs. No
01-6630 22,232.88 9,903. 1 mo. 7 hrs. No
01-6642 22,632.96 10,019. 1 yr. 3 mo. 19 hrs. No
01-6643 23,343.84 10,097. 1 yr. 3 mo. 80 hrs. Yes
01-6648 22,632.96 10,019. 1 yr. °mo. 73 hrs. No
01-6672 23,880.00 10,156. 3 yrs. 8 mo. 86 hrs. No
01-6702 22,233.12 9,976. 2 mo. 26 hrs. No
01-6703 23,344.08 10,097. 1 mo. o hrs. Yes
01-7591 25,525.92 10,357. 4 yrs. 1 mo. 74 hrs. Yes
01-9203 25,074.00 10,357. 4 yrs. 1 mo . 122 hrs. Yes

•:. The City also provides $25,000. life insurance for all the employees above with the exception of#01-6611
he is provided with $40,000. Life Insurance. This is not figured in the above totals.

The above does not include Social Security or Medicare taxes, Workers' Compensation or Unemployment Tax.

General and Special Provisions - Page 19



(

GSP - Page 20



McAlester City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date:

Department:

Prepared By:

Date Prepared:

May 11, 2010 Item Number: 4

Public Works
John C. Modzelewski, PE Account Code:

Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits:

May 3, 2010
1

Subject
Consider, and act upon, an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1843 which established the "Flood Hazard
Overlay District and Flood Damage Prevention"; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an
emergency.

Recommendation
Motion to approve the amendment ordinance.

Discussion
The amendment ordinance is necessary to approve new flood maps and add language to the floodplain
management regulation. This is a requirement for the City to continue its participation in the National Flood
Insurance Program.

Approved By
Initial
JCM

Date
05/03/10Department Head

City Manager PJS 05/05110

Page 1 of 1



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER,
OKLAHOMA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE
V, DIVISION 4; FLOOD HAZARD OVERLAY DISTRICT AND FLOOD DAMAGE
PREVENTION. ADOPTING A FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION PLAN, STATEMENT
OF PURPOSE AND ESTABLISHING METHODS AND PROCEDURES RELATING
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

* * * * * * * * * * * *

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, that:

SECTION 1: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-221, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. (;2 221. DefinitioBs.

The following 'Nords, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall han the meanings
aseribed to them in this seetion, eKeept where the eonteKt elearly indieates a different meaning.
Unless speeifieally defined belo'N, words or phrases used in this division shall be interpreted to
give them the meaning they have in eommon usage and to give this division its most reasonable
applieation.

AppC611means a request for a revie'N of the floodplain administrator's interpretation of
any provision of this division or a request for a varianee.

Arc61 &f sh61J.lewjleeding means a designated AO, All or VO zone on a eommunity's
flood insuranee rate map (FIRM) with a one pereent ehanee or greater annual ehanee of flooding
to an average depth of one to three feet, INhere a elearl)' defined ehannel does not eKist, where the
path of flooding is unpredietable and 'Nhere veloeity flO'N may be evident. Sueh flooding is
eharaeterized by ponding or sheet flow.

Arc61 e/spcei61lfleed h61f6lPdmeans the land in the floodplain \yithin a eommunity subjeet
to a one pereent or greater ehanee of flooding in any given year. The area may be designated as
zone A on the flood hazard boundary map (FHEM). After detailed ratemaking has been
eompleted in preparation for publieation of the FIRM:, zone A is usually refined into zones A,
AB, All, AO, AI 99, VO, VI 30, VB or V.

. B61scjleed means the flood having a one pereent ehanee of being equaled or e}(eeeded in
any given year.

Cri#eel .fe6ltttr-e means aR iRtegral aRd readily identifiable part of a flood proteetion
system, IiYithout",,,hieh the flood proteetion provided by the eRtire system would be eompromised.

Dcvel-epmc1'lt means aR)' maRmade ehange in improved aRd uRimproved real estate,
iReludiRg but not limited to buildiRgs or other stmetures, miRiRg, dredgiRg, gradiRg, paviRg,
eKeavatioR or drilling operatioRs.

EleV61ted building means a RORbasement building; built iR the ease of a building iR ZORes
AI 30, AB, A, A99, AO, All, E, C, X and D, to have the top of the elevated floor, or in the ease



of a building in zones VI 30, 'IE or V, to have the bottom of the lowest horizontal structural
member of the elevated floor ele¥ated abO';e the ground le¥el, by means of pilings, columns
(posts and piers), or shear 'Nalls parallel to the flov; of the ••vater, and adeEtUatelyanchored so as
not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a flood of up to the magnitude of the
base flood. In the case of zones Al 30, AE, A, A99, AO, All, B, C, X, C, "ele¥ated building" also
ineludes a building ele¥ated by means of fill or solid foundation perimeter 'Nalls with openings
sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded movement of floodwaters. In the case ofzones VI 30, 'IE or
V, "elevated building" also ineludes a building otherwise meeting the definition of "ele·;ated
building", e¥en though the lower area is enelosed by means of breakaway walls if the breakaway
walls meet the standards of section 60.3(e)(5) of the National Flood Insurance Program
regulations.

Existi1~g construction means for the purposes of determining rates, structures for 'Nhieh
the start of construetion cOHlflienced before the city's effective date of the FIRM (Febrnary 15,
1979). "Existing construction" may also be referred to as "existing structures".

Reod or fleoding means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete
inundation of normall)' dry land areas from:

(1) The O';erflovi of inland water,

(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or run off of surface waters from any source.

Flood insurance rate HUlfJ (FIP...M) meaas aa official map of the community on which the
Federal Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the areas of speeial flood hazards
and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.

Flood insurtlnee stHdy meaas the official report pro¥ided by the Federal Emergency
Managemeat Agency. The report contains flood profiles, water surface ele¥atioa of the base
flood, as well as the flood bouadary floodvlay map.

Floodpltlin or flood prone tlFCtlmeaas any land area susceptible to being iftUfidated by
water from any source (see defInition of flooding).

Floodwtly (J"CgUffltoryfleodw6Y) meaas the chatmel of a ri¥er or other watercourse and
the adjacent land areas that must be reserved ia order to discharge the base flood vt'ithout
cumulati¥ely increasing the water surface ele¥atioa more than a designated height.

Htleittlhle :floor means any floor usable for the following purposes; which includes
workiag, sleeping, eating, cooking or recreation, or any combinatioa thereof. A floor used for
storage purposes oaly is not a habitable floor.

Highest tldjtleent grtlde means the highest natural elevation of the grouad surface prior to
construction next to the proposed v/alls of a strueture.

Historic structHFCmelItiS any strueture that is

(1) Listed indi¥idually ia the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by
the Department of Interior) or preliminary determined by the Secretary of the Interior
as meeting the reEtUirements for individual listing oa the National Register;

2



(2) Certified or p I" ..re unmanly det .to the historical sign-ifieane ermined by the Seeretary of th .

Levee """"'" • "'" •••••"1'1''''"''' pr.-e_" iR _ n"'" _. -, .
• f w , one. w>!ft sa""" " Y Ilft -.. ~_OF s •• s Ie ,,,,,,itiel'f"!ee!i;n; Oftgtll.eFiRg preetie.,'0 .:;; •••••• _, "e"gIl" llli<lom temporary flood' In, eontrol, or di' 'eft th flIng iT e 0'"

, Levee system ffiOlIft ' "
assoaated struetures' s a flood proteetion s 'stem'" ,
••••••••••• willi '0 ':'"' es ol?""'" "l!nliReg;" ..' ""'.k, """"ist' of. I""",, 1 .._Ilftgl •• eru>g pfOetie., ••••• " w1HeIiere _ I " • OF • """, Ilft<I, e e and operated in

. Lewcstfleer means taunfimshed or flood ,e lowest floor of the I ,.," •••SI",,", Oft I .~.st 0Bcl." '=:::'....._!haft.~=:;.:ebl~ ,.I.1y fer p';:- .:~"'lIiBg ~~'"""'"'l,Aft

el_i •• ,,:;'SU:' is.••• ffiHk , •• , I. ,:;~n:: """"i<Ier."• _ing,;II::,::Bg "B'" OF
liens, _- ef seeti•• 6Q3 f: -..... iR "'.Io!i••• fd. oor; proYil!etlo t e NatiOnal Flood It e applieable nonRsuranee Program regl:da

~ 9' .eretllfj' Hk
,"eelly by !lie S -. - lBteri.r 0

eeretllfj' of!ll In ' ' re 0enor in states with t

lJJtlHblfiletfred 1built ~ llfimc meaasoa a permanern ehas . a stfl:leture transpoftabl 'when """ •• et" 10 SI' llli<l i, desigRO" fer _,' • In •••• OF ffiOre ,eeti no' ."_e_ """,."~e _" lHiIiti.,, For::;;",.r withoute P.........:::"~:'~eh "
••• e 'I f ,e ""'hides I' P Bin •••• 0Uft •••••
k - SI-' -er greatOF!haft18Q pilf'< _lers, _!r 'I - p"""e'.' !II
•••••" tie., ••• iRelutleperl<":':::::1'::';' Fer~"':";:.:':' .;:."';""'~el':PI=I ers aad other similar' 'eh . I enn maaufaetured

. ' .....
, ,

3



installation of streets and/or walbvays; nor does it inelude land preparation, such as e1earing,
grading and filling; nor does it ine1ude ~cavation for basement, footings,piers or foundations or
the erection of temporary forms; nor does it inelude the installation on the property of accessory
buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main
structure.

StruetblPC means a walled and roofed building, inclHding a gas or liqHid storage tank that
is prineipall)' aboYegroood, as ;.vell as a manufactured home.

Substanti81 dtiHt8ge means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the
cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition wOHldequal or exceed 50 percent
of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

Substanti81 impf'Owment means any repair, reconstruction or imprO'i'ement of a structure,
the cost of vAlich eqHals or ~ceeds 50 percent of the market Yf'alueof the structure either before
the improvement or repair is started; or if the structure has been damaged and is being restored,
before the damage occurred. For the purpose of this definition, "substantial improvement" is eon
sidered to occur when the first alteration of any 'NaIl, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the
building commences, YNhetheror not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the struc
ture. The term does not, however, ine1ude either any project for improvement of a structure to
comply with existing state or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which are solely
necessary to aSSHresafe living conditions; or any alteration of a structure listed on the National
Register of Historic Places or a state inventory of historic places.

Varz'8nee means a grant of relief to a person from the requirements of this division when
specific enforcement would resHlt in UIHlecessary hardship. A varianee, therefore, permits
construction or development in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance. section 60.0 of
the National Flood Insuranee Program contains the full requirements.

Vie18tiel'l means the failure of a structure or other de'f'elopment to be fully compliant with
the COmtnooity's floodplain management regHlations. l\L structHre or other development without
the elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidenee of compliance required is
presUfl:'ledto be in violation until such time as that dOCUfl:'lentationis provided.

Sec. 62-221. DEFINITIONS

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be interpreted to
give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this ordinance its most reasonable
application.

"Accessory structure" - means a structure which is on the same parcel of property as the principal
structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. Examples of
accessory structures include but are not limited to garages and storage sheds.

"Area of special flood hazard" - is the land in the floodplain within the City of McAlester subject
to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.

"Base flood" - means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any
gIVen year.

4



"Base flood elevation" - means the elevation in feet above mean sea level of the base flood or 1%
chance flood.

"Basement" - means any area of the building having its floor sub-grade (below ground level) on
all sides.

"BFE" - means base flood elevation.

"CFR" - means Code of Federal Regulations.

"Critical feature" - means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection system,
without which the flood protection provided by the entire system would be compromised.

"Development" - means any man-made change in improved and unimproved real estate,
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading,
paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.

"Development Permit" - means a permit issued by the City of McAlester Floodplain
Administrator which authorizes development in a special flood hazard area in accordance with
this ordinance.

"Elevated building" - means a non-basement building built, in the case of a building in Zones AE,
A, and X, to have the top of the elevated floor adequately anchored so as not to impair the
structural integrity of the building during a flood up to the magnitude of the base flood. In the
case of Zones AE, A, and X, "elevated building" also includes a building elevated by means of
fill or solid foundation perimeter walls with openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded
movement of flood waters.

"Existing construction" - means for the purposes of determining rates, structures for which the
"start of construction" commenced before the effective date of the FIRM or before January 1,
1975, for FIRMs effective before that date. "Existing construction" may also be referred to as
"existing structures. "

"Existing manufactured home park or subdivision" - means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed
before August 4, 1972.

"Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision"- means the preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads).

"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

"FIRM" means Flood Insurance Rate Map.

"Flood" or "flooding" - means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete
inundation of normally dry land areas from:

5



1. The overflow of inland or tidal waters, or

2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

"Flood Insurance Rate Map" - means an official map of the City of McAlester on which FEMA
has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to
the City of McAlester.

"Flood insurance study" - is the official report provided by FEMA for City of McAlester which
contains flood profiles, water surface elevation of the base flood, as well as the floodway width,
section area and mean velocity.

"Floodplain Administrator" - means a person accredited by the OWRB and designated by the
City Council of the City of McAlester to administer and implement laws, ordinances and
regulations relating to the management of floodplains.

"Floodplain or flood-prone area" - means any land area susceptible to being inundated by water
from any source (see defmition of flood).

"Floodplain management" - means the operation of an overall program of corrective and
preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency
preparedness plans, flood control works and floodplain management regulations.

"Floodplain management regulations" - means zoning codes and ordinances, subdivision
regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose regulations and ordinances (such
as floodplain, grading and erosion control regulations and ordinances) and other applications of
police power. The term describes such state or local regulations, in any combination thereof,
which provide standards for the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction.

"Flood protection system" - means those physical structural works for which funds have been
authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been constructed specifically to modify
flooding in order to reduce the extent of the areas within City of McAlester subject to a "special
flood hazard" and the extent of the depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically
includes hurricane tidal barriers, dams, reservoirs, levees or dikes. These specialized flood
modifying works are those constructed in conformance with sound engineering standards.

"Floodway" - means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that
must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water
surface elevation more than a designated height. A floodway is located within areas of special
flood hazard established in Article III, Section B. A floodway is an extremely hazardous area due
to the velocity of floodwaters that carry debris and potential projectiles.

"Functionally dependent use" - means a use that cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is
located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port
facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship
building and ship repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing
facilities.

"Highest adjacent grade" - means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

6



"Historic structure" - means any structure that is:

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places fa listing maintained by the
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to
the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either:

a) By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or

b) Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

"Levee" - means a man-made structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and
constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control, or divert the flow
of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.

"Levee system" - means a flood protection system which consists of a levee or levees and
associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in
accordance with sound engineering practices.

"Lowest floor" - means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking or vehicles, building access or
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; provided
that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-
elevation design requirement of Section 60.3 of Title 44 CFR.

"Manufactured home" - means a structure transportable in one or more sections, which is built on
a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when
connected to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a
"recreational vehicle".

"Manufactured home park or subdivision" - means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

"Mean sea level" - means, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the North
American Vertical Datum iliA VD) of 1988 or other datum, to which base flood elevations shown
on the City of McAlester's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.

"New construction" - means, for the purpose of determining insurance rates, structures for which
the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective date of an initial FIRM or after
December 31, 1974, whichever is later, and includes any subsequent improvements to such
structures. For floodplain management purposes, "new construction" means structures for which
the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain management

7



regulation adopted by the City of McAlester City Council and includes any subsequent
improvements to such structures.

"New manufactured home park or subdivision" - means a manufactured home park or subdivision
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes
are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets,
and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective
date of floodplain management regulations adopted by the City of McAlester Floodplain Board.

"OWRB" - means the Oklahoma Water Resources Board.

"Recreational vehicle" - means a vehicle which is:
1. Built on a single chassis;
2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projections;
3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and
4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters

for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

"Start of construction" - (for other than new construction or substantial improvements under the
Coastal Barrier Resources Act (Public Law 97-348), includes substantial improvement and means
the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair,
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of
the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a
structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the
construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a
manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation,
such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or
walkways; nor does it include excavation for basement, footings, piers or foundations or the
erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory
buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main
structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration
of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration
affects the external dimensions of the building.

"Structure" - means a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank that is
principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home.

"Substantial damage" - means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

"Substantial improvement" - means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of
the structure before "start of construction" ofthe improvement. This includes structures that have
incurred "substantial damage", regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does
not, however, include either:

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local
health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local
code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary conditions, or

8



2. Any alteration of a "historic structure" provided that the alteration would not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a "historic structure. "

"Variance" - is a grant of relief by the City of McAlester City Council to a person from the terms
of this ordinance when specific enforcement would result in unnecessary hardship. A variance,
therefore, permits construction or development in a manner otherwise prohibited by this
ordinance. (For full requirements see Section 60.6 of Title 44 CFR.)

"Violation" - means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with this
City of McAlester flood damage prevention ordinance.

"Water surface elevation" - means the height, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum
(NAVD) of 1988 (or other datum, where specified), of floods of various magnitudes and
frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.

SECTION 2: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-222, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. (;2 222. Statutory authoFi~ation.

The legislat1:H'eof the state has delegated the respoHsibility to local governmeHtal units to adopt
regulatioHs desigaed to minimize flood losses. Therefore, the eity couHeil does hereby ordaiH as
follows iHthis divisioH.

Sec. 62-222. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION

The Legislature of the State of Oklahoma has in 11 O.S. §§ 41-47, as amended, delegated the
responsibility to local governmental units to adopt ordinances designed to minimize flood losses.
Therefore, the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, ordains the following, to be effective on and after
July 22,2010:

SECTION 3: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-230, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. (;2 230. Lands to wlHeh this division applies.

The areas of speeial flood hazard ideHtified by the Federal EmergeHey MaHagemeHt AgeHey iH
a seieHtifie aHd eHgiHeering report eHtitled, "The Flood InsHffiooe Study for the City of
McAlester, Pittsbw-g COHflty, Oklahoma", dated October 1 ,2005, with accompaHyfHg Flood
mSUi'aHceRate Map (FIRM) are hereby adopted by refereHce aHd declared to be a part of these
regulatioHs or ordiHaooe, as the ease ma;' be.

Sec. 62-230. LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES

This flood damage prevention ordinance shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard within the
jurisdiction of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma.

(a) BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE AREAS OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD

The areas of special flood hazard identified by FEMA in a scientific and engineering report
entitled, "The Flood Insurance Study for Pittsburg County. Oklahoma and Incorporated Areas"
dated July 22, 2010, with the accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) are hereby

9



adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this ordinance. This ordinance shall go into
effect immediately per the Emergency Clause, however, this ordinance shall continue to
administer and enforce said regulations based on the current City of McAlester Flood Insurance
Rate Map. Then on July 22,2010, this ordinance shall be administered and enforced based on the
July 22, 2010 Pittsburg County Flood Insurance Study and FIRM as indicated above.

(b) ESTABLISHMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

A Development Permit shall be required to ensure conformance with the provisions of this
floodplain management ordinance.

SECTION 4: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-246, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 62 246. DesigBlltioB of ftoodpllliB IldmiBistt'lltot'.

The floodplain administrator shall be a eertified floodplain manager as defined by 82 0.8. § §
1601 1620. The floodplain administrator wiH administer and implement the provisions of this
ordinanee and other appropriate seetions of 44 CFR (National Flood Insuranee Program Regula
tions) pertaining to floodplain management. The field engineering inSj')eetor is hereby appointed
the floodplain administrator.

Sec. 62-246. DESIGNATION OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

The City Council of the City of McAlester designates Clifford Pitner, CFM, as the McAlester
Floodplain Administrator to administer and implement the provisions of this ordinance and other
appropriate sections of National Flood Insurance Program regulations in Title 44 CFR pertaining
to floodplain management.

SECTION 5: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-247, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 62 247. Duties, FespoBsibilities offtoodpllliB IldmiBistt'lltot'.

Duties and reS}')onsibilities of the floodplain administrator shall inelude, but not be limited to,
the following:

(1) Maintain and hold open for publie inSj')eetion all reeords pertaining to the
proT/isions of this division.

(2) Review de'lelopment pet'i'n:itapplieations to detemH.ne 'Nhether the proposed building site
wiH be reasonably safe from flooding.

(3) Reviev/, appro' Ie or deny all applieations for de'lelopment permits required by adoption of
this division.

(4) Review permits for proposed de'lelopment to assure that all neeessary permits have been
obtained from those federal, state or loeal governmental ageneies (ineluding seetion 404 of
the Federal Water Pollution Control Aet Amendments of 1972, from '.vhieh prior approval
is required).

(5) Where inteF}')retation is needed as to the exaet loeation of the boundaries of the areas of
speeial flood hazards (i.e., v/here there appears to be a eonfliet betv/een a mapped boundary

10



aild aetual field conditions), the floodplain administrator shall make the necessary
interpretation.

(6) Bnsure that the flood carrying capacity '<'lithin the altered or relocated portion of any
watercourse is maintained.

(7) When base flood elevation data have not been provided in accordance with this division
aild federal statute, the floodplain administrator shall obtain, Fe''liew aild reasonably utilize
the best base flood ele'f'ation data and flood-way data available from a federal, state or other
source, in order to administer the provisions of this division. One of the follo'vying actions
shall be required as a condition of the development permit:

a. Determine an ele'f'ation from the nearest benchmark outside the flood hazard area and
require the lowest floor of the structure in the ullflUfflbered A z;one to be one foot or more
above such elC'f'ation.

b. v,'here flooding history is greater than the above ele'lation, require 10'Nest floor elevation
to be Oflefoot or more above such level of historic floodiflg.

c. Require elevatiofl of the Imvest floor to be two or more feet above the highest adjaceflt
grade fle*1:to the buildiflg site.

d. Require that the base flood ele'f'atiofl be established through afl eflgifleering study aild thCfl
require the lowest floor elevatiofl to be Oflefoot or more above the base flood elC'f'atiofl.

(8) 'Nhere a regulatory floodway has beefl desigHated, the floodplaifl admiflistrator must
require that flO flew cOflstructiofl, substafltial improvements or other development (ifl
cluding fill) shall be permitted 'Nithifl those Z;OflesOflthe city's FIID.4; Uflless it is dem
oflstrated through Cflgifleeriflg certificatiofl that the cUfflUlati'f'eeffect of the proposed
development, whefl combifled ''''lith all other existiflg afld anticipated de'f'elopment, 'NiH
flOt iflcrease the water surface elevatiofl of the base flood more thafl Ofle foot at any point
;.vithifl the city.

Sec. 62-247. DUTIES AND RESPONSffiILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN
ADMINISTRATOR

Duties and responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

1. Become accredited by the DWRB in accordance with Title 82 D.S. §§ 1601-1618, as
amended.

2. Review permit applications to determine whether the proposed building sites, including
the placement of manufactured homes, will be reasonably safe from flooding.

3. Review, approve or deny all applications for Development Permits required by this
ordinance.

4. Review proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have been obtained
from those Federal, State or local governmental agencies from which prior approval are
required.

11



5. Make the necessary interpretation where interpretation is needed as to the exact location
of the boundaries of the areas of special flood hazards (for example, where there appears
to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions).

6. Notify, in riverine situations, adjacent communities and the OWRB prior to any alteration
or relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the FEMA.

7. Assure that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of any
watercourse is maintained.

8. Shall require the developer/applicant to provide and/or determine the base flood elevation
data and other information on a certified FEMA Elevation Certificate in order to
administer the provisions of this ordinance.

9. When a floodway has not been designated, the Floodplain Administrator must require
that no new construction, substantial improvements, or other development (including fill)
shall be permitted within Zone AE as delineated on the Pittsburg County FIRM, unless it
is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined
with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface
elevation of the base flood more than one foot at any point within the City of McAlester.

10. After a disaster or other type of damage occurrence to structures in the City of McAlester,
determine if the residential and non-residential structures and manufactured homes have
been substantially damaged, and enforce the substantial improvement requirement.

11. Maintain a record of all actions involving an appeal from a decision ofthe City Council.

12. Maintain and hold open for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of
this ordinance.

SECTION 6: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-249, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 62 249. SaBle }'.lJlJlieati9B aBd aIJIJF9"1allJfgeedBFes.

(a) Applieatiofl for a de"lelopmeflt pennit shall be preseflted to the floodplaifl admiflistrator Ofl
fofffis furnished by him, aHd 'NiH iflehide, but flOt be limited, to plafls drawR to seale
showiRg the loeatiofl, dimefisioflS aHd elevtltiofl of proposed laHdseape alteratioRs,
ifleluding fill; e~dstiRg aOO proposed struetures; aRd the 10eatioR of the foregoiRg ifl
relatiofl to areas of special flood hazard.

(b) No buildiRg pennit shall be issued prior to a developmeRt pennit haviHg beefl approved
by the floodplaifl admiRistrator.

(e) Applicatiofl for a buildiRg permit shaH be made prior to the eOtnfl'ltJReemefltof all)'
developmeflt activities iReludiRg gradiRg aRdior fiHiRg of the traet. No e*eavatiofl for
foundatiofl or utilities shall be permitted prior to the issuaRee of the buildiflg permit. The
applieatiofl for buildiflg permit shall also be preseflted to the eity eRgiReer/ floodplaifl
admiRistratof.

(d) AdditioflaHy, the follo'NiRg provisioflS shall apply:

12



(1) Ele';ation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (iool1:ldingbasement) of all
nevI and S1:1bstantiallyimpro¥ed struet1:lfes.

(2) Elevation in relation to mean sea le'iel to whieh any nOflfesidefltial struet1:lfeshall be flood
proofed.

(3) A eertifieate from a registered professional engineer or arehiteet that the nOflfesidefltial
flood proofed struet1:lfeshall meet the flood proofing eriteria provided for in this division.

(4) Deseription of the extent to whieh any 'Natere01:lrseor nat1:1Fa1drainage 'Nill be akered or
reloeated as a res1:lltof proposed developmeflt.

(5) A reeord of all s1:lehinformation shall be maifltained.

(e) Approval or denial of a developmeflt permit by the floodplain administrator shall be based
on all the provisions of this division and the folloviing relevant faetors:

(1) Coflformanee to all provisions of this division of the :wiling ordinanee.

(2) The danger to life and property d1:1eto flooding or erosion damage.

(3) The s1:lseeptibility of the proposed faeility and its eoflteflts to flood damage and the effeet
of s1:lehdamage on the individ1:1alO'Nner.

(4) The danger that materials may be swept oflto other lands to the iaj1:lryof others.

(5) The eompatibility of the proposed 1:lsewith e~dsting and afltieipated de';elopmeflt.

(6) The safety of aeeess to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergeney vehi
eles-:

(7) The eosts of pro';iding governm:efltal serviees during and after flood eonditions, iool1:lding
maifltenanee and repair of streets and bridges, afld p1:1blie1:ltilitiesand faeilities s1:lehas
sewer, gas, eleetrieal and 'Nater systems.

(8) The e*peeted heights, veloeity, d1:1ration,rate of rise and sediment transport of the flood
'Naters e*peeted at the site.

(9) The availability of alternative loeations, not s1:1bjeetto flooding or erosion damage for the
proposed site.

(10) The relationship of the proposed 1:lseto the eomprehensive plafl for that area.

Sec, 62-249. PERMIT PROCEDURES

1. An Application for a Development Permit shall be presented to the Floodplain
Administrator on forms furnished by him/her and may include, but not be limited to,
plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing the location, dimensions, and elevation of
proposed landscape alterations, existing and proposed structures, including the placement
of manufactured homes, and the location of the foregoing in relation to areas of special
flood hazard. Additionally, the following information is required:

13



a. Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the lowest floor (including
basement) of all new and substantially improved structures; and

b. Description of the extent to which any watercourse or natural drainage
will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development.

2. Approval or denial of a Development Permit by the Floodplain Administrator shall be
based on all of the provisions of this ordinance and the following relevant factors:

a. The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;

b. The susctmtibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and
the effect of such damage on the individual owner;

c. The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;

d. The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;

e. The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency
vehicles;

f. The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions
including maintenance and repair of streets and bridges, and public utilities and
facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems;

g. The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of
the flood waters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site;

h. The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable;

i. The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or eroSIOn
damage, for the proposed use; and

j. The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan for that area.

3. The Floodplain Administrator or City Council, as applicable, may approve certain
development in Zones A or AE delineated on the Pittsburg County FIRM which increases
the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot, provided that the
applicant for the Development Permit in that case first complies with 44 CFR Section
65.12.

SECTION 7: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-250, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. '2 250.VaFiaBee IJFgeeduFes.

(a) The appeal Of '/arianee boafd speeifieally, as established by the eommunity, shall hear
afld feflderjudgmeflt OflfettUests fof '<'ariafleesfrom the fequifemeflts of this divisiofl.

(b) The appeal Of variaflee boafd shall hear afld fefldef judgmeflt Oflafl appeal omy whefl
it is alleged thefe is an errOf ifl any fettUifemeflt, deeisiofl Ofdetenniflatiofl made by the floodplaifl
adm-inistmtof ifl the eflrofeemeflt Ofadm-inistFatiofl of this divisiofl.

14



(c) Arty person: or person:s aggrieTled by tae decision: of tae lifJpeal or variaflCe board fRay
lifJpeal stica decision: in:tae COtirtsof eompeten:t jtirisdictiofl.

(d) Tae floodplain: admiflistrator shall fRain:tain:a record of all action:s irwolvin:g an lifJpeal
an:d saall report varian:ces to tae Federal Emergen:ey Managemeflt Agen:ey as reqHired.

(e) Varianees fRaY be isStied for tae reeon:struction:, reliabilitation: or restoration: of
structtifes listed on: tae Natioool Register of Historic Places or tae state irwen:tory of aistorie
plaees, vAtaom regard to tae procedHres set forta in:tae refRain:der of this seetion:.

(0 Varian:ees may be isstied for n:ew eon:struetion: an:d soostantial improvemeflts to be
ereeted on:a lot of on:e aalf aere or less in:size, eofltigHotis to an:d stirrotiflded by lots wita existin:g
struetlJres eon:structed below tae base flood level, providiRg tae relevaflt faetors aeretofore set om
aave been: fully con:sidered. As tae lot size in:creases beyon:d on:e aalf acre, tae teehnical
jtistifieation: reqHired for isstiin:g tae varian:ee inereases.

(g) Upon: eon:sideration: of tae faetors n:oted abo'"e and tae in:teflt of tffis division:, tae
lifJpeal or variance board fRay attaea stiea eon:dition:s to tae grafltin:g of '"ariaflCes as it deems
n:eeessai)' to furtaer tae ptifpose and objectives of tflis division:.

(h) Varian:ees saall n:ot be isstied within: allY desigRated regHlatory floodway if allY
in:erease in:flood levels dtiriRg tae base flood diseaarge wOtild restilt.

(i) PrereqHisites for gran:tffigvariaflCes:

(l) Variances saall only be isstied lipon: a determin:ation: taat tae 'rarianee is tae mifliffitim
n:eeessary, eon:sideriRg tae flood oozard, to afford relief.

(2) Varianees sooll only be isstied lipon: a saowin:g of good aoo stiffieien:t ealiSe; a de
termin:ation: taat failHre to graflt tae '"arian:ce V"OtildreStilt in: exeeptioool aardship to
tae lifJplieant; an:d a determin:ation: taat tae grafltiRg of a varian:ce vliH n:ot restilt in:
in:creased flood aeigflts, addition:al expen:se, addition:al threats to tae ptiblic safety, ex
traordin:ary poolic expen:se, create a ooisaflCe, catise fraud on: or victimization: of tae
poolic, or eonflict v"ita existiRg loeallaws or ordinan:ees.

(3) t\n-y lifJplicaflt to waom a variaflCe is graflted sooll be given: v"ritten: n:otice taat tfle
structlJre 'NiHbe permitted to be btiilt wita tae lowest floor elevation: belo •••••tae base
flood elevation:, an:d taat tae cost of flood in:StifaflCe'NiH be COHHRen:SHratewita tae
in:creased risk restiltin:g from tae redticed lowest floor elevation:.
m Variances may be isstied by tae city for n:e'N con:struction: an:d soostantial
impro'"emeflts an:d for otaer developmen:t n:ecessary for tae con:dtict of a fuflction:ally
depeooeflt tise (close proximity to water) provided tflat tae criteria omlin:ed in: this
division: are met, an:d tae structtife is protected b~' metaods taat min:imize flood
dama:ges dtirin:g tae base flood and create n:oaddition:al poolic threats.

Sec. 62-250. VARIANCES

1. General provisions.

15



a. The City Council of the City of McAlester may grant variances for uses which do
not satisfy the requirements of the Oklahoma Floodplain Management Act or this ordinance, if
the applicant for the variance presents adequate proof that (i) compliance with this ordinance will
result in an arbitrary and unreasonable taking of property without sufficient benefit or advantage
to the people and (ii) satisfies the pertinent provisions of this Section D. However, no variance
shall be granted where the effect of the variance will be to permit the continuance of a condition
which unreasonably creates flooding hazards.

b. Any variance so granted shall not be construed as to relieve any person who
receives it from any liability imposed by the Oklahoma Floodplain Management Act or by other
laws of the state.

c. In no case shall variances be effective for a period longer than twenty (20) years.

d. Any person seeking a variance shall file a petition with the City Council,
accompanied by a filing fee of Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00).

e. Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to
be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with
existing structures constructed below the base flood level, providing the relevant factors in
Section C(2) and provisions of Section D of this Article IV have been fully considered. As the lot
size increases beyond the one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the
variance increases.

f. Any person seeking a variance to build a structure below the base flood elevation
will be issued a notice signed by the Mayor of the City Council which states that (i) the cost of
flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from permitting the
structure to be built lower than the base flood elevation, and ni) such construction below the base
flood level increases risks to life and property.

g. At such time as the City Council deems the petition ready for notification to the
public, the City Council shall schedule a hearing and direct the applicant to publish notice thereof
in a newspaper of general circulation in Pittsburg County at least thirty (30) days prior to the
hearing.

h. The City Council shall conduct the hearing and make determinations in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this Section D. The City Council shall exercise
wide discretion in weighing the equities involved and the advantages and disadvantages to the
applicant and to the public at large when determining whether the variance shall be granted.

1. Variances shall only be issued upon:

(l) A showing of good and sufficient cause;

(2) A determination that failure to grant the variance would result ill

exceptional hardship to the applicant:

(3) A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary
public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the

16



public, or conflict with existing local laws, regulations or ordinances; and

(4) A determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering
the flood hazard, to afford relief.

j. Upon consideration of the factors stated in this Section D and the intent of this
ordinance, the City Council may attach such conditions to the granting of a variance as it deems
necessary to further the purposes and objectives stated in Article I, Section C of this ordinance.

k. The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain a record of all variance actions,
including justification for their issuance; and a copy of any variance issued by the Floodplain
Board shall be sent by the Floodplain Administrator to the OWRB and FEMA within fifteen (5)
days after issuance of the variance.

2. Special provisions.

a. Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of
structures listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic
Places, without regard to the procedures set forth in the remainder of this ordinance.

b. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood
levels during the base flood discharge would result.

c. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued
designation as a historic structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the
historic character and design of the structure.

d. Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and for
other development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that:

(1) The criteria of Section DO) (e); Section DO) (i); Section D (2) (b); and Section
D (2) (c) of this Article IV are met, and

(2) The structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood
damages during the base flood and create no additional threats to public safety.

SECTION 8: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-262, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 62 262. Speeifie standards for eertain areas.

In:all areas of speeial flood hazara 'i'/here base flood ele¥atioa data have beeR provided as re
qHired, the followiag pro;'isioas shall apply:

(2) }toflFesideatial eoastruetioa. }tew eoastruetioa aad sHbstamial improvemems of aft)'
eommereial, iadustrial or other aOflFesideRtial struetHre shall either have the 10'Nest floor
(iaelHdiag basemem) elevated oae or more feet above the base flood le¥el or, together '.vith
atteadaat Htility aad saflitary faeilities, be desigaed so that belm'! the base flood levr:el,the
struetHre is watertight with walls sHbstamially impermeable to the passage of ,.yater aad
with struetHFal eompoaeats haviag the eapability of resistiag hydrostatie aad hydrodyaamie
loads aad effeets of bHoyaaey. A registered professioaal eRgiaeer or arehiteet shall develop

17



afldlor review stmetmal desigtl, speeifieatiofl afld plafls for the eOflstmetiofl, afld shall
eertify that the desigtl afld methods of eOflstmetiofl are in aeeordaflee with aeeepted
sta-IKlardsof praetiee as oHtlifled ifl this sttbseetiofl. A reeord of SHeh eertifieatiofl v/hieh
iflelHdes the speeifie ele'fatiofl (ifl relatiofl to meafl sea le'fel) to whieh sHeh stmetmes are
flood proofed shall be maifltained by the floodplaifl administrator.

Sec. 62-262. SPECIFIC STANDARDS

In all areas of special flood hazards where base flood elevations have been provided or are
otherwise determined as set forth in Article III Section B, Article IV Section B(8l. or Article V
Section C(1). the following provisions are required:

1. Residential Construction - new construction and substantial improvement of any
residential structure shall have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated at least one
(1) feet above the base flood elevation. A registered professional engineer, architect, or
land surveyor shall submit a certification to the Floodplain Administrator that the
standard of this subsection is satisfied.

2. Nonresidential Construction - new construction and substantial improvements of any
commercial, industrial or other nonresidential structure shall have the lowest floor
(including basement) elevated at least one (1) feet above the base flood elevation. A
registered professional engineer, architect, or land surveyor shall submit a certification to
the Floodplain Administrator that the standard of this subsection is satisfied.

3. Enclosures - new construction and substantial improvements, with fully enclosed areas
below the lowest floor that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or
storage in an area other than a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be
designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing
for the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be
certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the
following minimum criteria:

(a) A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch
for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided;

(b) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and

(c) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or
devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.

4. Manufactured Homes -

(a) Require that all manufactured homes to be placed within Zone A on the Pittsburg
County FIRM shall be installed using methods and practices that minimize flood
damage and have the bottom of the I-beam elevated at least thirty-six (36) inches
above grade or at least at or above the base flood elevation. For the purposes of this
requirement, manufactured homes must be elevated and anchored to resist flotation,
collapse, or lateral movement. This requirement is in addition to applicable State and
local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces. The home shall be installed
by a licensed installer according to Oklahoma state law and compliance herewith

18



shall be certified in writing to the Floodplain Administrator by said installer prior to
habitation of the manufactured home.

(b) Require that manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within
Zone AE on the Pittsburg County FIRM on sites (i) outside of a manufactured home
park or subdivision, (ii) in a new manufactured home park or subdivision, (iii) in an
expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or (iv) in an
existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has
incurred "substantial damage" as a result of a flood, be elevated on a permanent
foundation such that the bottom of the I-beam for the manufactured home is elevated
at least one foot above the base flood elevation and be securely anchored to an
adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral
movement. A licensed installer shall install the home in accordance with state law
and compliance herewith shall be certified in writing to the Floodplain Administrator
by said installer prior to habitation of the manufactured home.

5. Recreational Vehicles - Require that recreational vehicles placed on sites within Zones
A and AE on the Pittsburg County FIRM either:

(a) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days,

(b) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, or

(c) Meet the permit requirements of Article IV, Section C, and the elevation and
anchoring requirements for "manufactured homes" in paragraph (4) of this section.
A recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking
system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security
devices, and has no permanently attached additions.

6. Accessory Structure - Accessory structures to be placed on sites within Zones A and
AE on the Pittsburg County FIRM shall comply with the following:

(a) The structure shall be unfinished on the interior;

(b) The structure shall be used only for parking and limited storage;

(c) The structure shall not be used for human habitation. Prohibited activities or uses
include but are not limited to working, sleeping, living, cooking, or restroom use;

(d) Service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment must be elevated to or
above the BFE;

(e) The structure shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the
minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters;

(f) The structure shall be designed to have low flood damage potential and constructed
with flood resistance materials;

(9) The structure shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral
movement;

19



(h) Floodway requirements must be met in the construction of the structure;

(i) Openings to relieve hydrostatic pressure during a flood shall be provided below the
BFE; and

U) The structure shall be located so as not to cause damage to adjacent and nearby
structures.

SECTION 9: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-263, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 61 163. StllBdllFElsfer subdMsioB proposllis.

(a) All sttl3diYisioR~fo~osals iReludiflg FRaRufaetUi'edhome ~arks aRd sttl3diYisioRSshall be
eORsisteRt 'Nith seetioRs 62 224 62 226.

(b) All ~ro~osals [of the de';elo~meRt of sttl3diyisioRSifleludiRg ffiaR1:lfaetUfedhome ~afks aRd
subdivfsioRs shall meet deYelo~meRt ~ernHt fequifemeHts of this artiele and all ~fOyisioRSof this
subdiYisioR.

(e) Base flood ele·;ation data shall be geRefated by the develo~ef [of all sttl3divisioR ~ro~osals
aRd othef ~ro~osed deYelo~meRt (iReludiRg ffiaRufaetUfed home ~aFks aRd sttl3divisioRS), gFeatef
thaR 30 lots Of three aefes, whieheyef is lessef, if ROt othefwise ~fOvided ~UfSUaRtto ~fevious
~fOvisioRSof this artiele.

(d) A:1lsttl3divisioR ~ro~osals iReludiRg maRufaetUfed home ~afks aRd subdivisions shall have
adequate dFaiRage ~fOyided to feduee e*poSUfe to flood hazaros.

(e) All subdiYisioR ~ro~osals iReluding ffiaRUfaetUfedhome ~aFks aRd sttl3divisioRS shall ha';e
~ttl3lie utilities aRd faeilities sueh as watef, sev;ef, gas, eleetrieal aRd watef systems loeated aRd
eORstmeted to miRimize Of elimiRate flood damage.

Sec. 62-263. STANDARDS FOR SUBDIVISIONS

1. The applicant for a Development Permit for any subdivision located in Zones A and AE
which is 51 or more lots or greater than 5 acres shall generate the base flood elevation data
for that subdivision.

2. All subdivisions including the placement of manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall
have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

3. All subdivisions including the placement of manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall
have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located
and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.

SECTION 9: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-263, is hereby amended to read as follows:

See. 61 165. Floodwllys.

Loeated v;ithiR afeas of established s~eeial flood hazaro afe afeas designated aRd fegulated as
floodv;ays. SiRee the flood 'Nay is aR extfemely hazafdous afea due to the 'f'eloeity of flood>Natefs

20



\vllieh earry debris, floteRtial flrejeetiles and erosion floteRtial, the following shall aflflly withom
eondition:

(l) Eflereaeflmeflts are flfOllibited, meluding all fill, new eonstfl:1etion, substaffi:ial im13reve
meffis fffid other de'f'elo13meffi,Ufl:lesseertifieation by a flrefessional registered eflgifleer or
arelliteet is flrevided that demoflstrates that eflereaehmeffis shall flOt result ifl afty iflerease
ifl flood levels withifl the eOlllffiUflityduriflg the oeeurreflce of the base flood diseharge.

(2) If the above 13rovisioflS are wholly satisfied, all flew eOflstfl:letiofl afld substaffi:ial 1m
13fO'remeffisshall eom13lywith all other af313lieableflood hazard reduetiofl13rovisiofls.

Sec. 62-265. FLOODW AYS

The following provisions shall apply to floodways:

1. Encroachments, including but not limited to fill. new construction, substantial
improvements and other development are prohibited within the adopted floodway unless
it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in
accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment would not
result in any increase in flood levels within the City of McAlester during the occurrence
of the base flood discharge.

2. If Article V, Section D.1 above is satisfied, all new construction and substantial
improvements shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of
Article V.

3. The City of McAlester may permit encroachments within the adopted floodway that
would result in an increase in base flood elevations, provided that the applicant for the
Development Permit complies with all of 44 CFR Section 65.12.

SECTION 10: Chapter 62, Article V, Sec. 62-266, is hereby added:

Sec. 62-266. FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

The McAlester City Council may impose the following fee schedule not to exceed $500.00 for
anyone service, at their discretion:

a. Notice of Intent Fee- $25.00 maximum
b. Floodplain Development Permit Application Review-$100.00
c. Floodplain Development Permit Fee-$ 50.00
d. Inspection Fee-per inspection-$50.00.

A. PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE

No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted, or altered
without full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations. A
structure or other development without the elevation certificate or other certifications required in
this ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.
Violation of the provisions of this ordinance by failure to comply with any of its requirements
(including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with conditions)
shall constitute a misdemeanor. Any person who violates this ordinance or fails to comply with
any of its requirements shall upon conviction thereof be fined not more than $500.00 for each

21



violation, and in addition shall pay all costs and expenses involved in each case. Nothing herein
contained shall prevent the City Council of the City of McAlester or its City Attorney from taking
such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

B. CERTIFICATION

It is hereby found and declared by the City Council of the City of McAlester that severe flooding
has occurred in the past within its jurisdiction and will certainly occur within the future; that
flooding is likely to result in infliction of serious personal injury or death, and is likely to result in
substantial injury or destruction of property within its jurisdiction; in order to effectively comply
with minimum standards for coverage under the National Flood Insurance Program, and in order
to effectively remedy the situation described herein, it is necessary that this ordinance become
effective immediately.

This ordinance goes into effect immediately and after this date supersedes any previous
floodplain management regulations or ordinance(s) applicable to the City of McAlester.
However, the current flood map for the City of McAlester shall be used until July 22,2010, when
at this time the new FIS and FIRM dated July 22,2010 shall be used.

Sees. fi]·]fifi fi]]7S. ReseF¥ed.

Sees. 62-267--62-275. Reserved

SECTION 11: SEVERABILITY. If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11: EMERGENCY CLAUSE. WHEREAS, it being immediately necessary
for the preservation of the peace, health, safety and public good of the City of McAlester and the
inhabitants thereof that the provisions of this ordinance be put into full force and effect, an
emergency is hereby declared to exist by reason whereof this ordinance shall take effect and be in
full force and effect from and after its passage, as provided by law.

PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this __ day of
____ -', 2010.

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

By ,----- _
Kevin E. Priddle, Mayor

I, , the undersigned City Clerk of the

City of McAlester, hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a flood damage

prevention ordinance duly adopted by the City Council of the City of McAlester at a regular

meeting of said City Council duly convened and held on ,2010.

22



I further certify that the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act was complied with in all respects for such

meeting.

City Clerk, City of McAlester

(SEAL)

Approved as to form and legality this day of , 2010.

William J. Ervin, City Attorney

23



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 5

Department: Finance Department
Gayla D. Duke, Chief

Prepared By: Financial Officer Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 BUdgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 1

Subject
Consider, and act upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign a Remote Deposit Services Agreement with First
National Bank and Trust Co. of McAlester, Inc., dated April 22, 2010.

Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Remote Deposit Services Agreement with First National Bank and
Trust Co. of McAlester, Inc., pending ap royal of the contract by the City Attorney.

Discussion

The agreement is to allow the City to utilize equipment provided by the bank to scan and capture images of
checks and/or money orders and transmit same to the bank electronically for deposits into our bank account(s).
The bank is also going to provide the service contract for the first year for the equipment and thereafter it will
be $720 a year. This equipment will increase efficiency with the deposits, both for the City and for the bank.

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

Date
05/04/10

05/05/10

Page I of I



First National Bank
& Trust Co. of McAlester HembtrFDI(

April 22, 2010

Gayla Duke,

We have met to discuss the availability of the Remote Deposit Services that are available
through First National Bank. I believe we agree on how valuable this service is to your operation
and how beneficial it is to First National Bank. I would like to summarize our offerings to you
about this service.

Initial Purchase of Scanner:
First Year Service Agreement:

$0.00
$0.00

($1455.60 Value)
($ 720.00 Value)

Subsequent Years Service Agreement $720.00 (Due on July 1 each year.)

There are no other per item costs or any other expenses with this program. It will help to reduce
the time it takes to prepare each deposit and minimize time out of the office for the staff that
takes the deposits to the bank. If you have any questions, please call me at (918)423-9675.

Sincerely,

Thomas Lucas
Cashier

2.15East Choctaw I~O. Box 948 McAlester, Oklahoma 74502 918.426.0211 Fax 918.426.6335



Remote Deposit Services Agreement

THIS REMOTE DEPOSIT SERVICES AGREEMENT is made and entered this
of _April, 2010 by First National Bank & Trust Co. of McAlester, Inc. (herein the "Bank"), and
McAlester (herein the "Customer").

-R- day
The City of

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Customer has authorized the Bank to provide certain electronic capture services, specifically Remote
Deposit Capture, ("First Direct Deposit" or "RDC") to the Customer as herein described;

WHEREAS, the Customer receives payments by paper checks from its customers (the "Indirect Customers"); and

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to provide such services to the Customer on the terms and conditions herein described.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

1. General. First Direct Deposit provided by the Bank to the Customer, consisting of a check scanning device (the
"Scanner"), access to a browser based software program, and all related materials and documentation (collectively
herein the "Program"), permits the Customer to conduct certain check related activities with the Bank electronically.
Additionally, the Bank also may provide a computer to the customer upon request, whereby the customer agrees to
pay a monthly fee based on the Bank's current schedule of fees for such equipment. RDC activities include the ability
to scan the Customer's paper checks (the "Images") and electronically transmit to the Bank, and for the Bank to use
electronic information, including images, captured from these checks to process transactions as Image Replacement
Documents (IRDs) as permitted under the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act ("Check 21 Transactions")
(collectively, the "Services"). The Services are provided by the Bank and its vendors for access and use by Customer.

2. Laws, Rules, and Regulations. Customer agrees to comply with all existing and future operating procedures used by
the Bank for processing of transactions. Customer further agrees to comply with all applicable state or federal laws,
rules and regulations affecting the use of checks and drafts, including but not limited to rules and procedural
guidelines established by the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) and the National Automated Clearing House
Association (NACHA). These laws, procedures, rules, regulations, and definitions (collectively the "Rules") shall be
incorporated herein by reference. In the event of conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Rules, the
Rules will control the interpretation of this Agreement.

3. Use of Scanner and Program by Customer. The Bank is providing the Scanner and Program to the Customer to allow
the Customer to create Images of the paper checks received from Indirect Customers and to then transmit these
Images electronically for the purpose of having Check 21 Transactions initiated. As such, the Indirect Customers will
not receive their original cancelled paper checks through the check clearing system. These paper checks will be
stamped "ELECTRONICALLY PROCESSED" by the Customer or the Scanner and will remain with the Customer
for a period of 14 calendar days before being destroyed. The images of these checks will be maintained by the Bank

1



for a period of seven years. Should Customer or Indirect Customers need a check researched, the Bank will provide

the image from its archive during the record retention period.

4. Customer's Obligations to Indirect Customers. As the Customer will be receiving the Indirect Customers' paper
checks, and creating Images from these checks to process as Check 21 Transactions, and as the Customer will be
retaining and then destroying the Indirect Customers' paper checks, the Customer must comply with the following

responsibilities.

a. Retain Paper Checks after Converting to Images. Paper checks will be handled and retained for a minimum of 14
calendar days as stated is Section 3 above before being shredded in at least a crosscut shredder.

b. Compliance with Rules; No-Disclosure and Confidentiality. Customer agrees both to (i) comply with and (ii)
cooperate and assist the Bank and its vendors in complying in a complete and timely manner with the Rules.
Customer agrees to execute and deliver to the Bank all such instruments, as the Bank may from time to time
reasonably deem necessary. Customer shall not disclose to any third party other than the Bank, or any agent of
Customer for the purpose of assisting Customer in completing a transaction, or as specifically required by law,
any account information or other personal information. Customer, in an area limited to select personnel, and prior
to discarding, shall destroy in a manner rendering data unreadable all material containing account information
after it has been retained for a period specified by the Rules.

5. Right to Use Program/Limited Sublicense. The Bank hereby grants to the Customer a non-transferable and non-
exclusive sublicense for use of the Program, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Customer
acknowledges and agrees that the Program is valuable, confidential, and proprietary property of THE VENDOR and
agrees not to transfer, distribute, copy, reverse compile, modify or alter the Program.

6. Delivery and Installation. The Bank shall deliver to the Customer a Scanner and access to the Program. The Bank
agrees to further provide instruction and consultation to assist Customer in its initial installation of the Scanner and
setup of the Program.

7. Maintenance. After delivery and installation of the Scanner and Program and until the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Section 8, the Bank will assist the Customer in obtaining from THE VENDOR technical support and other
information for the operation and use of the Scanner and Program, and will provide to the Customer any
modifications, refinements and enhancements to the Scanner or Program which the Vendor may hereafter implement
and which the Bank has received notification from the Vendor.

8. Term. This Agreement is effective from the date the Scanner and the Program are received by Customer and shall
remain in force until termination. This Agreement shall be terminated (i) upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice by
either party to the other at the then current address of record, (ii) upon termination of the account relationship between
the parties, (iii) upon failure of the Customer to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, (iv) upon
termination of the Software License Agreement, or (v) any other event which causes the Vendor to be unable to
provide the Program to the Bank or the Customer. The Customer agrees to return the Scanner, if provided by the
Bank, and all written and/or electronic documentation related to the Scanner and/or Program to the Bank, together

2



with all copies thereof, upon termination. The provisions of this Agreement protecting the proprietary rights of the
Vendor and the Bank will continue in force after termination.

9. Fees. Customer agrees to pay the fees for access to and use of the Scanner and the Program at the rates specified by
the Bank's Fee Schedule and Account Analysis Schedule hereafter provided to the Customer. The Bank may change
the fees charged to the business Customer any time during the term of this Agreement and to a consumer after
providing 30 days written notice to Customer. The Bank may deduct all fees due from any account of the Customer at
the Bank.

10. Account. The Customer will maintain with the Bank at least one demand deposit or commercial checking account (the
"Account(s)") for the purpose of providing available funds and for deposit of received funds in connection with the
use of the Services. In addition to the terms of this Agreement, the Account will be subject to a separate Account
Agreement. Unless the Bank otherwise requires the Customer to maintain collected funds, the Customer agrees to
maintain sufficient available funds in the Account(s) to support any transaction initiated under the Services and to
cover any fees the Customer is obligated to pay under this Agreement. If at any time there are not sufficient collected
funds in the Account to cover all outstanding transactions and other payment obligations of the Customer under this
Agreement, Customer agrees to immediately pay the Bank, on demand, the amount of any deficiency in such
outstanding transactions and obligations. The Bank may, without prior notice or demand, obtain payment from
Customer for any of its obligations under this Agreement by debiting any account of the Customer at the Bank.

11. Settlement Reserve. Customer may be required to maintain a reserve ("Settlement Reserve") of an amount to be solely
determined by the Bank. Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that any Settlement Reserve will be deposited in
a Bank account for exclusive use by the Bank for purposes of offsetting any Customer obligations under this
Agreement. If Customer's Settlement Reserve falls below the required amount, Customer authorizes the Bank to
immediately replenish the Settlement Reserve to an amount to be determined by the Bank via a debit to the Customer
Account or by a direct deposit to the Settlement Reserve. No interest will be paid on the Settlement Reserve.
Customer grants the Bank a security interest in any Settlement Reserve so that the Bank may enforce any obligation
owed by Customer under this Agreement without notice or demand to Customer. Customer's obligation to maintain a
Settlement Reserve shall survive the termination of this Agreement for the duration of the Termination Period during
which time the Bank's security interest shall continue.

12. Right of Setoff. Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Bank shall have a right of setoff against any and
all fees, Returns and Refunds owed the Bank by Customer under this Agreement.

13. Authorization. The Customer will provide to the Bank properly executed authorizations from Customer (which may
be designated by resolution executed in conjunction to the establishment of Customers deposit account), in form
acceptable to the Bank identifying by name and title the officers of the Customer who are authorized to sign this
Agreement and perform the obligations of the Customer under this Agreement. In the absence of such authorizations,
Customer agrees that individuals authorized to sign on Customers deposit account are authorized to sign this
Agreement and perform the obligations of the Customer under this Agreement. From time to time hereafter, the
Customer may identify other persons who are authorized to provide instructions or directions to the Bank, to sign any
document or instruction on behalf of the Customer relating to this Agreement, and to take any action on behalf of the

3



Corporation, provided, however, that the Bank may rely upon, as authentic and duly authorized, any written or other
communication from any person purporting to be an officer of the Corporation or other representative of the
Corporation regardless of whether the Corporation shall have provided to the Bank any evidence of such person's
authority.

14. Account Reconciliation. All transactions which result in a debit or credit to the Account initiated by the Customer
using the Services will be reflected on the Customer's monthly account statements. The Customer will notify the
Bank, within thirty (30) days after the mailing of the account statements by the Bank of any discrepancies between the
account statements and the Customer's records of transactions initiated through the Services. Failure of the Customer
to notify the Bank within said time period of any such discrepancies will preclude the Customer from asserting any
claims for damages or other liabilities against the Bank by reason of such discrepancies.

15. ENTRIES. Customer shall be responsible for the accuracy and propriety of all Entries submitted to the Bank for
processing, as well as responsible for obtaining all required approvals for the processing of the Entry from the Indirect
Customer. Customer shall be liable for each Entry and warrants that it complies with the Rules.

16. DISCREPANCIES. ill the event of any conflicts in the instructions received by the Bank regarding the Customer or
any Entries relating to them, the Bank may at its option and with or without notice, hold or interplead, comply with
the legal process or other order, or otherwise limit access by the Customer or by the Bank to the funds, Entries, or
proceeds thereof.

17. Processing Deadline. The Bank has specific processing deadlines. Files received by the deadline will be transmitted
that day to the Banker's Bank for settlement on the effective entry day. Files received after the deadline will be
processed the next business day.

18. Notice of Provisional Credit. In the case of any Credit Entry subject to Article 4A of the Uniform Commercial Code,
credit given by the Receiver's Depository Financial Institution (RFDI) to the Recipient with respect to such an Entry
is provisional until the RFDI has received final settlement through a Federal Reserve Bank or otherwise has received
payment as provided in applicable Oklahoma State law. If such settlement or payment is not received, the RFDI shall
be entitled to a refund from the Recipient of the amount credited, and the Customer shall not be deemed to have paid
the Recipient the amount of the Entry.

19. Debits Not As Authorized. If an unauthorized Debit Entry is confirmed in writing by the Recipient, the Recipient will
have the right, unless waived in accordance with the Rules, to have the amount of such Debit Entry immediately

credited to the Recipient's account by the RDFI as set forth in the Rules. The Customer's Account will be debited for
the amount thereof.

21. Reversing Entries. If the Customer discovers that any Entry it has initiated was in error, the Customer will notify the
Bank immediately. The Bank will then notify the Customer as to whether the transmission of the File or the Entry to
the Check 21 Transaction has been initiated. The Customer shall then have the sole right and responsibility to initiate
a Reversal of the Entry in accordance with the Rules.

4



22. Remakes of Rejected Entries or Files. If an entry or file is rejected due to improper processing or unexcused delays by
the Bank, the Bank will Remake such Entry or File and re-send it. If such Entry or File was rejected as a result of
improper processing or the supplying of incomplete information by the Customer, the Customer will Remake the
Entry or File, or supply the Bank with complete information for Remaking the Entry or File, at the Customer's
expense, and the Bank will send such Entry.

23. Unauthorized Access; Security Procedures. The Customer shall be solely responsible for protecting against
unauthorized access to the Scanner and the Program and any and all losses and damages arising from any
unauthorized access to the Scanner and the Program. The Customer shall establish physical security, passwords and
other security procedures necessary to ensure the confidentiality of access features. The Customer shall make such
procedures and security features known only to those authorized representatives of the Customers who will use the
Scanner and the Program. The Bank shall have no obligation, liability or control, either directly or indirectly over said
procedures or the failure of Customer to maintain said procedures. The Customer shall be solely responsible for
designating its authorized representatives and disclosing the identity of said representatives, and all changes thereof,
to the Bank, provided, however, the Bank shall not be responsible for verifying the authenticity of any person
claiming to be a representative of the Customer or the authenticity of any instruction, direction or information
provided to any said person. Any instructions, directions or other information provided by the Customer, or any
representative of the Customer, under the Services shall be deemed to have been authorized by the Customer, and the
Bank shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Customer for acting upon any such direction, instruction or
information.

a. THE BANK. will provide Customer with an Administrative and Gateway User Name and Password. Customer
may appoint an individual ("Administrator") with the authority to: (a) determine who will be authorized to use the
Services; (b) establish separate passwords for each user; and (c) establish limits on each user's authority to access
information and conduct transactions. Customer is responsible for the actions of its Administrator, the authority
the Administrator gives others to act on its behalf, and the actions of the persons designated by the Administrator
to use the Bank service. Customer agrees to: (a) take reasonable steps to safeguard the confidentiality of all
Passwords; (b) limit access to its passwords to persons who have a need to know such information (c) closely and
regularly monitor the activities of employees who access the Bank service (d) prohibit its employees and agents
from initiating Entries without proper supervision and adequate controls; and (e) remove users they deem no
longer authorized to use the Services.

b. Customer understands that the use of Passwords and the Bank service instructions is confidential and agrees to
assume all risks of accidental disclosure or inadvertent use by any party whatsoever, whether such disclosure of
use are on account of Customer's negligence or are deliberate acts. Customer acknowledges that no person from
the Bank will ever ask for any Passwords and that the Bank employees do not need and should not ask for
passwords.

c. Customer shall change its passwords periodically and whenever anyone who has had access to a password is no
longer employed or authorized by it to use the Bank service. The Bank may require Customer to change its
passwords at any time. The Bank may deny access to the Bank service without prior notice if it is unable to

5



confirm (to its satisfaction) any person's authority to access the service or if the Bank believes such action is
necessary for security reasons.

24. Customer Representations and Warranties. With respect to each and every check that the Customer scans into an
Image using the RDC system, the Customer represents and warrants to the Bank that: (a) each Indirect Customer
shown as the payor on an Image received by the Bank from the Customer was from an Indirect Customer, (b) the
Customer shall be bound by and comply with all procedures and operating guidelines established by the Bank,
contained herein or subsequently created, and (c) the Customer assumes responsibility for any paper check that is
transmitted which for any reason is not paid.

25. IndemnifIcation.

a. All disputes between Customer and any Indirect Customer relating to any debit/credit transaction shall be settled
between Customer and Indirect Customer. Customer agrees to indemnify and hold the Bank and its processors
harmless from any claim, liability, loss, or expenditure relating to any such transaction or from Customer's breach
of any of its obligations under this Agreement. The Bank retains the right to offset the Customer's account for
amounts the Bank is damaged by Customer's actions.

b. The Customer will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Bank and its processors against and in respect to any
and all losses, liabilities, expenses and damages, including consequential, special and punitive damages, directly
or indirectly resulting from: (i) the processing of any request received by the Bank under the RDC system; (ii) any
breach of the provisions of this Agreement or the Rules; (iii) any dispute between the Customer and any third
party in connection with the use of the RDC system; (iv) any breach of the Customer's representations for any
transaction submitted by the Customer described in this agreement; (v) any loss or expenditure which results from
any transaction submitted by the Customer caused by the Indirect Customer's inability to fund the transaction;
and (vi) any and all actions, suits, proceedings, claims, demands, judgments, costs and expenses (including
attorney's fees) incident to the foregoing. The terms of this Section shall survive termination of this Agreement.

26. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. THE BANK'S ENTIRE LIABILITY AND THE CUSTOMER'S EXCLUSIVE
REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO THE BANK'S DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY IS LIMITED TO THE
REPLACEMENT OF ANY SCANNER OR DISKETTE THAT IS RETURNED TO THE BANK. IN NO EVENT
SHALL THE BANK BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, LOST
SAVINGS OR OTHER DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE PROGRAM AND DOCUMENTATION, OR FOR
ANY CLAIM BY ANOTHER PARTY. THE BANK'S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES IN CONNECTION
WITH ACH TRANSACTIONS AND CHECK 21 TRANSACTIONS ARE LIMITED TO THOSE DESCRIBED IN
THIS AGREEMENT. THE BANK WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE EXERCISED ORDINARY CARE AND TO
HAVE ACTED REASONABLY IF THE BANK HAS ACTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT AND WILL BE LIABLE FOR LOSS SUSTAINED BY CUSTOMER ONLY TO THE EXTENT
SUCH LOSS IS CAUSED BY THE BANK'S GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT. THE BANK
WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, REGARDLESS
OF THE BANK'S ACT OR OMISSION. THE BANK WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY LOSS OR

6



DAMAGE: (A) RELATED TO THE DISHONESTY OF THE CUSTOMER'S EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS OR
AGENTS; (B) RESULTING FROM ANY RECEIVING BANK'S FAILURE TO ACCEPT ANY CHECK 21
TRANSACTIONS; OR (C) RESULTING FROM ANY DELAY IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS
AGREEMENT, WHICH IS CAUSED BY AN ACT OF GOD, FIRE OR OTHER CASUALTY, ELECTRICAL OR
COMPUTER FAlLURE, DELAYS OR FAlLURE TO ACT BY ANY CARRIER, MEDIUM OR AGENT
OPERATING BETWEEN THE BANK AND THE CUSTOMER OR BETWEEN THE BANK AND THIRD
PARTIES OR ANY OTHER CONDITION OUTSIDE THE BANK'S CONTROL. NO THIRD PARTY WILL
HAVB RIGHTS OR CLAIMS AGAINST THE BANK UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THE TERMS OF THIS
SECTION SHALL SURVIVE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

27. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. NO WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE SCANNER AND THE
PROGRAM ARE MADE BY THE BANK NOR DOES THE BANK WARRANT THAT THE SCANNER AND
THE PROGRAM WILL MEET SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS OF THE CUSTOMER. NEITHER THE BANK
MAKE ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE USE
OF THE SCANNER AND/OR THE PROGRAM. THE BANK DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL IMPLIED
WARRANTIES OF CUSTOMER'S ABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

28. Equipment. The Bank is not responsible for any loss, damage or injury resulting from (i) an interruption in
Customer's electrical power or telephone service; (ii) the disconnecting of Customer's telephone line by Customer's
local telephone company or from deficiencies in Customer's line quality; or (iii) any defect or malfunction of the
Scanner or telephone line.

29. The Bank's Liability for Failure to Complete Transactions. The Bank will process and complete all transfers (to and
from eligible accounts) properly initiated through the RDC system in accordance with the terms on the Image and the
terms of this Agreement. If the Bank or its processors do not complete a Check 21 Transaction on time or in the
correct amount in accordance with terms on the Image and under the terms of this Agreement, the Bank's liability for
Customer's losses and damages will be limited to those directly and proximately caused by the Bank's failure, not to
include indirect, consequential, special or exemplary damages. Further, the Bank will not be liable if:

a. Through no fault of the Bank, the Indirect Customer does not have enough money in his or her account to make
the transfer or payment.

b. The Scanner or the Program is not working properly, and Customer knew about the malfunction when Customer
initiated use of the Services.

c. The Indirect Customer's depository institution mishandles or delays handling Check 21 Transactions initiated by
the Bank.

d. There is an error on the Indirect Customer's paper check.

e. Circumstances beyond the Bank's control (such as fire, flood, or delay in the U.S. Mail) prevent the proper
completion of the transaction despite reasonable precautions by the Bank to avoid these circumstances.

7



30. Entire Agreement; Severability. This Agreement together with all exhibits, schedules and attachments hereto, the
Account Agreement and the Rules (as incorporated herein) represent the entire agreement and understanding of the
parties. If any portion of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, all remaining portions shall remain in full force
and effect. In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any present or future
statute, regulation or governmental policy to which the Bank is subject and which governs of affects the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, then this Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply
with such statute, regulation or policy and the Bank shall incur no liability to the Customer as a result of such
violation or amendment.

31. Assignment; Sublicense. Customer agrees not to assign, transfer or dispose of its rights and obligations under this
Agreement and not to further sublicense, assign or transfer the Program, except as expressly provided in this
Agreement.

32. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Oklahoma (except to the extent Federal law
governs the copyrights and trademarks of the Vendor and its successors or assigns) and the Rules.

33. Signatures. By signing this Agreement, the undersigned acknowledge that they have read and accepted the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, and agree to be bound by its terms.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first written above.

::STNATIONALB?? k:
CUSTOMER

By:------------------

8



MERCHANT NAME (LEGAL) _--"Th~e--""C~ity~of",-,M=cAo..::I~e"",st""er,-- _

DBA Years Established _

Type of Business: INC LLC LLP Partnership Sole Proprietorship DBA

STREET ADDRESS, _

MAILING ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP _

PHONE _ DEPOSIT ACCOUNT NO. _

FAX EMAIL ADDRESS _

NOTIFICATIONS WILL BE SET TO YOU VIA: FAX: EMAIL: _

ADMINISTRATOR:....- NUMBER OF LOCATIONS __ NUMBER OF USERS _

NATIJRE OF BUSINESS _

EST. DAILY ITEM COUNT MAXIMUM ITEM COUNT _

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:

SCANNER TYPE, SERIAL NUMBER, AND LOCATION:

SIGNATURES:

Authorized Signature for Merchant/Title

Printed Name/Date Printed Name/Date

iUCtf5

9



Schedule A

COMPUTER REQUIREMENTS

- Pentium Class 4 - 2.4 GHz Intel!AMD Processor or better.
- 512 MB DDRRam (1 GBrecommended).
-40 GB Hard Drive (with 10 GB minimum available for image storage).
- SVGA video card (16 bit).
- 15" Monitor (minimum) capable of 1024x768 resolution.
- USB v2.0 Connection.
- CD/DVD Burner to archive images for permanent/long term storage.
- 400 Watt or better UPS Battery Backup recommended.
- Windows Vista, Windows XP Professional, or Windows 2003 (XP Professional is preferred).
- 10/1 00 Mbps network card (powered connection recommended).
- High Speed Internet Access (for remote deposits to the bank, support, and future updates).
- Minimal point to point firewall access to allow the merchants to send to the financial institution, and to allow Audiotel access for
technical support.

Note: Though RemitPlus Merchant does support 64 bit operating systems and hardware, most scanners and associated drivers are
currently limited to 32 bit. Please contact AudioTel technical support before considering the RemitPlus Merchant for any 64 bit
application.

EQUIPMENT

Place an "X" inside the box( es) next to the applicable options that you select.

o RDM Single Check Scanner (Comes with 2 year warranty)
(Small or low check volume [5-25/day] businesses)
(Replacement cost $299.00)
Cost of Annual Software Licensing Agreement

No Charge

$240.00

Panini X90 No Charge
(Medium Level Businesses/Grocery Stores/High check volume [25-300/day])
(Replacement Cost $1455.60)
(This has a bin to hold 50 checks+/- and feed automatically, up to 30 checks per

minute)
Cost of Annual Software Licensing Agreement $720.00

o Optional Maintenance Agreement (3 year Agreement) $381.00

10



o Cannon55 $1500.00
(Large Volume Businesses/Central Processing Operations)
(For processing up to 750+ checks per day)
(This has a bin to hold 50 checks +/- and feed automatically, up to 90 checks per

minute)
CostofAnnualSoftwareLicensingAgreement $960.00

o Optional Maintenance Agreement (3 year Agreement) $494.00

o CanonCR 180ii $2900.00
(Large Volume Businesses/Central Processing Operations)
(For processing 751-3000 checks per day)
(This has a bin to hold 100 Checks +/- and feed automatically, up to 180 checks per
minute)

CostofAnnualSoftwareLicensingAgreement $1200.00

o Optional Maintenance Agreement (Annually) $575.00

PRICING

Monthly Service Charge
Per Deposit Charge
Per Item Charge
(Standard Business Checking costs still apply)

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Addendum: First National Bank will provide you with your first scanner (RDM or Panini X90) and will pay your first year's Software
Licensing Agreement. Subsequent years will billed to you for payment, if not paid within 30 days your account will be debited for the
cost of the Software Licensing Agreement.

11



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 6

Department: Finance

Prepared By: GaylaDuke Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 3

SUbject
Discuss, consider, and act upon, authorizing approval for the three attached budget transfers for the FY 09-10.

Recommendation
Motion to approve the three attached budget transfers prepared and approved by staff.

Discussion
City Ordinance #2327 which adopted the budget for the fiscal year 2009-2010 authorized the City Manager to
approve budget transfers of unexpended and unencumbered appropriations within a fund. This ordinance also
requires council approval of transfers in excess of $25,000. Please approve the following budget transfers:

T0910-002: Economic Development Fund - Did not change intention of original budgeted expenditures, only
moved budget dollars from one line item to another in order to segregate and separate the budget for MEDS
contractual payments away from budgeted Economic Development Capital Outlay Sewer Projected.

T091O-009: General Fund - Please see notes on transfer and attachments. Transfer to adjust over-budget
accounts due to errors in budgeting, etc. First corrected audit budget but then no longer needed.

T091O-011: McAlester Public Works Authority Fund - Please see notes on transfer and attachments.
Transfer to adjust over-budget accounts due to errors in budgeting, etc. Corrected audit budget as noted above.

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

Date
05/03/10

Page 1 of 1



City of McAlester
Transfer of Appropriation - FY 2009-2010

Economic Development Fund
30-Sep-09

Account Appropriated From

30 5211360

Balance Amount of Balance
Before Adjustment After

Department Description Adjustment (Decrease) Adjustment
Fund Account

Number Number
Economic Dev. Mc Economic Development ! 471,226 (251 ,377) ~ 219,84~ i

1--__ +-- t-- p'(A-'-c=..:c-"-t.-'-fo=-:-r-'-M:..:..:E=-:D=-:-S"---C.pa=-y:..:..:m:..:..:e=-n-=..:ts:..L)_~___ -i

I-----I-------f---------t-----~--- --L-------r-- --- --i-------=-~-- --- -+-~-_r-- ~
I--- ---t----- - -- - -r- - - ---+- -,
i I I _ Ir--~- -j------r--------r- ---~

[~E=~=--= -.L __ =-=~== =-=t --~-=-=t- -1= __- ~;
Total $ (251,377)

1--------'1---+ --------t------

Account Appropriated To

Balance Amount of Balance
Fund Account Before Adjustment After

Number Number Department Description Adjustment Increase Adjustment

~~=~-fTi4Q3 r~nO~~i~;~~;u~:~e, Projects~- ••r.300'001 251,37='t_•••_~~3j~ J

~==ir ~ ••i· -- -t~=-=-...~.- --= --J=- -_.,-- ~-----~-=-=-~
L--=- _~ --- i-±_~=--_ ---- -----=-=_ -~~--~_~-- r.. -I

$ 251,377Total

Reason for Transfer: Reclassify budget moving dollars budgeted for sewer project to correct
account, leaving account 30-5211360 for MEDS payments only.

Approval N fA:
DepaHment Head

Approval 4f/~P/L
City Manager

/D-e;1-d7'
Date

Approval~ ~ PostedBy GI,D
Chief Fin cial Officer

q&-'J..
Date lo-a-cR BA# ~ Pkt.# (i,8EJ

~ec lacSs;FteeP f;~e+ +0 ~ef tIJ1£:Ds b(J..J~er-
;(\ the ir OW() ltne ;fe-th -

T091 0-002



City of McAlester
Transfer of Appropriation - FY 2009-2010

General Fund
28-Feb-10

Account Appropriated From

Fund Account
Balance
Before

Amount of
Adjustment

Balance
After

Number Number Department Description Adjustment (Decrease) Adiustment
01 5215301 Interdepartmental Auditina 37,605 (19,960) V /' 17,645
01 5215323 Interdepartmental Damaaes 50,000 (27,282) V 22,718

01 5215315 Interdepartmental Telephone Utility 72,000 17,065) 64,935
01 5432316 Fire Repairs & Maintenance 2,600 (600) 2,000
01 5431316 Fire Reoairs & Maintenance 12,400 (2,000) 10,400

-
-
-
-

Total $ (56,907)

Account Appropriated To

Fund Account
Balance
Before

Amount of
Adjustment

Balance
After

Number Number Department Description Adiustment Increase Adjustment
01 5215302 Interdepartmental Consultants 3,500 25,000 V 28,500
01 5215317 Interdepartmental Postage 0 9,070 9,070
01 5215321 Interdepartmental Auto Insurance 42,358 13,000 55,358
01 5215626 Interdepartmental Transfer-Grants (Fire) 0 172 172
01 5432308 Fire Contracted Services (Billing) 2,500 8,000 10,500
01 5432330 Fire Dues & Subscriptions 0 1,500 1,500
01 5431510 ___~ Fire Lease Pmts. (Ambulance) 22,500 165 22,665~- -

---::1
I

Total $ 56,907

Reason for Transfer: Transfers to adjust over-budget line items or items with no budget.

Approval: 4-~~
City Manager

,:;'-.3-/0
Date

Approval (kili/9. D,~ Posted By W- Date 3-;) '10 BA# qS 3 Pkt.# 70 I
Chief ~al Officer

_~ aH~ 1"',nf5 of cteaf~ fA/,+h bll..~e,-{-

a& ·u.s~fs posk-P. AI- firs!- dfJlfe'fo.JeJ

r~ audi t Pees Ik bu.&.eud ye~r hu~ w~,4".pi_
Q..flowed fo accrue.- t.IfJ-e.. ~se 111(pYJor -v~
Ve4v,

T091 0-009



City of McAlester
Transfer of Appropriation - FY 2009-2010

McAlester Public Works Authority
28-Feb-10

Account Appropriated From

Fund Account
Number Number Department Description

Balance Amount of
Before Adjustment

Adjustment (Decrease)

Balance
After
justment

02 5267301 Interdepartmental Auditing
, --I ,-,

17,645-1: . 37,605 I (19,960)V
02 5864203 Landfill Repair & Maint Supplies =r=:-j-2,000 I (52)1 31,948
02 5864312 Landfill Equipment Rentals ! 90,000 (51,661>V 38,339 ,

1
m

,

213,897 I02 5862203 Landfill Repair & Maint Supplies ~ 215,000 I (1,103)!
02 5862401 Fleet Mainten. Capital Outlay 30,000 ' (15,155) i 14,845 I

I -
I -I

I -
I -Total $ (87,931)

Account Appropriated To

Fund Account
Balance Amount of Balance
Before Adjustment After

Number Number Department Description Adjustment Increase Adjustment
02 5267302 Interdepartmental Consultants 2,395 15,919\ " 18,314
02 5864331 Landfill Employee Travel & Training 0 52 52
02 5864401 Landfill Capital Outlay 0 52,764L / 52,764 !
02 5267321 Interdepartmental Auto Insurance - Fleet 17,080 2,001 119,081...j

'02 5267322 Interdepartmental LiabllnyInsurance/Bo~ 100,874 ___ 1223 102,397
02 5216207 Utility Bill & Coli Clothing Allowance 550 351 901
02 5216331 Utility Bill & Coli Travel & Training ---. -=-0 ._-

104 104
02 5216401 Utility Bill & Coli Capital Outlay 4,250 2,800 7,050
02 5871331 Engineering Employee Travel & Training _ 2,000 1,217 3,217+--
02 5871101 Enqineerinq Full-Time Payroll 189,188 9,700 198,888
02 5216336 Utility Bill & Coli Fees 200 1,500 1,700

Total $ 87,931

Reason for Transfer: Transfers to adjust over-budget line items or items with no budget.

Approval Y2ta~~
City Manager

Approval ~ "Qu.,k
ChlefFiariCial Officer

Posted By a.~ Date "3-a.-\ 0 BA# -=t S3 Pkt.# lot

T0910-011



Account Management - (View) 1- I fX'1

3,217.00

37,605.00

File Edit Options Functions Help

Account ~5215301 1..0 Fiscal Year ~nnn ''In.n r, rrent .•.-
(7r·'A.- 1 F~~oA Account·~ AUDITING -)

t=I',~ a. ...•••.. --General I Balance I Budget Budget Adlustments IHistory I Detail I

922 09/30/2009
BUDGET TFR #t091 0·09 19,960.00CR 17,645.00
T091 0·004 12,605.00

953 02/28/2010
956 03/31/2010 TFR #T0910·015 20,862.00

r Edit This Record 10 Clear

I View I gaylad



Account Management - (View) r - I fX'1

Account ~5215302 IP
uncQ.

..•.

File Edit Options Functions Help

General I Balance I Budget Budget Adjustments IHistory I Detail I

r Edit This Record

, View I gaylad -, I C Clear



a'I Account Management - (View) r:-J [XI

Fiscal Year

Account N

File Edit Options Functions Help

Account ~1......52_6_73_0_1 IP

General I Balance I Budget Budget Adjustments IHistory I Detail I

958 03/31/2010 T091 0·017 3,220.00

37,605.00
[If1glnal8udgel 25,000_00

922 09/30/2009 T091 0·003 12,605.00
953 02/28/2010 BUDGET TFR #t091 0·11 19,960.00CR 17,645.00

20,865.00

r Edit This Record I C Clear

I View I gaylad



File Edit Options Functions Help

Account Management - (View) I. I !XI

Account ~5267302 IP
(\1PWIt Fu~

Fiscal Year 12009.2010..cu~

Account Na e CONSULTANTSL..- ---,>'- .....•

Generall Balance I Budget Budget Adjustments IHistory I Detail I

r Edit This Record 11:1 Clear

I View I gaylad



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 7

Department: City Manager

Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3,2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 2

Consider, and act upon, a motion to approve the City of McAlester newly elected council members to attend a
state required institute for municipal officials consisting of eight (8) hours training.

It is recommended that this motion be approved.

Discussion
State law requires each person elected for the first time to a position of a municipality on or after January 1,
2005 OR appointed for the first time on or after July 1, 2006, to attend an institute for municipal officials
consisting of eight (8) hours of training. The statute is codified at Title 11 O.S., Section 8-114.

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

Date
05/03/10

05/4/10

Page 1 of 1



Oklahoma Municipal League
INSTITUTES FOR Office-of City Manager

NEW & EXPERIENCED
MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

(J~.~~f)~~Yi,r---...."...~.··'Z.•·•...i .•. '.· ,•. ,.,,',.·.·'..i.~.,.'.·.'.·.·••.'.>.:.•.c.•.•,•....•.',·.••.'.·..• i.·.·", -> .,!.iI!'

ft
'>"'s",~,>;,'

.",,:;,::;\ \ /, ."." ...,'.,...•..:.... ,...'.•..•.. ::,
~"

State law requires each person elected for the first time to a position of a municipality on or after January 1, 2005, OR
"iippointed tor the first time on or after July 1, 2006, to attend an institute for municipal officials consisting of eight (8) hours
of training, The statute is codified at Title 11 O.S., Section 8-114.

'APR 28 1010

Received

June 3 & 4, 2010
Tulsa Technology Center - Broken Arrow

4600 South Olive, Broken Arrow

June 10 & 11,2010
Rose State College

6420 S.E. 15th, Midwest City

An officer is defined in 11 O.S. Section 1-102 as "any person who is elected to an office in municipal government or is ap-
pointed to fill an unexpired term of an elected office, and the clerk and the treasurer whether elected or appointed. When
"officer" or "official" is modified by a term which refers to a personnel position or duty, the holder of the position or duty is not
an officer or official of the municipality for any purpose."

The Oklahoma Municipal League is certified by the Department of Career and Technology as a trainer to implement this
Act.

AGENDA. DAY 1
(Required for newly elected or appointed.)

8:00-8:30 a.m.
Registration

8:30-8:55 a.m.
Principles of Municipal Government
Forms of Government; Budget & Revenue Issues
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

8:55 - 9:45 a.m.
Debt Limitation & Budgeting
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

9:55 - 10:35 a.m.
Liability of Municipal Officials
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

10:35 -11:10 a.m.
Purchasing & Spending
Municipal Contracting, Competitive Bidding
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

11:20 a.m. -12:10 p.m.
Fair Labor Standards Act
Sue Ann Nicely, OML Associate General Counsel

12:10-1:10 p.m.
Lunch (on your own)

1:10-2:20 p.m.
Open Meetings
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

2:30 - 3:00 p.m.
Hot Button Employment Issues
Sue Ann Nicely, OMLAssociate General Counsel

3:00-3:20 p.m.
Meeting Procedures & Decorum
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

3:20- 3:50 p.m.
Open Records
Diane Pedicord, General Counsel, OML

4:00-4:30 p.m.
Ethics
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

4:30-5:00 p.m.
Conflict of Interest & Nepotism
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

AGENDA. DAY 2
(Not required but includes essential information.)

8:00 - 8:30 a.m.
Registration

8:30 - 9:20 a.m.
Municipal Finance & Budgeting
This session will cover Oklahoma municipal budgeting,
accounting, purchasing and capital project funding in a
participatory format.
Midwest City Presenter - Anthony Francisco, Finance
Director, Norman
Broken Arrow Presenter - Doug Enevoldsen, City Man-
ager, Sand Springs

9:30 -10:20 a.m.
Municipal Finance & Budgeting continues

10:30 -11:30
Conducting Public Meetings
Presenter: Robert Floyd, City Manager Choctaw

11:30 -12:30
Legislative Update



NEW MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS INSTITUTE
NEW MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS INSTITUTE

(You don't have to be new to attend. Everyone is welcome!)

Each person elected or appointed for the first time as an officer of a municipality on or after July 1, 2006 as defined by para-
graph 6 of 11 O.S. Section 1-102 shall be required within one (1) year after taking the oath of office to attend an institute for
municipal officials. This statutory requirement is found at 11 O.S. Section 8-114.

An officer is defined in 11 O.S. Section 1-102 as "any person who is elected to an office in municipal government or is ap-
pointed to fill an unexpired term of an elected office, and the clerk and the treasurer whether elected or appointed. When
"officer" or "official" is modified by a term which refers to a personnel position or duty, the holder of the position or duty is not
an officer or official of the municipality for any purpose."

The Oklahoma Municipal League is certified by the Department of Career and Technology as a trainer to implement this
Act.

8:00-8:30 a.m.

8:30-9:05 a.m.

9:05-9:35 a.m.

9:45-11:10 a.m.

11:20 a.m.-12:20 p.m.

12:20-1:30 p.m.

1:30-2:30 p.m.

2:40-3:10 p.m.

3:10-3:30 p.m.

3:30- 3:50 p.m.

4:00-4:30p.m.

4:30-5:00 p.m.

AGENDA

Registration

Principles of Municipal Government
Forms of Government
LmbUftyofMun~~aIOfflcm~
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

Budgeting & Revenue Issues
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

Purchasing & Spending
Mun~ipalConuacffng
Competitive Bidding
Debt Limitation
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

Fair Labor Standards Act
SueAnn Nicely, OMLAssociate General Counsel

Lunch (on your own)

Open Meetings
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

Hot Button Employment Issues
SueAnn Nicely, OMLAssociate General Counsel

Meeting Procedures & Decorum
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

Open Records
Diane Pedicord, General Counsel, OML

Ethics
Cheryl Dorrance, OML Director of Research

Conflict of Interest & Nepotism
Diane Pedicord, OML General Counsel

DATES & LOCATIONS

October 14, 2010
Woodward City Hall

Pioneer Room
1219 8th Street
Woodward, OK
580-256-2280

November 18,2010
Great Plains

Technology Center
4500 West Lee Blvd

.Building 700, Room 701
Lawton

580-355-6371

January 2011
Kiamichi Technology Center

301 Kiamichi Drive
McAlester, OK
918-426-0940
(Exact date TBA.)

February 2011
OSU Alumni Center
201 ConocoPhillips

Stillwater, OK 74078-7043
405-744-2509
(Exact date TBA.

This Institute will be on a Saturday.)



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 8

Department: Finance

Prepared By: GaylaDuke Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: Two

Subject
Discuss, consider, and act upon, taking action to resolve the present audit findings regarding the investments of
the Cemetery Care Perpetual Trust.

Recommendation
Motion to take action and vote upon a method that will satisfy the audit findings regarding the investments of
the Trustee for the Cemetery Care Perpetual Trust.

Discussion
At the City Council meeting on March 23, 2010, the council was provided information regarding audit findings
regarding the Cemetery Trust Investments. Council discussed said matters and the item was tabled for 30 days
and Council asked for the recommendation of the City Attorney and further research by City staff.

Mel Priddy, the department head for the cemetery, has been unable to find any additional information or records
that may have been held by the prior trustee of the Cemetery Trust, Mr. J. H. Pemberton regarding any potential
past bequests on the behalf of any donors. City staff first suggested abolishing the present trust, if that were
possible, and to have the investments handled in-house with the supervision and approval of auditors and the
Cemetery Board. Staff feels that the investments should comply with the City'S present investment policy.
City Attorney advises exploring the option of finding an independent source to act as the present Trustee of said
Trust and handle the direction of the investments.

Approved By
Initial
GD

Date
05/03/10Department Head

City Manager 05/04/10

Page 1 of 1



McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 9
Planning and Community

Department: Development

Prepared By: Peter Stasiak Account Code: N/A

Date Prepared: May 3,2010 Budgeted Amount: N/A

Exhibits: See Below

Subject
Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance authorizing the City of McAlester to proceed with the annexation of
additional lands adjacent to the City. (Dahlgren Annexation)

Recommendation
Motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning C-5 (Highway Commercial and
Commercial Recreation District) and declaring an emergency.

Discussion
The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of McAlester met at their regularly scheduled meeting on
April 20, 2010 and voted unanimously to recommend to the City Council the annexation of lands described.
These lands are the future growth of the City of McAlester and lay adjacent to the City limits and water and
sewer infrastructure. The following is a list of attachments:

1. Master plan for future annexation of lands as proposed by the Annexation Sub Committee.
2. Map of proposed area of annexation.
3. Consent for annexation
4. Ordinance
5. Minutes of Planning & Zoning Commission meeting
6. Publication in local newspaper
7. Infrastructure location

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

P. Stasiak

P. Stasiak

Initial
PJS

Date
May 3,2010

May 3,2010

Page 1 of2



(

P.O. BOX 578 • 1ST & WASHINGTON· McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 74502 • 918423-9300 • FAX 421-4971 • www.cityofmcalester.com

April 22, 2010

Dear Property Owner:
An application requesting the annexation of the following described property has been
filed with the Department of Planning, City of McAlester:

Beginning at the Southwest comer of Lot 94, Townsite Addition No.5, Pittsburg
County, State of Oklahoma, thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 94 a distance of
660.00 Feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 94, thence Northerly along the Easterly line
of Lot 94 and Lot 86 a distance of 2657.00 Feet to the Northeast comer of Lot 86, thence
Northerly along the East line of Lot 70 to the point of intersection with the North Right
of Way line of the Chicago, Rock Island & Pacific Railroad, thence Westerly along the
Northerly Right of Way line of the Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad to a point
of intersection with the East line of Lot 67, Townsite Addition No.5, thence Southerly
along the East line of Lot 67 & Lot 68 to the Southeast comer of Lot 68, thence Easterly
along the North line of Lot 87 & Lot 86 a distance of 700.00 Feet, thence South parallel
to the West line of Lot 86 a distance of 900.00 Feet, thence Westerly parallel to the
North line of Lot 87 a distance of 700.00 Feet to a point on the West line of Lot 87,
thence Southerly along the West line of Lot 87 a distance of 429.90 Feet to the
Southwest Comer of Lot 87 thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 87 a distance of
660.00 Feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 87, thence Southerly along the West line of
Lot 94 a distance of 1339.70 Feet to the point of beginning, Pittsburg County, State of
Oklahoma.

Request has been made that all property annexed above shall bear the zoning C-5
(Highway Commercial & Commercial Recreation District).

A Public Hearing will be held by the McAlester City Council on Tuesday, May 11,2010
at 6:00 p.m, in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, located at 1st & Washington,
McAlester, Oklahoma. At which time you may submit your views on the matter in
person or by representative; or you may write to the Department of Planning prior to
meeting time (written response should be received by May 3rd).

If you know of any interested property owner who, for any reason, has not received a
copy of this letter, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of the time and
place of the Hearing.

Attachment: Location Map

Sincerely,

~~~~
Director
Planning & Community Development

http://www.cityofmcalester.com


LOT 68

LOT 88

LOT 89

LOT 70 LOT 71

LOT n

0.5

LOT 84

RAlLROA

DITION

LOT 85

~~

i
(/J
(/J

>- «
~LOT I ~

0..
LOT 91>-

(/J OJ
(/JIm

~'"0.. ax
~w Z TOO LOT 93 LOT 95 LOT 96

I

~C>
Z

I
wC>

2EII
~

o .
LOT 4 wVJ

LOT 92C> ~

LOT 46 lOt 4 HJ

PROPOSED CITY OF McALESTER ANNEXATION

PROPOSED NEW AREA OF ANNEXATION

DATE: OCT. 12, 2009 e .,.
CIty of McAlester

. EngI•••• rIng DeparIment

SCALE: 1" = 500'



(

TO: Whom it may concern

SUBJECT: Consent for Annexation

#a.fHeII All,)I.CA+""~ COAfP4N' y.
I (we) J{A"caN r;..12ak~yt'.N rout are the owners of the following described
property:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Lot 94, Townsite Addition No.5, Pittsburg
County, State of Oklahoma, thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 94 a
distance of 660.00 Feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 94, thence Northerly along
the Easterly line of Lot 94 and Lot 86 a distance of 2657.00 Feet to the Northeast
comer of Lot 89, thence Northerly along the East line of Lot 70 to the point of
intersection with the North Right of Way line of the Chicago, Rock Island &
Pacific Railroad, thence Westerly along the Northerly Right of Way line of the
Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad to a point of intersection with the East
line of Lot 67, Townsite Addition No.5, thence Southerly along the East line of
Lot 67 & Lot 68 to the comer of Lot 68, thence Easterly along the North line of
Lot 87 & Lot 86 a distance of 700.00 Feet, thence South parallel to the West line
of Lot 86 a distance of 900.00 Feet, thence Westerly parallel to the North line of
Lot 87 a distance of 700.00 Feet to a point on the West line of Lot 87, thence
Southerly along the West line of Lot 87 a distance of 426.90 Feet to the Southwest
Comer of Lot 87 thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 87 a distance of
660.00 Feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 87, thence Southerly along the West
line of Lot 94 a distance of 1339.70 Feet to the point of beginning.

and we hereby give my (our) consent of all such property to be included in the corporate
limits of the City of McAlester, Ok. The inclusion will be by an Ordinance annexing the
above property.

Submitted to the City of McAlester by

Property Owner(s)

Date

MAUl!~;:;J~

~!i~~
tj£l/IJ
?fI¢J/~



/,
1

ORDINANCE _

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO SAID
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO THE CITY
LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

**************************************************

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, in its discretion, has
determined that it is in the best interest of the City of McAlester, that certain territory adjacent to
the City Limits should be added to the City because it would rebound to the benefit of the City;
and

WHEREAS, the additional territory to be added is adjacent to or abutting on property already
within the City limits:

WHEREAS, the property owners of a majority of the acres to be annexed have consented in
writing to said annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA THAT:

SECTION 1: The City Limits of the City of McAlester shall constitute and include within the
limits of said City the following described property, to wit:

Beginning at the Southwest comer of Lot 94, Townsite Addition No.5, Pittsburg County, State
of Oklahoma, thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 94 a distance of 660.00 Feet to the
Southeast comer of Lot 94, thence Northerly along the Easterly line of Lot 94 and Lot 86 a
distance of 2657.00 Feet to the Northeast comer of Lot 86, thence Northerly along the East line
of Lot 70 to the point of intersection with the North Right of Way line of the Chicago, Rock
Island & Pacific Railroad, thence Westerly along the Northerly Right of Way line of the
Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad to a point of intersection with the East line of Lot
67, Townsite Addition No.5, thence Southerly along the East line of Lot 67 & Lot 68 to the
Southeast comer of Lot 68, thence Easterly along the North line of Lot 87 & Lot 86 a distance
of 700.00 Feet, thence South parallel to the West line of Lot 86 a distance of900.00 Feet,
thence Westerly parallel to the North line of Lot 87 a distance of 700.00 Feet to a point on the
West line of Lot 87, thence Southerly along the West line of Lot 87 a distance of 429.90 Feet to
the Southwest Comer of Lot 87 thence Easterly along the South line of Lot 87 a distance of
660.00 Feet to the Southeast comer of Lot 87, thence Southerly along the West line of Lot 94 a
distance of 1339.70 Feet to the point of beginning, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma.

SECTION 2: All property annexed above shall bear the zoning C-5 (Highway Commercial &
Commercial Recreation District), and

SECTION 3: Emergency Clause

It being immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an
emergency is hereby declared to exist, by reason of which this Ordinance shall take effect and be
in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.



CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

By _
Kevin Priddle, Mayor

(S EAL)

ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Approved as to form legality this day of 201O.

By=::-:-- -=-----=---------
William J. Ervin, Attorney



McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
April 20, 2010

City Council Chambers
7:30p.m.

Item 1 Call to Order and Roll Call

Chairman Emmons call the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Roll call was taken and a quorum
was represented.

Commissioners Present: 8
Denise Lewis Mark Emmons
John McNally Steve Otis
Robert Way J. Michael Matkin

Susan Kanard
Harvey Bolinger

Commissioners Absent: 2
Karl Scifres Primus Moore Karen Stobaugh

Staff Present: 3
Peter 1. Stasiak, Acting City Manager/Community and Planning Director; John
Modzelewski, City Engineer and Public Works Director; Jamie J. Benson, Planning and
Community Development Executive Assistant

Item 2 Approval of Minutes for August 18, 2009
A motion was made by Commissioner McNally, seconded by Commissioner Way to
approve the minutes of March 16, 2010 as written.

The vote was 8-0 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: None
Motion carried.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

Chairman Emmons rearranged the order in which the items were to be heard at the meeting.

Item 3 Consider and act upon the expansion of Wade Watts Corridor to
include the South ~ of Block 454, 455 & 456.

All proper notifications were sent - No Objections.

Acting City ManagerlPlanning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak stated that the
Applicant on this case is the City of McAlester. He stated that all proper notifications were
sent out and the proper publication was published April 6, 2010.
Staff Recommendation:
The Planning Department recommends that the Planning Commission approve the amended
ordinance and recommend to the McAlester City Council expanding the Wade Watts



Avenue Corridor Development District. Therefore the staff is recommending expansion of
the Wade Watts Corridor to include all lots as described in the general description.

Larry Amos spoke in opposition to this case. He stated that he resides at 1212 E. Delaware
which is across the street from the area in question.

Vicki Brown also spoke in opposition to this case. She stated that she resides at 1504 S. 9th
•

She stated that she does not live in the area, but thinks it would be in direct conflict with the
zoning ordinance.

Danny Giacomo stated that he resided at 1202 E. Kiowa and asked if the residents would be
able to maintain the homes that are already in existence. Mark Emmons stated that the
home owners would be able to maintain the residences and Mr. Stasiak added that they
would not be able to add square footage.

A motion was made by Commissioner McNally to deny the expansion of Wade Watts
Corridor, seconded by Commissioner Kanard.

The vote was 8-0 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: None
Motion carried.

Item 4 Recommendation to City Council from Planning Commission to
proceed with the annexation of property in Townsite Addition No.5.

City Manager/Planning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak presented an overview of
the area to be annexed. He stated that the applicants are Haskell Land & Cattle
Company/ Karen G. Dahlgren Trust. He also stated that the staff recommends approval
with a C-5 zoning.

There was no discussion on the matter therefore a motion was made by Commissioner
McNally, was seconded by Commissioner Way to recommend approval of annexation of
said property to the McAlester City Council.

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO
SAID CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO
THE CITY LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

The vote was 8,;.0as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.

2



NAY: None
Motion carried

Item 5 Recommendation to City Council from Planning Commission to
proceed with the annexation of property in Townsite Addition No.2.

City ManagerlPlanning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak presented an overview of
the area to be annexed. He stated that the applicant is Stipe Investment LLC. He also
stated that the staff recommends approval with an R-3 zoning. He also commented that
an apartment complex would be going on this land.

The agent for the owner, Mike Whalzberger, 14700 W. 114th Terrace, La Mesa Kansas,
stated that he was here to answer any questions that anyone might have.

Commissioner Way asked if these apartments would be just like the ones already on West
Carl Albert with the same low income guide-lines. Mr. Whalzberger stated that they will
be the same and are under the same owners.

Vicki Brown, 1504 S. 9th, stated that she opposes the annexation. She stated that she
believed that the Westside sewer plant was close to or at capacity.

There was no further discussion on the matter therefore a motion was made by
Commissioner Bolinger, was seconded by Commissioner McNally to recommend
approval of annexation of said property to the McAlester City Council.

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO
SAID CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO
THE CITY LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

The vote was 7-1 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: Matkin.
Motion carried

Item 6 New Business
There was no new business.

Item 7 Staff Report
No Report.

Item 8 Commission Report
No report.

Item 9 Adjournment

3



There being no further business, Chairman Emmons adjourned the meeting at 8:41 p.m.

4





McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 10
Planning and Community

Department: Development

Prepared By: Peter Stasiak Account Code: N/A

Date Prepared: May 3, 2010 Budgeted Amount: N/A

Exhibits: See Below

Subject
Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance authorizing the City of McAlester to proceed with the annexation of
additional lands adjacent to the City. (Stipe Annexation)

Recommendation
Motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, adding to said City of McAlester,
Oklahoma, territory adjacent to the city limits, providing for zoning R-3 (Multi Family Residential) and
declaring an emergency.

Discussion
The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of McAlester met at their regularly scheduled meeting on
April 20, 2010 and voted 6 - 1 to recommend to the City Council the annexation of lands described. These lands
are the future growth of the City of McAlester and lay adjacent to the City limits and water and sewer
infrastructure. The following is a list of attachments:

1. Master plan for future annexation of lands as proposed by the Annexation Sub Committee.
2. Map of proposed area of annexation.
3. Consent for annexation
4. Ordinance
5. Minutes of Planning & Zoning Commission meeting
6. Publication in local newspaper
7. Infrastructure location
8. Sewer system capacity update

Approved By

Department Head

City Manager

P. Stasiak

P. Stasiak

Initial
PJS

Date
May 3,2010

May 3, 2010

Page 1 of2



P.O. BOX 578 • 1ST & WASHINGTON· McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 74502 • 918423-9300 • FAX 421-4971 • www.cityofmcalester.com

April 20, 2010

Dear Property Owner:
An application requesting the annexation of the following described property has been
filed with the Department of Planning, City of McAlester:

A tract ofland in Lots 16, 17 and 18 in Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County, State
of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest
comer of Lot 16, said point being the Point of Beginning: Thence N 01°17' 10" W, along
the West line of Lot 16 a distance of 190.00 feet; Thence N 88°39'54" E a distance of
245.98 feet; Thence S 33°52'51" E a distance of 15.34 feet; Thence S 57°46'57" E a
distance of34.02 feet; Thence S 65°48'03" E a distance of292.10 feet to the point of
curvature of a non-tangent curve, concave to the Northwest, having a radius of 590.00
feet, a Central angle of 03°30'55", and a chord of36.19 feet Bearing S 25°17'50" W;
Thence Southwest along said curve a distance of 36.20 feet; Thence continuing
Southwest along said curve a distance of 520.01 feet; Thence S 77°44'31" W a distance
of 127.27 feet; Thence N 01°17'53" W along the West line of Lot 18 a distance of
322.53 feet to the Point of Beginning, Said described Tract containing 4.50 acres more
or less.

A tract ofland in Lot 15, Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma,
more particularly described as follows: The South 220.00 feet of said Lot 15, containing
3.34 acres more or less.

Request has been made that all property annexed above shall bear the zoning R-3 (Multi-
Family Residential).

A Public Hearing will be held by the McAlester City Council on Tuesday, May 11,2010
at 6:00 p.m, in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, located at 1st & Washington,
McAlester, Oklahoma. At which time you may submit your views on the matter in
person or by representative; or you may write to the Department of Planning prior to
meeting time (written response should be received by May 3rd).

If you know of any interested property owner who, for any reason, has not received a
copy of this letter, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of the time and
place of the Hearing.

}!31Y'~~
peter~iak
Director
Planning & Community Development

Attachment: Location Map

http://www.cityofmcalester.com


660' 330'

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 20

LOT 21

330'

LOT 6

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 19

LOT 22

LOT 28

990'

LOT 25

660'

LOT 3

LOT 13 •

LOT 16

LOT 24

660'

TOWNSI ADDITIO NO.2

LOT 4

LOT 12

LOT 17 ,:1

PROPOSED CITY OF McALESTER ANNEXATION

PROPOSED NEW AREA OF ANNEXATION

DATE: APRIL 12, 2010 ••••.••••••••••
~ of IIcAIe8ter
•••• 111•••.••••••••• MIIt



TO: Whom it may concern

SUBJECT: Consent for Annexation

I (we) srI Pc INVI:J5T7r!cNT s .t..t.C. are the owners of the following described
property:

A tract of land in Lots 16, 17 and 18, in Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County,
State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the
Southwest comer of Lot 16, said point being the point of Beginning; Thence N
01°17' 10" W, along the West line of Lot 16 a distance of 190.00 feet, Thence N
88°39'54" E a distance of245.98 feet, Thence
S 33°52'51" E a distance of 15.34 feet, Thence S 57°46'57" E a distance of 34.02 feet,
Thence
S 65°48'03" E a distance of292.10 feet to the point of curvature ofa non-tangent curve,
concave to the Northwest, having a radius of 590.00 feet, a Central angle of 03°30'55",
and a chord of36.19 feet Bearing S 25°17'50" W, Thence Southwest along said curve a
distance of 36.20 feet, Thence continuing Southwest along said curve a distance of
520.01 feet, Thence
S 77°44'31" W a distance of 127.27 feet, Thence N 01°17'53" W along the West line of
Lot 18 a distance of322.53 feet to the Point of Beginning, Said described Tract
containing 4.50 acres more or less.

A tract of land in Lot 15, Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County, State of
Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: The South 220.0 feet of said Lot 15,
containing 3.34 acres more or less.

and we hereby give my (our) consent of all such property to be included in the corporate
limits of the City of McAlester, Ok. The inclusion will be by an Ordinance annexing the
above property.

Submitted to the City of McAlester by

Property Owner(s)

Date

~-/s- ;7Z.Dlo
Date

Date



ORDINANCE _

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO SAID
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO THE CITY
LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

**************************************************

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, in its discretion, has
determined that it is in the best interest of the City of McAlester, that certain territory adjacent to
the City Limits should be added to the City because it would rebound to the benefit of the City;
and

WHEREAS, the additional territory to be added is adjacent to or abutting on property already
within the City limits:

WHEREAS, the property owners of a majority of the acres to be annexed have consented in
writing to said annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA THAT:

SECTION 1: The City Limits of the City of McAlester shall constitute and include within the
limits of said City the following described property, to wit:

A tract ofland in Lots 16, 17 and 18, in Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County, State of
Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest comer of Lot
16, said point being the point of Beginning; Thence N 01°17' 10" W, along the West line of Lot
16 a distance of 190.00 feet, Thence N 88°39'54" E a distance of 245.98 feet, Thence
S 33°52'51" E a distance of 15.34 feet, Thence S 57°46'57" E a distance of 34.02 feet, Thence
S 65°48'03" E a distance of 292.1 0 feet to the point of curvature of a non-tangent curve,
concave to the Northwest, having a radius of 590.00 feet, a Central angle of 03°30' 55", and a
chord of36.19 feet Bearing S 25°17'50" W, Thence Southwest along said curve a distance of
36.20 feet, Thence continuing Southwest along said curve a distance of 520.01 feet, Thence
S 77°44'31" W a distance of 127.27 feet, Thence N 01°17'53" W along the West line of Lot 18
a distance of322.53 feet to the Point of Beginning, Said described Tract containing 4.50 acres
more or less.

A tract ofland in Lot 15, Townsite Addition No.2, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma, more
particularly described as follows: The South 220.0 feet of said Lot 15, containing 3.34 acres
more or less.

SECTION 2: All property annexed above shall bear the zoning R-3 (Multi-Family Residential),
and

SECTION 3: Emergency Clause

It being immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an
emergency is hereby declared to exist, by reason of which this Ordinance shall take effect and be



CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA
A Municipal Corporation

By _
Kevin Priddle, Mayor

(S EAL)

ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, City Clerk

Approved as to form legality this day of --:201O.

By=-:-:-:-:-_-=- _
William J. Ervin, Attorney



McAlester Planning Commission Minutes
April 20, 2010

City Council Chambers
7:30pm.

Item 1 Call to Order andRoll Call

Chairman Emmons call the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Roll call was taken and a quorum
was represented.

CommissionersPresent: 8
Denise Lewis Mark Emmons
John McNally Steve Otis
Robert Way J. Michael Matkin

Susan Kanard
Harvey Bolinger

CommissionersAbsent: 2
Karl Scifres Primus Moore Karen Stobaugh

Staff Present: 3
Peter J. Stasiak, Acting City Manager/Community and Planning Director; John
Modzelewski, City Engineer and Public Works Director; Jamie J. Benson, Planning and
Community Development Executive Assistant.

Item 2 Approval of Minutes for August 18, 2009
A motion was made by Commissioner McNally, seconded by Commissioner Way to
approve the minutes of March 16, 2010 as written.

The vote was 8-0 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: None
Motion carried.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

Chairman Emmons rearranged the order in which the items were to be heard at the meeting.

Item 3 Consider and act upon the expansion of Wade Watts Corridor to
include the South ~ of Block 454, 455 & 456.

All proper notifications were sent - No Objections.

Acting City ManagerlPlanning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak stated that the
Applicant on this case is the City of McAlester. He stated that all proper notifications were
sent out and the proper publication was published April 6, 2010.
Staff Recommendation:
The Planning Department recommends that the Planning Commission approve the amended
ordinance and recommend to the McAlester City Council expanding the Wade Watts

1



Avenue Corridor Development District. Therefore the staff is recommending expansion of
the Wade Watts Corridor to include all lots as described in the general description.

Larry Amos spoke in opposition to this case. He stated that he resides at 1212 E. Delaware
which is across the street from the area in question.

Vicki Brown also spoke in opposition to this case. She stated that she resides at 1504 S. 9th
•

She stated that she does not live in the area, but thinks it would be in direct conflict with the
zoning ordinance.

Danny Giacomo stated that he resided at 1202 E. Kiowa and asked if the residents would be
able to maintain the homes that are already in existence. Mark Emmons stated that the
home owners would be able to maintain the residences and Mr. Stasiak added that they
would not be able to add square footage.

A motion was made by Commissioner McNally to deny the expansion of Wade Watts
Corridor, seconded by Commissioner Kanard.

The vote was 8-0 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: None
Motion carried.

Item 4 Recommendation to City Council from Planning Commission to
proceed with the annexation of property in Townsite Addition No.5.

City ManagerlPlanning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak presented an overview of
the area to be annexed. He stated that the applicants are Haskell Land & Cattle
Company/ Karen G. Dahlgren Trust. He also stated that the staff recommends approval
with a C-5 zoning.

There was no discussion on the matter therefore a motion was made by Commissioner
McNally, was seconded by Commissioner Way to recommend approval of annexation of
said property to the McAlester City Council.

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO
SAID CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO
THE CITY LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

The vote was 8•.0 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Matkin, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.

2



NAY: None
Motion carried

Item 5 Recommendation to City Council from Planning Commission to
proceed with the annexation of property in Townsite Addition No.2.

City Manager/Planning and Community Director, Peter J. Stasiak presented an overview of
the area to be annexed. He stated that the applicant is Stipe Investment LLC. He also
stated that the staff recommends approval with an R-3 zoning. He also commented that
an apartment complex would be going on this land.

The agent for the owner, Mike Whalzberger, 14700 W. 114th Terrace, La Mesa Kansas,
stated that he was here to answer any questions that anyone might have.

Commissioner Way asked if these apartments would be just like the ones already on West
Carl Albert with the same low income guide-lines. Mr. Whalzberger stated that they will
be the same and are under the same owners.

Vicki Brown, 1504 S. 9th
, stated that she opposes the annexation. She stated that she

believed that the Westside sewer plant was close to or at capacity.

There was no further discussion on the matter therefore a motion was made by
Commissioner Bolinger, was seconded by Commissioner McNally to recommend
approval of annexation of said property to the McAlester City Council.

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, ADDING TO
SAID CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, TERRITORY ADJACENT TO
THE CITY LIMITS, PROVIDING FOR ZONING OF SAID PROPERTY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

The vote was 7-1 as follows:
AYE: Lewis, Kanard, McNally, Bolinger, Otis, Way and Emmons.
NAY: Matkin.
Motion carried

Item 6 New Business
There was no new business.

Item 7 Staff Report
No Report.

Item 8 Commission Report
No report.

Item 9 Adjournment

3



There being no further business, Chairman Emmons adjourned the meeting at 8:41 p.m.

4





'- ----~
r- .-.--'

/

\ ' ,
\

i i \r- \\ \
\ \

\
\\

\
~ss

\
\ I I

i

(

\
\
\

, .. ~
~~

! <; •

/
(
)

I
v

, ,
1\\ \

i \ \
i ,,\

" \



Page 1 of2

Peter Stasiak

From: David Medley

Sent: Thursday, April 22, 2010 11:59 AM

To: Peter Stasiak

Subject: RE: West Ridge Apartments

Pete,

I am forwarding hard copies of the discharge monitoring reports (DMR's) for the last 12 months for both
plants. The DMR's show all permit test recorded for the last 12 months including average monthly flow.
There are no violations or permit excursions listed on the DMR's which as I have stated earlier is the best
indication of plant flow design exceedance or need of process improvements. It should be noted that plant
flows vary widely depending on wet weather flow (which is considerable higher due to infiltration and
inflow) or dry weather flow conditions. Average monthly flows are used to calculate what quantity or
loading of certain permit parameters but plant design flow being exceeded in itself does not constitute a
permit violation. The annual average monthly flow for the West WNTP for the previous 12 months ending
March 2010 is 1.95 MGD or about 80% of the 2.5 MGD average monthly flow design capacity for the
plant. I usually quote the 90% design capacity figure to be conservative since there are many things in the
plant physically and/or operationally that can impact the plant operating in compliance with it's permit or
being determined to have reached it's design capacity.

I think the 85% design capacity is a rule used by some cities but if it is used I believe if it used it should be
based on the annual average monthly flow as compared to the design average monthly flow. If a
particular plant is experiencing permit compliance issues then that is another matter.

If you need additional information, please advise.

David R. Medley, P.E.
Utilities Director
City of McAlester
(918) 423-9300 Ext. 4995
(918) 424-4454 Cell
(918) 421-4970 Fax
david.medley@cityofmcalester.com

From: Peter Stasiak
sent: Thursday, April 22, 2010 7:19 AM
To: David Medley
Subject: FW: West Ridge Apartments

David:

Would you please let me know the answers to the Councilman's questions.

Thank you,

Pete

From: Steve or Patty Harrison [mailto:stevepattyharrison@sbcglobal.net]
sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 6:02 PM
To: Peter Stasiak
Subject: Re: West Ridge Apartments

Thanks, Pete. I'm sure I'll be having a number of additional questions as I try to get up to speed on this
before it comes before the council. One thing l've already come across in my research is that 85% of
capacity seems to be a reference point beyond which new developments are not routinely approved in

5/4/2010

mailto:david.medley@cityofmcalester.com


Page 2 of2

some cities. I don't know if it's an industry standard, an EPA guideline, just cities trying to be cautious, etc.

Are there any routine reports that we file periodically with ODEQ or EPA or another regulatory agency that talks
about capacity usage and other measurements related to operations? If so, would it be possible to provide to me
the latest ones for both plants? I'd also like to know what areas of the city are serviced by each plant.

Thanks,
Steve

---- Original Message ----
From: Peter Stasiak
To: Steve or Patty Harrison
Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 5:34 PM
Subject: FW: West Ridge Apartments

Hi Councilman:

I asked Mr. Medley again this morning about capacity at the west plant. Please see his comments below. I
thought you might be interested.

Have a good evening.

Pete

From: David Medley
sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 8:59 AM
To: Peter Stasiak
Subject: West Ridge Apartments

Mr. Stasiak,

Per your request, I have checked the impact of the above proposed development at West Street and Choctaw
on the West Wastewater Treatment Plant. The Plant is a 2.5 million gallon per day plant and has no permit
compliance issues outstanding for many years now which is one of the best indicators that a plant in near
capacity or in need of improvements. The above referenced development which has 92 units proposed would
have a very minor impact to the plant which is estimated to be about 90% capacity. The percentage of capacity
utilized by this development can be estimated as follows:

92 units x 2.3 persons/unit x 100 gallons per day = 21, 160 gallons per day.

21,160 gallons/day divided by 2.5 million gallons per day capacity x 100 = 0.85 % of the capacity of the plant.

It should be noted the plant has a 5 million gallon flow equalization basin which buffers excess flows during
rainfall events.

Based on the above analysis and my professional judgment, I don't believe the plant will be significantly
impacted by the waste stream of this development.

If you need additional information, please advise.

David R. Medley, P.E.
Utilities Director
City of McAlester
(918) 423-9300 Ext. 4995
(918) 424-4454 Cell
(918) 421-4970 Fax
david. medley@citvofmcalester.com

5/4/2010

mailto:medley@citvofmcalester.com


McAlester City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: May 11,2010 Item Number: 11

Department: City Manager

Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code:

Date Prepared: May 1,2010 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: 1

Presentation on Proposed Annual Operating Budget for FY 2010/2011 and City Manager Budget Message.

To set a Special Meeting and Work Session to discuss and review the 2010/11 Preliminary Budget.

Discussion

Approved By
Initial
PJS

Date
05103/10Department Head

City Manager 05/04110

Page 1 of 1



Council Chambers
Municipal Building
April 27, 2010

The McAlester Airport Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, April 27, 2010, at
6:00 P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted April 22, 2010.

Present: Chris Fiedler, Steve Harrison, John Browne, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin,
Louis Smitherman, William J. Ervin & Kevin E. Priddle
None
Kevin E. Priddle, Chairman

Absent:
Presiding:

A motion was made by Mr. Fiedler and seconded by Mr. Browne to approve the
following:

• Approval of the Minutes from the April 12, 2010, Re-Scheduled Regular Meeting
of the McAlester Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item C, regarding claims ending
April 27, 2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer) There were no claims for
this period.

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, regarding a Resolution to
adopt the Capital Improvement Program 2010-2015 as stated by the City Charter
Section 5.12 (b) City Council Action on Capital Program, which states "The City
Council by resolution shall adopt the capital program with or without amendment
after the public hearing(s) on or before the last day of April of the current fiscal
year. If the City Council fails to adopt the capital program by such date, the
current capital program will continue in effect." (Peter J. Stasiak, Acting City
Manager)

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Fiedler, Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman & Chairman
Priddle

NAY: None

Chairman Priddle declared the motion carried.

There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Fiedler moved
for the meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Browne. The vote was taken as
follows:

AYE: Trustees Fiedler, Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman & Chairman
Priddle

NAY: None



Chairman Priddle declared the motion carried.

ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, Secretary

Kevin Priddle, Chairman

2



Council Chambers
Municipal Building
April 27, 2010

The McAlester Public Works Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, April 27,
2010, at 6:00 P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted April 22, 2010.

Present: Chris Fiedler, Steve Harrison, John Browne, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin,
Louis Smitherman, William J. Ervin & Kevin E. Priddle
None
Kevin E. Priddle, Chairman

Absent:
Presiding:

A motion was made by Mr. Fiedler and seconded by Mr. Browne to approve the
following:

• Approval of the Minutes from the April 12, 2010, Re-Scheduled Regular Meeting
of the McAlester Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk)

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item C, regarding claims ending
April 27, 2010. (Gayla Duke, Chief Financial Officer) There were no claims for
this period.

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, regarding a Resolution to
adopt the Capital Improvement Program 2010-2015 as stated by the City Charter
Section 5.12 (b) City Council Action on Capital Program, which states "The City
Council by resolution shall adopt the capital program with or without amendment
after the public hearing(s) on or before the last day of April of the current fiscal
year. If the City Council fails to adopt the capital program by such date, the
current capital program will continue in effect." (Peter J Stasiak, Acting City
Manager)

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Fiedler, Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman & Chairman
Priddle

NAY: None

Chairman Priddle declared the motion carried.

There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Fiedler moved for the
meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Browne. The vote was taken as follows:

AYE: Trustees Fiedler, Harrison, Browne, Karr, Garvin, Smitherman & Chairman
Priddle

NAY: None



Chairman Priddle declared the motion carried.

ATTEST:

Cora Middleton, Secretary

Kevin Priddle, Chairman

2


	Agenda City Council Regular Session, May 11, 2010
	Minutes, City Council Special Session, April 22, 2010
	Claims from April 28, 2010 thru May 11, 2010
	Item C, NAACP use of Hunter Park
	Item 1, Audited Financial Statements
	Item 2, Engagement Letter with Crawford & Associates
	Item 3, Allied Waste Services
	Item 4, Ordinance No. 1843, Flood Hazard Overlay District & Flood Damage Prevention
	Item 5, Remote Deposit Services Agreement with First National Bank & Trust Co.
	Item 6, Budget Amendment
	Item 7, Council Training
	Item 8, Audit finding, Cemetery Care Perpetual Trust
	Item 9, Annexation of additional lands
	Item 10, Annexation of additional lands
	Item 11, Proposed Annual Operating Budget, FY 2010-2011
	Minutes, McAlester Airport Authority Regular Session, April 27, 2010
	Minutes, McAlester Public Works Authority Regular Session, April 27, 2010



